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September 29, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capital Annex

Frankfort, KY 40601

Re: 12 KAR Chapter 4, Fertilizer Regulations
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by the administrative regulation numbers listed below, the Division of Regulatory
Services proposes the attached amendments to the administrative regulation numbers listed

below.

12 KAR 4:075 Licenses and fertilizer product registration

12 KAR 4:080 Plant nutrient guarantees and labeling

12 KAR 4:130 Investigational allowances

12 KAR 4:140 Monetary Penalties

12 KAR 4:170 Maximum chlorine guarantees for tobacco fertilizers

Sincerely,

Mo 27,5

Stephen McMurry, Director of Fertilizer and Seed Programs
Division of Regulatory Services

University of Kentucky

103 Regulatory Services Building

Lexington, KY 40546-0275

seeblue.

103 Regulatory Services Building | Lexington, KY 40546-0275 | O:859-257-2785 | F:859-323-9931 | www.rs.uky.edu

Ant Equal Opportunity University




Final 8/28/2020 4:26 PM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE
AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION

12 KAR 4:075. Licenses and fertilizer product registration.

RELATES TO: KRS 250.366(16), (26), 250.371 — 250.461

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 250.371, 250.421

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 250.371 authorizes the Kentucky Agricultur-
al Experiment Station Director to promulgate administrative regulations for product registration
and licensing of custom mix blending facilities. KRS 250.421 requires the director to promulgate
administrative regulations necessary to implement KRS 250.371 through 250.451. This adminis-
trative regulation establishes requirements for fertilizer product registration and licensing.

Section 1. Definitions.

(1) "Registrant” means the person who registers fertilizer.

(2) "Licensee" means the person who is licensed to distribute fertilizer.

Section 2. An applicant for registration shall complete and submit to the Fertilizer Regulatory
Program:

(1) Application for Registration of Farm Fertilizer, Form RS-29-01 Farm Fertilizer;

(2) Application for Registration of Specialty Fertilizer, Form RS-29-03 Specialty Fertilizer (10
Pounds or Less).

(a) In accordance with KRS 250.371(1), a fifty (50) dollar registration fee shall accompany form
RS-29-03; and

(b) In accordance with KRS 250.381(4) a fifty (50) dollar inspection fee shall accompany form
RS-29-03; orf:]

(3) Application for Registration of Specialty Fertilizer, Form RS-29-04. Specialty Fertilizer
(Packages Greater Than 10 Pounds). In accordance with KRS 250.371(1), a fifty (50) dollar regis-
tration fee shall accompany the submitted application form.

Section 3. An applicant for licensing shall complete and submit to the Fertilizer Regulatory
Program:

(1) Application for Custom Mix Fertilizer Blending, Form RS-29-02 Bulk Fertilizer License; or

(2) Application for Custom Mix Specialty Fertilizer Blending, Form RS-29-05 Bulk Specialty
Fertilizer License. In accordance with KRS 250.371(4), a one-hundred (100) dollar license fee shall
accompany the submitted application form.

Section 4. Incorporation by Reference.

(1) The following material is incorporated by reference:

(a) "Application for Registration of Farm Fertilizer", Form RS-29-01, October 2019;

(b) "Application for Registration of Specialty Fertilizer", Form RS-29-03, October 2019;

(c) "Application for Registration of Specialty Fertilizer", Form RS-29-04, October 2019;

(d) "Application for Custom Mix Fertilizer Blending", Form RS-29-02, October 2019; and

(e) "Application for Custom Mix Specialty Fertilizer Blending”, Form RS-29-05, October 2019.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Division of Regulatory Services, University of Kentucky, 103 Regulatory Services Building,




Lexington, Kentucky 40546-0275, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: Stephen McMurry, Fertilizer and Seed Program Director, University of
Kentucky Division of Regulatory Services, 103 Regulatory Services Building, Lexington, Kentucky
40546, phone (859) 218-2440, fax (859) 257-9478, email smcmurry@uky.edu.
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September 29, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capital Annex

Frankfort, KY 40601

Re: 12 KAR Chapter 4, Fertilizer Regulations

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by the administrative regulation numbers listed below, the Division of Regulatory
Services proposes the attached amendments to the administrative regulation numbers listed

below.

12 KAR 4:075 Licenses and fertilizer product registration

12 KAR 4:080 Plant nutrient guarantees and labeling

12 KAR 4:130 Investigational allowances

12 KAR 4:140 Monetary Penalties

12 KAR 4:170 Maximum chlorine guarantees for tobacco fertilizers

Sincerely,

M7 75

Stephen McMurry, Director of Fertilizer and Seed Programs
Division of Regulatory Services

University of Kentucky

103 Regulatory Services Building.

Lexington, KY 40546-0275

seeblue.

103 Regulatory Services Building | Lexington, KY 40546-0275 | O:859-257-2785 | F.859-323-9931 | www.rs.uky.edu

At Equal Opportunity University




Final 10/2/2020 8:55 AM
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT
AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION

12 KAR 4:080. Plant nutrient[nutrients] guarantees and labeling.

RELATES TO: KRS 250.366(7), 250.371 — 250.451

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 250.366(7), 250.421

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 250.366(7) authorizes the Kentucky Agricul-
tural Experiment Station Director to promulgate administrative regulations for the inspection
and analysis of plant nutrient guarantees. KRS 250.421 requires the director to promulgate ad-
ministrative regulations necessary to implement KRS 250.371 through 250.451. This administra-
tive regulation establishes requirements for plant nutrient labeling requirements.

Section 1. Plant Nutrient Guarantees. Plant nutrients, additional to nitrogen, phosphorus, and
potassium, referenced by fertilizer labeling or information provided with a fertilizer shall be reg-
istered and guaranteed pursuant to this administrative regulation. Except guarantees for water-
soluble nutrients labeled for ready-to-use foliar fertilizers, ready-to-use specialty liquid fer-
tilizers, hydroponic or continuous liquid feed programs and guarantees for potting soils, gar-
den soils, lawn soils, and any other growing media product labeled with a fertilizer guar-
anteed analysis, the minimum elemental percentages shall be as established in the Table es-

tablished in this section[paragraph].

Element Percent
Calcium (Ca) 1.00[00]
Magnesium (Mg) 0.50[00]
Sulfur (S) 1.00[00]
Boron (B) 0.02[09]
Chlorine (Cl) 0.10[09]
Cobalt (Co) 0.0005

Copper (Cu) 0.05[00]
iron (Fe) 0.10[e0]
Manganese (Mn) 0.05[60]
Molybdenum (Mo) 0.0005

Nickel (Ni) 0.0010

Sodium (Na) 0.10[00]
Zinc (Zn) 0.05[99]

(1) Guarantees and claims shall not be referenced by fertilizer labeling or information provid-
ed with a fertilizer for elements other than those established in the Table established in this sec-
tion[subsection].

(2) Except for nitrogen, phosphorus, and potassium, if present and that shall be listed first,
guaranteed elements referenced by fertilizer labeling or information provided with a fertilizer




shall be listed in the order established in the Table established in this section[subsection].

(3) The elements established in this section[subsection] shall be guaranteed on their ele-
mental basis and are the only ones that shallfwill] be accepted.

(4) Sources of the elements guaranteed and proof of availability shall be provided upon re-

guest.

Section 2. Fertilizer Labels.

(1) Fertilizer labels or information provided with a fertilizer shall be legible and conspicuous
and shall include:

(a) Net Weight;[and]

(b) Brand and grade, except grade shall not be required if primary nutrients are not

claimed;[and]

(¢) Under the heading of Guaranteed Analysis:[:]
Total Nitrogen (N) %
Available Phosphate (P,Os) %

Soluble Potash (K>O) %
Other Nutrients, Elemental Basis %

1. If the percentage is zero, the nutrient shall be omitted from the statement, except in nutri-
ent guarantee breakdowns.

2. If the chemical forms of nitrogen are claimed, the form shall be guaranteed in the format
established in the Table established in this subparagraph, and the percentages of the individual
forms shall add up to the total nitrogen percentage. Implied order of the forms of nitrogen is
not intended.

Total Nitrogen (N) %
% Ammoniacal Nitrogen
% Nitrate Nitrogen

% Water Insoluble Nitrogen
% Urea Nitrogen
% Other Recognized and Deter-
minable Forms of Nitrogen
(d) The source or sources of the guaranteed elements that, if shown on the fertilizer labeling
or information provided with a fertilizer, shall be listed below the completed guaranteed analysis
statement; and
(e) Name and address of registrant or licensee.
(2) For packaged products, Fertilizer Labels shall:
(a) Appear on the front or back of the package;
(b) Occupy at least the upper third of a side of a package; or
(c) Be printed on a tag and attached to the package.
(3) If the chemical form of a plant nutrient is guaranteed, the percentage for each component
shall be shown before the name of the form, as in the following example:
Total Nitrogen (N) 34%
17% Nitrate Nitrogen
17% Ammoniacal Nitrogen




Magnesium (Mg) 2.0%

1% Water Soluble Magnesium (Mg)
Sulfur (S) 10.0%
5% Free Sulfur (S)

5% Combined Sulfur (S)

Iron (Fe) 2.0%
2% Chelated lron (Fe)

Section 3. Beneficial Substances and Beneficial Compounds.

(1) Beneficial substances or beneficial compounds guarantees shall be listed below the guar-
anteed analysis statement under one (1) of the following headings: "Also Contains Beneficial
Substances”, "Also Contains Beneficial Compounds", or "Also Contains NonPlant Food Ingredi-
ents."[:]

(2) The percentage for each beneficial substance or beneficial compound shall be shown after
the name of the form, as in the following examples:

(a) Also Contains Beneficial Substances (Compounds)
Beneficial Substance % or __acceptable
units

Purpose Statement:
(b) Also Contains NonPlant Food Ingredients
Beneficial Substance % __or acceptable
units

Purpose Statement:

(3) For the beneficial substance, Silicon, the guarantee shall be "Soluble Silicon (Si)." The
method of determination of Soluble Silicon shall be from the Journal of AOAC International,
Volume 96, No.2, 2013.

Section 4. The term of "percentage" by symbol or word, when used on fertilizer labeling shall
represent only the amount of individual plant nutrients in relation to the total product by

weight.

Section 5. Incorporation by Reference.

(1) "Journal of AOAC International”, Volume 96, No. 2, 2013, "A 5-Day Method for Determina-
tion of Soluble Silicon Concentrations in Nonliquid Fertilizer Materials Using a Sodium Car-
bonate-Ammonium Nitrate Extractant Followed by Visible Spectroscopy with Heteropoly Blue
Analysis: Single-Laboratory Validation", 2073, is incorporated by reference,

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Division of Regulatory Services, University of Kentucky, 103 Regulatory Services Building,

Lexington, Kentucky 40546-0275, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.[Fe-preseribein-de-~




CONTACT PERSON: Stephen McMurry, Fertilizer and Seed Program Director, University of
Kentucky Division of Regulatory Services, 103 Regulatory Services Building, Lexington, Kentucky
40546, phone (859) 218-2440, fax (859) 257-9478, smc-murry@uky.edu.
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September 29, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commissiorn

029, Capital Annex

Frankfort, KY 40601

Re: 12 KAR Chapter 4, Fertilizer Regulations

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by the administrative regulation numbers listed below, the Division of Regulatory.
Services proposes the attached amendments to the administrative regulation numbers listed

below.

12 KAR 4:075 Licenses and fertilizer product registration

12 KAR 4:080 Plant nutrient guarantees and labeling

12 KAR 4:130 Investigational allowances

12 KAR 4:140 Monetary Penalties

12 KAR 4:170 Maximum chlorine guarantees for tobacco fertilizers

Sincerely,

Mo 72 25

Stephen McMurry, Director of Fertilizer and Seed Programs
Division of Regulatory Services

University of Kentucky

103 Regulatory Services Building.

Lexington, KY 40546-0275

seeblue.
103 Regulatory Services Building | Lexington, KY 40546-0275 | O:859-257-2785 | F:859-323-9931 | www.rs.uky.edu

At Equal Opportunicy Universicy




Final 8/31/2020 9:42 AM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE
AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION

12 KAR 4:130. Investigational allowances.

RELATES TO: KRS 250.366(19), 250.391(3), 250.396(1), (2), 250.401

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 250.421

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 250.421 requires the director to
promulgate administrative regulations necessary to implement KRS 250.361 through
250.461. This administrative regulation establishes [Fe-preseribe] scientifically sound and
fair investigational allowances as a basis for declaring a fertilizer sample deficient in its
guaranteed analyses and to detail the calculation of the index value of a fertilizer.

Section 1. A fertilizer shall be deemed deficient if the analysis of an official sample for
any primary nutrient is below the guarantee by an amount exceeding the values in the

table established in this section[follewingschedule].

Guaran- | Total Available | Soluble
teed Nitro- | Phosphate | Potash
percent | gen(N) | (P20s5) | (K2O)
per- percent* percent®
cent*
05 or|0.37 0.65 0.39
less
06 0.47 0.71 0.47
07 0.59 0.77 0.56
08 0.72 0.82 0.63
09 0.81 0.86 0.70
10 0.89 0.89 0.76
12 1.03 0.95 0.87
14 1.18 1.02 0.96
16 1.29 1.12 1.05
18 1.43 1.19 1.12
20 1.57 1.32 1.18
22 1.62 1.39 1.22
24 1.65 1.46 1.26
26 1.66 1.53 1.29
28 "~ 11.58 1.59 1.33
30 1.28 1.67 1.36
32 or|1.28 1.67 1.36




more | | |

For guarantees not listed, calculate the
appropriate value by interpolation.

*For these investigational allowances to
be applicable, the procedures recom-
mended by AOAC International for ob-
taining samples, preparation and analysis
shall be used. These are described in the
15th Edition (1990) of the Official Meth-
ods of Analysis of the AOAC International.
In evaluating replicate data, Table 19,
page 935, Journal of the Association of
Official Analytical Chemists, Volume 49,
No. 5, October, 1966, shall be followed.

[Fhe-above materials-are-hereby-incorpe-

through-Friday] |
Section 2. A fertilizer shall be deemed deficient in the overall index value if the overall
index value is less than ninety-seven (97) percent.

(1) The overall index value shall be[is] calculated by comparing the value guaranteed
with the value found. Unit values of the nutrients used shall be those referred to in KRS
250.401.

(2) Overall index value. Example of calculation for a 10-10-10 grade found to contain
ten and one-tenth (10.1) percent Total Nitrogen (N), ten and two-tenths (10.2) percent
Available Phosphate (P.0s) and ten and one-tenth (10.1) percent Soluble Potash (K20).
Nutrient unit values shall be[are] assumed to be three (3) dollars per unit N, two (2) .
dollars per unit (P20s), and one (1) dollar per unit KzO.

10.0 units N x3 110.0
10.0 units P20s x2 | 20.0
10.0 units K20 x1 | 10.0
Commercial Value 60.0
Guaranteed =

10.0 units of N x3 | 30.3




10.2 units of P20s x2 | 204

10.1 units K20 x1 | 10.1
Commercial Value 60.8
Found =

Overall Index Value = 100(60.8/60.00) =
101.3%

Section 3. Secondary and minor elements shall be deemed deficient if the analysis of
an official sample for any of these elements is below the guarantee by an amount ex-
ceeding the values in the table established in this section.[followingschedule:]

Element Investigational Allow-
ance

Calcium ) | 0.2 unit + 5% of guar-
antee

Magnesi- ) | 0.2 unit + 5% of guar-

um antee

Sulfur ) 10.2 unit + 5% of guar-
antee

Boron ) |0.003 unit + 15% of
guarantee

Molyb- ) |0.0001 unit + 30% of

denum guarantee

Chlorine ) 10.005 unit + 10% of
guarantee

Copper ) |0.005 unit + 10% of
guarantee

[ron ) 10.005 unit + 10% of
guarantee

Manga- ) |0.005 unit + 10% of

nese guarantee

Sodium ) | 0.005 unit + 10% of
guarantee

Zinc ) |0.005 unit + 10% of
guarantee

The maximum allowance

[when]calculated in accordance with

this table[to-the—abeve] shall be one




| (1) unit (1 percent). ' ]

Section 4. Incorporation by Reference.

(1) The following material is incorporated by reference:

(a) “15th Edition (1990) of the Official Methods of Analysis of the AOAC Internation-
al”, 1990; and[:]

(b) “Table 19, page 935, Journal of the Association of Official Analytical Chemists,
Volume 49, No. 5", October, 1966

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copy-
right law, at the Division of Regulatory Services, University of Kentucky, 103 Regulatory
Services Building, Lexington, Kentucky 40546-0275, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to

4:30 p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: Stephen McMurry, Fertilizer and Seed Program Director, University of
Kentucky Division of Regulatory Services, 103 Regulatory Services Building, Lexington, Kentucky
40546, phone (859) 218-2440, fax (859) 257-9478, smc-murry@uky.edu.
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September 29, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capital Annex

Frankfort, KY 40601

Re: 12 KAR Chapter 4, Fertilizer Regulations
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by the administrative regulation numbers listed below, the Division of Regulatory
Services proposes the attached amendments to the administrative regulation numbers listed

below.

12 KAR 4:075 Licenses and fertilizer product registration

12 KAR 4:080 Plant nutrient guarantees and labeling

12 KAR 4:130 Investigational allowances

12 KAR 4:140 Monetary Penalties

12 KAR 4:170 Maximum chlorine guarantees for tobacco fertilizers

Sincerely,

Moo 77 75

Stephen McMurry, Director of Fertilizer and Seed Programs
Division of Regulatory Services

University of Kentucky

103 Regulatory Services Building

Lexington, KY 40546-0275

seeblue.

103 Regulatory Services Building | Lexington, KY 40546-0275 | O:859-257-2785 | F:859-323-9931 | www.rs.uky.edu

At Equal Opportunity Universicy




Final 9/21/2020 11:41 AM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE
AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION

12 KAR 4:140. Monetary penalties.

RELATES TO: KRS 250.396(1), (2)

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 250.421

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 250.421 requires the director to promulgate
administrative requlations necessary to implement KRS 250.361 through 250.461. This adminis-
trative_requlation establishes [Fe—preseribe] the specific method of calculating the monetary
penalties required by the fertilizer law.

Section 1. Penalties for deficiencies in Total Nitrogen (N), Available Phosphate (P20s), soluble
potash (K20), and index value shall be calculated based on the table established in this sec-

tion. [from-the following schedule:]

Number of Investiga- | Penalty Schedule

tional Allowances Be-

low Guarantee

<2 Equal to the monetary
value of the deficiency

>2 <3 Two (2) times the
monetary value of the
deficiency

>3 Three (3) times the
monetary value of the
deficiency

Section 2. Minimum standards and overages of primary nutrients may[ere-allowed-te] re-
duce penalties calculated in Section 1 of this administrative regulation for fertilizer with index
values equal to or greater than ninety-seven (97) percent on the basis of the table established

-in this section. [fellowingschedule;]

Number of Investiga- | Penalty Adjustments
tional Allowances Below
Guarantee

No more than one (1) | Penalty adjusted to
deficiency that is less | zero

than or equal to two (2)
investigational  allow-
ances




No more than one (1)
deficiency that is great-
er than two (2) but less
than three (3) investiga-
tional allowances

Value of overages
may adjust up to
100% of the value of
the deficiencies

Section 3. If[When] a fertilizer is subject
to a penalty from both a primary nutrient
deficiency and an index value deficiency,
only the larger penalty shall apply and[;
however—in no—case—shall] the penalty

Two (2) deficiencies that
are less than three (3)
investigational  allow-
ances; or, no more than
one (1) deficiency that is
equal to or greater than
three (3) but less than
four (4) investigational
allowances

Value of overages
may adjust up to
75% of the value of
the deficiencies

shall not exceed the total value of the ferti-
lizer.

Section 4. Penalties for deficiencies in
secondary and minor elements and for ex-
cess chlorine in tobacco fertilizer shall be
calculated as established in this sec-
tion[from-the following-schedule].

(1) Deficiencies.

Number of Investiga-
tional Allowances Be-
low Guarantee

Penalty Schedule

<2

Equal to the mone-

tary
value of the deficien-

¢y

>2

Two (2) times the
monetary
value of the deficien-

<y

(2) Excess chlorine in tobacco fertilizers. The investigational allowance for maximum chlorine
shall be five-tenths (0.5) percent.

gational Allowances
Above Maximum
Chlorine Guarantee

Number of Investi- | Penalty Schedule

<2 Equal to the difference

in the soluble potash
(for tobacco) unit value
and the nontobacco
soluble potash unit val-
ue

>2

Two (2) times the differ-

ence in the soluble pot-

ash (for tobacco) unit
value and the nonto-
bacco soluble potash
unit value




Section 5. Any penalty assessed under Section 1 of this administrative regulation shall be
added to any penalty assessed under Section 4 of this administrative regulation, and the total
shall be paid by the registrant to the consumer of the lot of fertilizer represented by the sample
within three (3) months after the date of notice from the director, receipts taken therefore and
[promptly] forwarded to the director.

(1) 'f afsaid] consumer cannot be found, the amount of the penalty payments shall be paid
to the Kentucky Agricultural Experiment Station within three (3) months after the date of the no-
tice from the director to the registrant and set aside for purchase of equipment for the sam-
pling, handling, analyzing, and reporting of results of analyses of official samples and for the
education of the Kentucky fertilizer industry on the newest methods in manufacturing blended
fertilizers.

(2) If the lot of fertilizer is on hand at a retail location the penalty payments assessed under
this section shall be used to reduce the retail price of the fertilizer if it is to be relabeled and
sold.

Section 6. [in-ne-case-shall]The total of the penalties assessed under this administrative reg-
ulation shall not exceed the retail value of the fertilizer.

CONTACT PERSON: Stephen McMurry, Fertilizer and Seed Program Director, University of
Kentucky Division of Regulatory Services, 103 Regulatory Services Building, Lexington, Kentucky
40546, phone (859) 218-2440, fax (859) 257-9478, smc-murry@uky.edu.




EEI_I{E University of College of Agriculture, D EGCEITVE

Kentucky: | secsreimmsmie .
SEP 29 2020

ARES

September 29, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capital Annex

Frankfort, KY 40601

Re: 12 KAR Chapter 4, Fertilizer Regulations

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by the administrative regulation numbers listed below, the Division of Regulatory
Services proposes the attached amendments to the administrative regulation numbers listed

below.

12 KAR 4:075 Licenses and fertilizer product registration

12 KAR 4:080 Plant nutrient guarantees and labeling

12 KAR 4:130 Investigational allowances

12 KAR 4:140 Monetary Penalties

12 KAR 4:170 Maximum chlorine guarantees for tobacco fertilizers

Sincerely,

%‘“\ 77 @

Stephen McMurry, Director of Fertilizer and Seed Programs
Division of Regulatory Services

University of Kentucky

103 Regulatory Services Building.
Lexington, KY 40546-0275

seeblue.

103 Regulatory Services Building | Lexington, KY 40546-0275 | O:859-257-2785 | F:859-323-9931 | www.rs.uky.edu

An.Equal Dpportunity Universicy




Final 8/31/2020 11:26 AM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE
AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION

12 KAR 4:170. Maximum chlorine guarantees for tobacco fertilizers.

RELATES TO: KRS 250.366(7), 250.376, 250.411(1)

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 250.421

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 250.421 requires the director of the
Kentucky Agricultural Experiment Station to enforce the provisions of KRS 250.371
through[te] 250451 and to promulgate and enforce administrative regulations neces-
sary to implement KRS 250.371 through[te] 250.451. This administrative regulation es-
tablishes the specific format and conditions for maximum chlorine guarantee for tobac-

co fertilizers, which is necessary for production of quality tobacco.
. ‘ A o

cection-21] (1) [E i dad by Sact ¢ thic adrministrat ational]

All fertilizers sold for or represented for use on field crop tobacco, shall, in addition to
the other guarantees established[specified] by 12 KAR Chapter 4, state a maximum
chlorine guarantee'not to exceed fifty (50) pounds chlorine per acre (equivalent to 100
pounds of muriate of potash per acre) in the following format:
Chlorine (Cl), Maximum 50 Ib./acre

(2) The maximum chlorine guarantee shall be prominently and conspicuously dis-
played on the label as required by KRS 250.376.

(3) The invoice, shipping ticket, or bag label shall:

(a) State the rate of application expressed as pounds or tons of the blended fertilizer
per acre;

(b) State clearly that the fertilizer is for use on tobacco; and

(c) Give directions for use to include a maximum application rate so that no more
than fifty (50) pounds of chlorine shall befis] applied per acre.

(4) The provisions of this administrative regulation shall not apply to fertilizers for use
on plant beds.




CONTACT PERSON: Stephen McMurry, Fertilizer and Seed Program Director, University of
Kentucky Division of Regulatory Services, 103 Regulatory Services Building, Lexington, Kentucky
40546, phone (859) 218-2440, fax (859) 257-9478, smc-murry@uky.edu.
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Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 16 KAR 3:090. Certifications for Advanced Educational Leaders
Dear Co-Chairs:
After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues

raised by 16 KAR 3:090, the Education Professional Standards Board proposes the attached
amendment to 16 KAR 3:090.

Sincerely, &\AM

Cassie L. Trueblood, Policy Advisor and Counsel
Education Professional Standards Board

#TeamKDE#TeamKentucky K E NT UC KY An Equal Opportunity Employer MIF/D



Staff-suggested Amendment

Version 9/22/2020 12:29 p.m.
EDUCATION AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT CABINET
Education Professional Standards Board

16 KKAR 3:090. Certifications for advanced educational leaders.

Page 1
STATUTORY AUTHORITY paragraph
Line 6
After "AUTHORITY: KRS", insert "161.020,".

Page 3

Section 3(5)

Line 11
After "the requirement of", insert “subsection (1)".
Delete "paragraph (1)(a)".

Page 3

Section 3(5)

Line 14
After "pass the assessment if”, insert "he or she pursues”.
Delete “they pursue”.

Page 6
Section 5(2) and (2)(b)
Lines 10 and 13
After "which shall include”, delete “the following".

After "the applicant demonstrates”, delete “the following”.

Page 11
Section 9(3)(a)
Line 17
After “districts that include”, delete “the following”.




Page 13
Section 10(1)
Line 12
After "incorporated by reference:”, return and insert the following:

(a) "Professional Standards for Educational Leaders”, 2015;
(b) "Form CA-1, Application for Kentucky Certification or Change in Salary Rank”,

10/18;

{c) "Form CA-2, Application for Certificate Renewal or Duplicate”, 10/18;

(d) "Form CA-28, Request for Two-Year Certificate for Director of Special
Education”, 8/15; and

(e) "Form CA-40, Request for a One-Year Certificate for Director of Pupil
Personnel”, 8/15.

Delete the remainder of the initial subsection 1 paragraphs (a)-(e).




Andy Beshear Lt. Gov. Jacqueline Coleman

Governor Secretary
Education and Workforce
Development Cabinet
Jason E. Glass, Ed.D.
Commissioner and Chief Learner E @ E U V E
KENTUCKY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
300 Sower Boulevard e Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 OCT - 7 2020
Phone: (502} 564-3141 « www.education.ky.gov
October 8, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 16 KAR 9:010. Professional Certificate for Exceptional Work Experience

Dear Co-Chairs:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommitiee staff of the issues
raised by 16 KAR 9:010, the Education Professional Standards Board proposes the attached
amendment to 16 KAR 9:010.

Sincerely,

D

Cassie L. Trueblodd, Policy Advisor and Counsel
Education Professional Standards Board

#TeamKDE#TeamKenlucky K E N TU C KY An Equal Opportunity Employer MIFID



Staff-suggested Amendment

Version 9/22/2020 12:34 p.m.
EDUCATION AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT CABINET
Education Professional Standards Board

16 KAR 9:010. Professional certificate for exceptional work experience.

Page 1
Section 1(2)
Lines 15 and 16
After “elementary, exceptional children”, insert ",

Page 2
Section 2(1)
Lines 2 and 3
After "exceptional work experience”, delete the following:

"as defined in Section 1 of this administrative regulation”.




Andy Beshear
Governor

October 1, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David, Co-Chair

KENTUCKY BOARD OF PHARMACY
125 Holmes Street, Suite 300
State Office Building Annex
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
Phone (502) 564-7910
Fax (502) 696-3806
pharmacy.ky.gov

c¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

702 Capitol Avenue
Capitol Annex, 029
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

RE: 201 KAR 2:311. Compounding drugs for veterinary use.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale

Board Members
Peter P. Cohron, R.Ph.
Jody Forgy, Consumer
John Fuller, R.Ph.
Craig Martin, Pharm D.
Ron Poole, R.Ph.

Jill Rhodes, Pharm.D.

Executive Director
Larry A. Hadley, R.Ph.

After discussion with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues raised by
201 KAR 2:311, Compounding drugs for veterinary use, the Kentucky Board of Pharmacy proposes
the attached amendment to 201 KAR 2:311.

Sincerely,

Larry A. Hadley, R.Ph.
Executive Director

Kentucky Board of Pharmacy
125 Holmes Street, Suite 300
State Office Building Annex
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com

= =

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D



Final 10-1-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Board of Pharmacy

201 KAR 2:311. Compounding_drugs for veterinary use.

RELATES TO; KRS 315.191(1)(a),_321.441[]

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 315.191(1)(a)

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 315.191(1)(a) authorizes[reguires]
the board to promulgate administrative regulations necessary to regulate and control all matters
relating to pharmacists, pharmacist interns, pharmacy technicians, and pharmacies. This admin-
istrative regulation establishes requirements forfaddresses] compounding for veterinary use.

Section 1. The pharmacist shall receive a written, verbal, facsimile, or electronic re-
quest for a compounded drug from a practitioner, indicating the formulation, strength,

and guantltv ordered [A—pha#maeﬁt—pha#maemnmr—plmmaey—teehmman—may

Section 2. A compounded drug containing [that-eentains] a controlled substance shall only
be compounded for patient specific dispensation [direetly] from the pharmacy to the ultimate
user.

Section 3. (1) A pharmacist, pharmacist intern, or pharmacy technician may prepare a
non-controlled compounded druq to be dispensed for veterinary use or administration
that is either [{]institutional or ambulatory,f)] and which does not designate a specific pa-
tient for the purpose of direct administration to patients for:

(a)Emergency treatment;

(b) [;] Situations when a time delay would negatively affect a patient outcome;[;] or

(c) Diagnostic purposes.

(2) The compounded drug shall have a beyond use date.

(3) The veterinary institution or ambulatory unit shall maintain only an _emergency

stock supply.
(4) A veterinarian or licensed veterinary technician.f{Jas defined in KRS 321.441, may [}

shall—b&able%el admlmster a compounded druq for vetermarv use. [Ihe«pharmaast—shau

Section 4. Label Requirements. Except as provided for in Section 5, a label shall be gen-
erated for the compounded drug and shall include:

(1) The name of the requesting veterinarian[practitiones];

(2) The designated name and strength of the compounded drug;

(3) The quantity dispensed;

(4) If for a specific patient and the patient is a food producing animal, the withdrawal
time;

(8) A lot or batch number of the compounded drug;

(6[66)]) The beyond use date for the compounded drug;

(7[¢6}]) The date the compounded drug is dispensed;




(8[¢A]) The pharmacy's name, address, and telephone number;

(8[€8}]) Any special storage requirements:

(10[(83]) A notation stating "For [Office-or-tnstitutional-administrationfor] veterinary use™:
and

(11[¢403]) Any auxiliary label required for the compounded drug.

Section 5. (1) A non-controlled substance [(+4)-The] compounded drug shall be [admin-
istered-ot] dispensed by a[the] veterinarian [er-veterinarian-technician] for emergency take
home use when in his or her professional judgament, failure to provide the drug would re-
sult in potential harm to the patient.

(2) IffWhen] dispensed from the veterinary institution or _ambulatory unit, a_com-
pounded drug prescription for a veterinary patient shall be for up to a 14-day supply in
accordance with the veterinarian prescription and dispensation labeling requirements as
establlshed[feundl in 201 KAR 16:600. [forup-to-a-14-day-supply-in-accordance-with-vet-
enaa#an—labe.%g#eqwremen@s—]

Section 6[8]. The prescription for the compounded drug shall be kept pursuant to 201 KAR
2:170,

CONTACT PERSON: Larry Hadley, Executive Director, Kentucky Board of Pharmacy, 125
Holmes Street, Suite 300, State Office Building Annex, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, phone (502)
564-7910, fax (502) 696-3806, email Larry.Hadley@ky.gov.
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KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE

Andy Besh Hurstbourne Office Park
Gov;'rno, ear 310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B www.kbml.ky.gov
Louisville, Kentucky 40222 (502) 429-7150
Qctober 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 9:016. Restrictions on use of amphetamine and amphetamine-like
anorectic controlled substances.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by 201 KAR 9:016, Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure proposes the attached
amendment to 201 KAR 9:016.

Sincerely,

M - vlth/

Leanne K. Diakov

General Counsel

Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure
310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B
Louisville, KY 40222

‘;‘v‘}\
KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com ]@”rud(y

NBEIDLED SREIT An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D



Final Version: 10/8/2020
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT
KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE

2071 KAR 9:016. Restrictions on use of amphetamine and amphetamine-like anorectic
controlied substances.

Page 1
NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY
Line 11
After "KRS 311.842(1)", insert “requires”.
Delete "authorizes”.

Page 1

Section 1(1)

Line 15
After “is defined”, insert "by".
Delete "in".

Page 1
Section 1(3)
Line 18 .
After “(3)", insert the following:

H

‘Licensee” means a person licensed to practice medicine or osteopathy or to
practice as a physician assistant in the Commonwealth of Kentucky and authorized
to prescribe, dispense, or administer controlled substances unless otherwise
exempted by law.

4)

Pages 1-2

Section 1(4)

Line 21
Before "(4)", insert "(5)".
Delete "(4)".

Lines 1-3
After “pursuant to”, insert the following:
902 KAR 55:015, Section 3 or 4
Delete the remainder of this subsection in its entirety except for the period.

1




Page 2
Section 1(5)
Lines 4-7

Delete subsection (5) in its entirety.

Page 2

Section 2

Line 9
After “or giving", insert “an”.
Delete "a".

SO ——




Andy Beshear

KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE

Hurstbourne Office Park

310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 18 www.kbml.ky.gov

Governor Louisville, Kentucky 40222 (502) 429-7150

October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 9:200. National Practitioner Data Bank Reports.
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by 201 KAR 9:200, Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure proposes the attached
amendment to 201 KAR 9:200,

Sincerely,

yg&bn—~ ’ i&uzw
Léanne K. Diakov
General Counsel
Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure
310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B
Louisville, KY 40222

\’\\.a?;a\/
P
KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com n Equal Opportunity Employer
i atuck

UNBRIDLED SPIRIT



Final: 10/8/2020
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT
KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
201 KAR 9:200. National Practitioner Data Bank Reports,

Page 1
STATUTORY AUTHORITY
Line 6
After “218A.205(3)(g),", insert “(h}".

Page 1
NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY
Line 11
After "311.842(1)", insert “requires”.,
Delete "authorizes”.




KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE

Hurstbourne Office Park
Andy Beshear 310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 18 www. kbml.ky.gov

Governor Louisville, Kentucky 40222 (502} 429-7150

October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 9:210. Criminal background checks required for all new applicants.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by 201 KAR 9:210, Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure proposes the attached
amendment to 201 KAR 9:210,

Sincerely,

0§M—K. Prickoy

Leanne K., Diakov

General Counsel

Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure
310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B
Louisville, KY 40222

‘,"‘%k
KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com m f u(ky An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D

UNBRIDLED SPIRIT




Final: 10/8/2020
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT
KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
201 KAR 9:210. Criminal background checks required for all new applicants.

Page 1

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

Line 6
After “218A.205", insert "(8)".
Delete "(3)(g)".

Page 1
NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY
Line 10
After “311.842(1)", insert "requires”.
Delete “authorizes”.
Line 17
After "KRS 218A.205", insert “(8)".
Delete "(3)(g)".




Andy Beshear

KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE

Hursthourne Office Park

e ) .kbml.ky.gov
310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B WwWw
Governor Louisviile, Kentucky 40222 (502) 429-7150
October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KYY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 9:260. Professional standards for prescribing, dispensing, and
administering controlled substances.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by 201 KAR 9:260, Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure proposes the attached
amendment to 201 KAR 9:260.

Sincerely,

=KDy e

eanne K. Diakov
General Counsel
Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure
310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B
Louisville, KY 40222

ey

/

= S ‘
entuckyUnbridledSpirit.com n Equal Opportunity Employer WF/D
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Final: 10/8/2020
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT
KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDIAL LICENSURE

201 KAR 9:260. Professional standards for prescribing, dispensing, and administering
controlled substances.

Page 2

Section 1(2)

Lines 6-7
After “required under KRS", insert "311.854".
Delete "341.854".

Page 2

Section 1(2){b)

Lines 14-15
After “or the supervising physician”, insert "becomes”.
Delete "become”.

Page 2

Section 1(3)

Line 23
After “to prescribing”, insert a comma.
Delete "or”,
After "dispensing”, insert a comma,

Page 9
Section 4(2)(f)3.
Line 21
After "prescribe, dispense”, insert a comma.

Page 11
Section 4(2)(j)
Line 10
After “prescribing, dispensing”, insert a comma.




KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDICAL. LICENSURE

Hurstbourne Office Park
é“dy Beshear 310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 18 www.kbml. ky.gov
overnor Louisville, Kentucky 40222 (502) 429-7150

October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 9:360. Continuing education requirements for physician assistants.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the
issues raised by 201 KAR 9:360, Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure proposes the attached
amendment to 201 KAR 9:360.

Sincerely,

AT Db

Leanne K. Diakov

General Counsel

Kentucky Board of Medical Licensure
310 Whittington Parkway, Suite 1B
Louisville, KY 40222

»f‘\-ﬁi‘&\f
A=

KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com K@? t ud(y An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D

UNBRIDLED SPIRIT ®



Final: 10/1/2020
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT
KENTUCKY BOARD OF MEDIAL LICENSURE
201 KAR 9:360. Continuing education requirements for physician assistants.

Page 2
Section 2{2)(e)
Line 23
After "Any combination of”, delete “the”.

Page 3
Section 2(5){a)
Line 11
After "board-approved continuing education”, insert “under”.

Page 4
Section 3
Line 1
After "promulgation of this”, insert “administrative”,




KENTUCKY BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS

P. O. Box 1360 E @ E H V ED\

Andy Beshear Frankfort, Kentucky 40602
Governor Phone (502) 892-4250

Fax (502) 564-4818
http://kbce.ky.gov 0CT -9 2020

October 9, 2020

ARRS

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 21:041

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues raised by 201
KAR 21:041, the Kentucky Board of Examiners of Chiropractic proposes the attached amendment to 201 KAR
21:041.

Sincerely,

%A&ﬂ/ ﬂc',

Chair, Kentucky Board ot Examiners ot Chiropractic
500 Mero Street

P.O. Box 1360

Frankfort, KY 40601

Py

entucky™
KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com K UNBRIDLED spm,-ry An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D
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Final 9-25-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Board of Chiropractic Examiners

201 KAR 21:041. Licensing; standards, fees.

RELATES TO: KRS 312.085, 312.095, 312.145, 312.175

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 312.019, 312.085, 312.095, 312.175

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 312.019(9) authorizes the Kentucky
Board of Chiropractic Examiners to promulgate administrative regulations consistent with KRS
Chapter 312, regulating the practice of chiropractic. This administrative regulation establishes
the procedures relating to application for licensure, license renewal, and fees.

Section 1. Initial Application. An applicant for initial licensure shall submit to the board:
(1) A completed New Licensee Application; and
(2) A nonrefundable application fee of $350.

Section 2. Licenses. Each license by the board shall:

(1) Set forth the:

(a) Name of the issuing board,

(b) Name of the licensee;

(c) Number of license; and

(d) Date of the license issuance;

(2) Be signed by a minimum of three (3) members of the board; and
(3) Have the seal of the board affixed.

Section 3. License Renewal. (1)(a) Each licensee of the board shall annually renew the li-
cense on or before the first day of March.

(b)1. A licensee seeking active status shall:

a. Submit a completed Application for Annual License Renewal; and

b. Pay a renewal fee of $250.

2. A licensee seeking inactive status shall:

a. Submit a completed Annual Inactive License Renewal Application; and

b. Pay a renewal fee of seventy-five (75) dollars.

(2) The amount of the restoration fee established by KRS 312.175(2) and (4) shall be $250
per year, or any part of a year.

(3) Continuing education requirements.

(a) Each active licensee shall complete at least twelve (12) hours of board-approved continu-
ing education, with; 1. [z

%wmm&m—eﬁ%»e{é)—hew&eb@amed—wﬁmmmueky—] A minimum of six (6) hours of the
required twelve (12) hours [must-be] obtained at a live event, which is an event at which both
the licensee and presenter are present in-person;[:]

2. No more than eight (8) hours completed in a day; and

3. Proof of completion submitted with the Application for Annual License Renewal upon re-
quest by the Board.[;]

(b) A new licensee shall complete a two (2) hour jurisprudence course, provided by the

board, [prier-te-thefirstlicense-renewal] within one (1) year of the date of the licensee’s[their]




initial license approval. The course shall account for two (2) of the twelve (12) hours of continu-
ing education required by paragraph (a) of this subsection.

(c) A new licensee shall[must] complete the licensee’s[their] required twelve (12) hours of
continuing education by the first relicensing period following the completion of his or herftheir]
first calendar year in practice.

(d) An inactive licensee may renew the inactive license without meeting the continuing edu-
cation requirements required by this subsection.

Section 4. Activation of an Inactive License.

(1) To activate an inactive license, a licensee shall submit:

(a) A completed Application for Activation or Reinstatement of Kentucky License;

(b) The renewal fee required by Section 3(1)(b) of this administrative regulation;

(c) Proof that the licensee has met the continuing education requirements established by
Section 3(3) of this administrative regulation; and

(d) License verification from each state or jurisdiction from which the licensee has held a li-
cense.

(2) If the licensee was inactive for more than four (4) years, proof of successfully passing the
Special Purposes Examination for Chiropractic given by the National Board of Chiropractic Ex-
aminers within the past six (6) months shall be submitted to the board.

Section 5. Denial or Refusal of License. The board may deny or refuse to renew a license if
an applicant or licensee:

(1) Has a conviction for a felony or violation of any law involving moral turpitude; or

(2) Violates any of the provisions of KRS Chapter 312 or 201 KAR Chapter 21.

Section 6. Change of Address. Each licensee shall notify the board within ten (10) days of
each change of mailing address or place of business.

Section 7. Incorporation by Reference.

(1) The following material is incorporated by reference:

(a) "New Licensee Application”, 2016;

(b) "Application for Annual License Renewal", September 2020[November-2009],

(c) "Annual Inactive License Renewal Application”, 2013; and

(d) "Application for Activation or Reinstatement of Kentucky License", 2013.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners, [209-Seuth-Green-Street-Glasgow;-Kentucky
424421 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30
p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: David C. Trimble, Board Attorney, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Ken-
tucky 40601, phone +1 (502) 782-8823, fax +1 (502) 564-3969, email DavidC.Trimble@ky.gov.

MATERIAL INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
The agency needs to file one (1) clean copy of the “Application for Annual License Re-

newal” at the time that it files this staff suggested substitute that includes the following
changes:

¢ Includes the September 2020 Edition Date
« Updates for consistency with the changes made to the continuing education re-
quirements in this administrative regulation




- ~ APPLICATION FOR ANNUAL LICENSE RENEWAL
~ KENTUCKY STATE BOARD OF CHIROV RACTIC | EXAMINERS

Important Notice:

Completion of this application form is necessary for consideration for license renewal
under KRS 312 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. All licensees have an obligation to
update and supplement the information and responses on file with the Board office
if they change. Failure to supplement the information and responses provided on this
application may result in denial or other appropriate action.

Carefully follow the directions on this application form. In addition, note the fol-

lowing:
1. Print legibly with black or blue ink only.
2. The renewal fee, or any part thereof, is NOT refundable.

Supporting Documentation and Fees:
If you are applying for license renewal as an actively practicing Kentucky Licensed Chiropractor
you MUST submit the following documents and fees:

A ACTIVE LICENSE
- $250 Renewal Fee
- Proof of completion of continuing education must only be submitted if requested by the
Board

If you are applying for an INACTIVE status license renewal you MUST submit the following fee:

A INACTIVE LICENSE
- $75 Inactive License Renewal Fee

If you are applying for a HARDSHIP license renewal, please provide an affidavit or letter from
your doctor outlining your medical hardship.
A HARDSHIP LICENSE

Your application is NOT considered complete until ALL supporting documents and fees

have been received by the Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners. INCOMPLETE
RENEWAL APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED TO THE LICENSEE.

NO RENEWAL WILL BE PROCESSED UNTIL ALL REQUIRED
DOCUMENTATION IS RECEIVED

THERE WILL BE A $300 LATE FEE ASSESSED TO ANY
LICENSE NOT RENEWED PRIOR TO MARCH 1.
ABSOLUTELY NO EXCEPTIONS!

A ]

KY License Renewal Application-Revised 9/2020 -1-




PART I: Applicant Identifying Information

Complete this section of the form by providing all of the requested information. You must notify the Kentucky Board of
Chiropractic Examiners, in writing, of any address changes after you file this application in order to receive any further
information.

1. Last Name | 2. First Name | 3. mi | 4. Suffix (JR.)

5. Business Mailing Address including zip code (If PO Box, Must provide street address as well)

6. Home Mailing Address including zip code

7. Identify Preferred mailing address for Official Board Use. 0 Business 0 Home

Note: The preferred mailing address shall be available to the public.

8. Identify any maiden name, surname, or any other names or aliases you have been known by or
used and identify the reason for your name change.

9. County in which you Practice: 10. Date of Birth 1.
MM/DD/IYYYY {Q Male
Q Female

12. Contact Information
(a) Telephone Numbers:
Office:
Home:
Cell:
(b) Fax number:

(c) E-mail address:

13. Social Security Number:

14. Name of Chiropractic facility at which you practice:

15. Name of Owner(s) of Chiropractic facility at which you practice:

16. Please attach a list of all shareholders of the Chiropractic facility at which you practice:
(include Name, Address, Occupation and percentage of ownership of each shareholder)

17. If your facility employs a Management Company, please provide name and address of management company

PART ll: Education Information

1. SPECIALIZED CERTIFICATION
Have you completed any specialty certification(s) consisting of 300 or more hours? YESUNOQ
If Yes, Name of Specialty Certification and Certifying Agency

KY License Renewal Application-Revised 9/2020 -2-




PART Illl. Work History/Practical Experience
This Section Must Be Completed by ALL NEW LICENSEES, and All Licensees Who

Have Changed Work Locations Since the Last License Renewal Application.

Complete each of the following items. List all CHIROPRACTIC RELATED employment, chronologically for the past five (5) years to

the present, beginning with your present employment. If you have never been employed, insert “N/A” for Not Applicable in Box 1. You
are authorized to photocopy this form if additional space is required.

Explain any breaks in employment history of greater than 6 months.

1.Name of Business/ Institution:

Job Title:

Address/Phone Number of Business/Institution:

Name of Supervisor:

Description of Duties Performed:

Date of Employment: Hours Worked per Week:
FROM: __ __ [/___ __

Type of Employment:
TO: -

% Full-time Q Part-time

Reason for employment termination/resignation?

2.Name of Business/ Institution:

Job Title:

Address/Phone Number of Business/Institution:

Name of Supervisor:

Date of Employment: Hours Worked per Week:

Description of Duties Performed:

FROM: _ [

Type of Employment:

TO: !

% Full-time Q Part-time

Reason for employment termination/resignation?

3.Name of Business/ Institution:

Job Title:

Address/Phone Number of Business/Institution:

Name of Supervisor:

Date of Employment: Hours Worked per Week:

Description of Duties Performed:

FROM: 1

/

Type of Employment:

TO:

¥ Full-time QO Part-time

Reason for employment termination/resignation?

4,Name of Business/ Institution:

Job Title:

Address/Phone Number of Business/Institution:

Name of Supervisor:

Description of Duties Performed:

Date of Employment: Hours Worked per Week:

FROM: I

Type of Employment:
TO:

% Full-time QO Part-time

Reason for employment termination/resignation?

KY License Renewal Application-Revised 9/2020




Please answer each of the following questions by putting a check (b') in the appropriate box on the right. You must answer
each question with a “Yes” or “No” response as no other response is acceptable. All “Yes” answers MUST be explained in
detail in a separate SIGNED and NOTARIZED affidavit. The affidavit should include all relevant dates and identify the relevant
jurisdiction and/or entity involved. Failure to disclose any of the requested information may resuit in the denial of your

PART IV. Personal History Information

application or other appropriate action.

Please read and answer each question carefully, some of the ques-

tions have changed!

Have you ever had any application for a chiropractic license refused or
denied by any licensing authority?

YES O

NOQ

Have you ever been refused or denied the privilege of taking an examination
required for a chiropractic license?

YES Q

NoQ

Have you ever voluntarily surrendered your chiropractic license?

YESQ

NOQ

Have you ever allowed your chiropractic license to lapse, or had a
limited license issued by any chiropractic licensing authority?

YES O

NoQ

Have you ever had any chiropractic license revoked?

YES O

NoQ

Have you ever been the subject of disciplinary action with regard to your
chiropractic license or been sanctioned by any chiropractic licensing
authority other than Kentucky?

YES O

NO O

Have your chiropractic privileges ever been restricted or terminated by
any chiropractic licensing authority other than Kentucky?

YES O

NOoQ

To your knowledge have any unresolved or pending complaints ever been filed
against you with any chiropractic licensing agency other than Kentucky?

Is there any disciplinary action pending against you by any licensing
jurisdiction? If YES, where and when?

YEsQ

NOQ

10.

Have you ever been charged with or convicted (including a nolo

contendere plea or guilty plea) of a felony (or criminal offense) in any state

or in federal court (other than minor traffic violations) whether or not
sentence was imposed or suspended?

If YES, in addition to the affidavit, attach a certified copy of the court records regarding
your conviction, the nature of the offense date of discharge, if applicable, as well as
a statement from the probation or parole officer.

YES O

NOQh

1.

Have you ever been pardoned from a felony (or criminal) conviction?

YES O

NO Q)

12.

Have you ever been charged with or convicted (including a nolo contendere
plea or guilty plea) of any violation of any local, state or federal law, whether or
not sentence was imposed or suspended? (Excluding minor traffic violations)

YES O

NO QO

13.

Have you ever been charged with or convicted (including a nolo contendere
plea or guilty plea) of a violation of any federal or state drug law(s) or rule(s)
whether or not sentence was imposed or suspended?

YEs U

NO O

14,

Do you currently have any disease or condition that interferes with your ability
to competently and safely perform the essential functions of chiropractic?

YES O

NoQ

15.

Have you ever been named as a defendant to a civil suit related to your pro-
fession (i.e. malpractice)? If YES, please provide Patient Name, Date, etc.

YES O

NoQ

16.

Do you operate your chiropractic practice under a general or limited partner-
ship? If “yes,” how long has the partnership been in existence?

List all the partners on additional sheet, including name, address, occupation of
each partner.

YES O

NoQ

17.

Do you own or work for a practice that is a sole-proprietor, S corporation,
LLC, LLP, or other?

YES O

NoQd

18.

IF YES, ARE ALL SHAREHOLDERS LICENSED CHIROPRACTORS?

YESQ

NO O

KY License Renewal Application-Revised 9/2020 -4 -




19. Have you ever been court-martialed or discharged other than honorably from
the armed service? YESO NOD

20. Are you now, or have you ever, been in arrears with the Kentucky Higher
Education Assistance Authority? If yes, please provide documentation that YEST NOOQO
this matter has been resolved.

PART V. Certifying Statement

“By virtue of filing this application, | do solemnly swear or affirm that | am of good moral character,
and that | understand the instructions and terms as set forth in this application form, that | have
personally completed this form, that the information given in this application is true, correct, and
complete to the best of my knowledge. | hereby authorize The Kentucky Board of Chiropractic
Examiners to verify any and all information contained in this application.”

Signature of Applicant (Do not print)

Printed Name of Applicant

Date

PLEASE RETURN ALL PAGES OF
APPLICATION, INCLUDING COVER PAGE

PLEASE SEND YOUR COMPLETED APPLICATION TO:

KENTUCKY BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS
P.O. BOX 1360
FRANKFORT, KY 40602

KENTUCKY LAW
The Late Fee is NOW $300!
Any license not renewed within 45 days of
the mailing of a delinquent notice will be
automatically revoked!

KY License Renewal Application-Revised 9/2020 -5-




Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners Continuing Education Application

*Complete the application in its entirety. All required information and documents must be included.
Failure to do so will result in a delay in processing the application and possible denial of the course.

*Applications must be received 60 days prior to the date the course is to take place.

* Kentucky law allows for a maximum of 8 hours of continuing education to be obtained per day.
*A Course Outline/Syllabus must be included with this application.

*A CV for each course instructor must be included with this application.

*Each course must have an objective for the entire course or an objective for each section taught by
each instructor.

*No CF credit can be given for Philosophy or Practice Building per KY law.
*PACE certified entities applying for online CE credits MUST apply through PACE.
*All fees are non-refundable.
-Live Events Only -A minimum fee of $25.00 for a live one-time event of 16 hours or less. Any

event over 16 hours will be $2.00 per requested credit hour with a maximum fee of $100.00. For
events with multiple dates and locations there will be an additional $25.00 fee.

-Online Events Only- A minimum fee of $25.00 for a live one-time event or recorded event of 16
hours or less. Any event over 16 hours will be $2.00 per requested credit hour with a maximum
fee of $100.00. The online event will remain approved for 1 calendar year.

-Live Event That Will Also Be Recorded To Be Used As Online CE — A minimum $50.00 for an
event of 16 hours or less. Any event over 16 hours will be $2.00 per requested credit hour with a
maximum fee of $100.00. The online event will remain approved for 1 calendar year.

Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners 9/2020



KENTUCKY BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS

P. O. Box 1360
Andy Beshear Frankfort, Kentucky 40602
Governor Phone (502) 892-4250

Fax (502) 564-4818
http://kbce.ky.gov

October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c¢/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 21:042

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues raised by 201
KAR 21:042, the Kentucky Board of Examiners of Chiropractic proposes the attached amendment to 201 KAR
21:042.

Sincerely,

%{ﬁdﬂ/ pC,

Chair, Kentucky Board of Examiners ot Chiropractic
500 Mero Street

P.O. Box 1360

Frankfort, KY 40601

I(ﬂ?tuJe 7
KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com UNBRIDLED sp/mry An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D



Final 9-25-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Board of Chiropractic Examiners

201 KAR 21:042. Standards, application and approval of continuing education

RELATES TO: KRS 312.085, 312.095, 312.145, 312.175

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 312.019, 312.085, 312.095, 312.175

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 312.019(9) authorizes the Kentucky
Board of Chiropractic Examiners to promulgate administrative regulations consistent with KRS
Chapter 312, regulating the practice of chiropractic. This administrative regulation establishes
standards for continuing education and the procedures relating to the [standards;] applica-
tion[;] and approval offfer] continuing education.

Section 1. Standards for Continuing Education. (1) Continuing education shall be either:

(a) A post graduate course of study at or sponsored by a chiropractic college accredited by
the Council on Chiropractic Education or its successors; or

(b) A continuing education program approved by the board, or a committee designated by
the board to act between sessions of the board.

(2) The continuing education program shall be:

(a) Sponsored by a national or state chartered organization of chiropractors; and

(b) Open to all doctors of chiropractic in Kentucky who desire to attend.

(3) The instructors and speakers shall be in the field of chiropractic, chiropractic education, or
allied sciences.

(A)[fa) 4 The programs to be presented shall contain subjects of clinical benefit to licen-
sees and on a postgraduate level of education.

Section 2. Requirements for Online Continuing Education. (1) Any entity submitting an online
course for approval shallfmust] be Pre-Approved Continuing Education (PACE) Commis-
sion certified and submit the program through the PACE pre-check program using the PACE
Pre-Check Expedited Course Submission for Kentucky form. Any entity not certified
through PACE shallfean] submit an application for approval for a program directly to the board
through December 31, 2020 by completing the Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners
Continuing Education Application.

(2) The program shall:

(a) Have a mechanism to ensure that users view each page of the program:

(b)[{3)-The-program-shall] Ensure the user has earned all of the time required for the pro-
gram;

(c)[{4)-The-program-shall] Have a mechanism in place for the user to be able to contact the
provider reqarding questions about the continuing education programs;

(d)[{5)-The-program-shall] Include a mechanism to evaluate the user's knowledge of the
subject matter contained in the program;

(e)[(6)-The program-shall] Provide a printed verification or allow the user to print verification
only upon completion of the program; and




(D[(Z)-The-program-shall] Ensure that the course time cannot be earned away from the
program and that[shall-ensure] automatic lock out occurs if the keyboard becomes unattend-
ed.fz]

(3)[(8)] Programs shall be completed and earned one (1) at a time. The user of a program
shall not earn credit for multiple windows or programs completed simultaneously.

Section 3. Application for Approval. (1) The sponsoring party of a proposed educational pro-
gram for license renewal shall apply for approval of the program prior to its presentation by
submitting either the PACE Pre-Check Expedited Course Submission for Kentucky form
if PACE certified, or if not certified through PACE by submitting the Kentucky Board of
Chiropractic Examiners Continuing Education Application, and by providing to the board:

(a) The name of the course;

(b) The name of the sponsoring organization;

(c) The objective of the program;

(d) The number of classroom hours over which the educational program will be presented
and the dates presented;

(e) The names of the instructors and speakers and the name and address of the institution
with which they are associated, if applicable;

(f) The instructors' or speakers' educational background and other relevant qualifications;

(g) The name and address of the person authorized to certify attendance; and

(h) An [A-nen-refundable] educational program review fee as established in subparagraph

1. through 3 of thls paragraph [eﬂ[—twenty-me—(zé)—de%;s—fepppegmn%—wM%e—@%—date

1.[] L|ve Events Onty A Ilve event is an event at whlch both the presenter and at-
tendee are present in person. A minimum fee of twenty-five (25) dollars for a live one-time
event of sixteen (16) hours or less. Any event over sixteen (16) hours will be two (2) dol-
lars[$2.00] per requested credit hour with a maximum fee of $100. For events with multiple
dates and locations there will be an additional twenty-five (25) dollar fee.

2.J¢i)] Online Events Only - A minimum fee of twenty-five (25) dollars for a live one-time
event or recorded event of sixteen (16) hours or less. Any event over sixteen (16) hours will be
two (2) dollars[$2.00] per requested credit hour with a maximum fee of $100. The online event
shallfwill] remain approved for one (1) calendar year.

3.[¢ii#)] Live Event That Will Also Be Recorded To Be Used As Online CE — A minimum fee
of fifty (50) dollars for an event of sixteen (16) hours or less. Any event over sixteen (16) hours
will be two (2) dollars per requested credit hour with a maximum fee of $100. The online event
shallfwill] remain approved for one (1) calendar year.

(2) The educational program may be monitored by an officer of the board, the field coordina-
tor of the board, or a person designated by the president of the board.

(3)(a) A proposed program [shail-be submitted-to] shall[must] be received by the board for
approval at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of the presentation.

(b) The board, or a designee of the board to act between meetings of the board, shall give
written notification of the board's approval or disapproval of the program to the sponsoring party
not more than thirty (30) days after receiving the proposed educational program.

(c) An online course shallfwill] remain approved for one (1) calendar year from a date of the
event provider’s[previders] choosing iffse-long-as] that date is no earlier than sixty (60) days
from the date the board recelved the submxssmn for approval [B.Mtlmn—tmn%(agé—daysref—eemple—




Section 4. Incorporation[incorporated] by Reference. (1) The following material is[forms
are] incorporated by reference:

(a) “PACE Pre-Check Expedited Course Submission for Kentucky form[application]
(2020); and

(b) “Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners Continuing Education Applicationffer
approval-to-provide-CE-program]' September [{]2020[})].

(2) These materials may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copy-
right law [reviewed] at the Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners, 500 Mero Street, Frank-
fort, Kentucky 40601, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m,

CONTACT PERSON: David C. Trimble, Board Attorney, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Ken-
tucky 40601, phone +1 (502) 782-8823, fax +1 (502) 564-3969, email DavidC.Trimble@ky.gov.

MATERIAL INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
The agency needs to file one (1) clean copy of the “Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Ex-

aminers Continuing Education Application” at the time that it files this staff suggested
substitute that includes the following changes:

¢ Includes the September 2020 Edition Date
e Updates for consistency with the changes made to the continuing education re-
quirements in this administrative regulation




Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners Continuing Education Application

Course Title

Organization or School Presenting the Course

Name of Cosponsor if Applicable

Contact information of the person filling out this application:

Name Phone
Email Fax
Address

For Live Events- Date(s) and Location(s)

For Online Events — Please choose a date that you want credit for the course to begin once approved.
- 60 days from when the application was received by the Board

- Choose a Date - {no earlier than 60 days from when the application was received)

Exact Hours the Course will be offered

Total Hours Requested

Total Hours Requested For Each Day

Maximum Hours Doctor Can Attain/ Day

Maximum Hours Doctor Can Attain/Course

Name(s) of Instructor(s)-- *CV Must Be Attached for Each Instructor (1 2 pages of CV is sufficient)

Provide the name of the attendance officer, method of certifying/assuring attendance, and who maintains
the attendance records.

I hereby certify that the information included in this application is correct and nothing has been omitted.
| also certify that all required enclosures have been included.

Print Name Title

Signature Date

Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners 9/2020




KENTUCKY BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS

P. O. Box 1360
Andy Beshear Frankfort, Kentucky 40602
Governor Phone (502) 892-4250

Fax (502) 564-4818
hitp://kbce.ky.qov

October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 201 KAR 21:095

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues raised by 201
KAR 21:095, the Kentucky Board of Examiners of Chiropractic proposes the attached amendment to 201 KAR
21:095. .

Sincerely,

%{/uﬂ/ ﬂc

Chair, Kentucky Board ot Examiners ot Chiropractic
500 Mero Street

P.O. Box 1360

Frankfort, KY 40601

Kentud} 7
KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com UNBRIDLED sp,R,-,-y An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D




Final 9-25-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Board of Chiropractic Examiners

201 KAR 21:095. Licensure, registration, and standards of persons performing peer
review.

RELATES TO: KRS 312.175, 312.200(3)

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 312.019(9)

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 312.019(9) authorizes the board to
promulgate administrative regulations consistent with KRS Chapter 312 governing the prac-
tice of chiropractic. KRS 312.200(3) requires that persons performing peer review of chiro-
practic claims be licensed by the board, complete annually a board approved utilization review
course, and annually register with the board and pay a registration fee. This administrative regu-
lation establishes the requirements for the licensure, review course, registration, and registration
fee for persons to perform peer review services.

Section 1. Requirements for Licensure and Registration. A person performing chiropractic
peer review shall:

(1) Hold a current active license to practice chiropractic within the Commonwealth of Ken-
tucky;

(2) (a) For the first year that a person seeks to register to perform peer review, have previ-
ously successfully completed a course consisting of a minimum of 100 hours of utilization re-
view and independent medical examination from a chiropractic college or university accredited
by the Counc:ll on Chiropractic Educatlon and

view, have completed six (B) hours of continuing education in topics specifically related to utili-
zation review and approved by the board[KBCE] to meet this requirement which shall be ob-
tained at a live, in-person event[;which-shall-be-obtained] within the Commonwealth of Ken-
tucky: and

(3) Register annually with the board, by June 1 of each year, by:

(a) Presenting evidence of satisfactory compliance with the requirements established in this
section and of having met the education requirements of KRS 312.175;

(b) Completing the Registration Form for Persons Performing Peer Review of Kentucky Chi-
ropractic Claims; and

(c) Paying a registration fee of fifty (50) dollars.

Section 2. In performing peer review activities, a licensee shall:

(1) Render the actual review service and documented report;

(2) Personally retain a copy of all records associated with each peer review case for a mini-
mum of seven (7) years;

(3) Employ minimum standards associated with the practice of chiropractic and comply with
the code of ethical conduct established in 201 KAR 21:015;

(4) Provide a report that includes the rationale for the determination in order that the licensee
provider is given adequate information to appeal,




(5) Sign all reports, unless the review is performed under the Kentucky Chiropractic Board of
Examiners Peer Review Committee, in which case, the board’s administrator or designee shall
sign the determination;

(6) Review in accordance with accepted standards as defined in 201 KAR 21:001;

(7) Review thoroughly and rely on all documents provided to the reviewer;

(8) List in the resulting report all documents provided to the reviewer and list all documents
reviewed; and

(9) Personally conduct the review and prepare the report.

Section 3. Complaint Procedure Related to Peer Reviewers. A complaint against a peer re-
viewer alleging a violation of this administrative regulation or any other provision of KRS Chap-
ter 312 or 201 KAR Chapter 21 shall be filed and processed according to the procedure estab-
lished in 201 KAR 21:051.

Section 4. Incorporation by Reference.

(1) “Registration Form for Persons Performing Peer Review of Kentucky Chiropractic Claims”
2013, is incorporated by reference.

(2) This_material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copy-
right law, at the Kentucky Board of Chiropractic Examiners, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort,

Kentucky 40601 from 8: 00 a.m. to 4 00 p.m. [Ihm—matepalrma%be—}nspeeted,—eepwé—epeb—

CONTACT PERSON: David C. Trimble, Board Attorney, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Ken-
tucky 40601, phone +1 (502) 782-8823, fax +1 (502) 564-3969, email DavidC. Trimble@Kky.gov.




i

Andy Beshear < Justice Mary C. Noble, Ret.
GOVERNOR CABINET SECRETARY
KENTUCKY JUSTICE & N
PUBLIC SAFETY CABINET GENERAL COUNSEL
October 12, 2020 E @ E ﬂ W E
Ms. Emily Caudill, Regulations Compiler 0cT 12 200
Legislative Research Commission
029, Capitol Annex
702 Capital Avenue ARRS
Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 501 KAR 6:120. Blackburn Correctional Complex
Dear Ms. Caudill:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues
raised by 501 KAR 6:120, the Justice and Public Safety Cabinet, Department of Corrections proposes
the attached suggested substitute for 501 KAR 6:120.

Sincerely,
b\%""
Deanna Smith

Paralegal Consultant

enclosures

125 Holmes Street, 2nd Floor  +  Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 - {502)564-7554

Kentucky.gov

TEAM i
KE NTU CKY An Equal Opportunity Employer M/E/D



Final 10-8-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

JUSTICE AND PUBLIC SAFETY CABINET
Department of Corrections

501 KAR 6:120. Blackburn Correctional Complex.

RELATES TO: KRS Chapters 196, 197, 439

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 196.035, 197.020, 439.470, 439.590, 439.640

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 196.035, 197.020, 439.470, 439.590,
and 439.640 authorize the Justice and Public Safety Cabinet and Department of Corrections to
promulgate administrative regulations necessary and suitable for the proper administration of the
department or any division therein. These policies and procedures are incorporated by reference
in order to comply with the accreditation standards by the American Correctional Association. This
administrative regulation establishes the policies and procedures for the Blackburn Correctional
Complex.

Section 1. Incorporation by Reference.

(1) "Blackburn Correctional Complex Policies and Procedures,” October 13[September-1],
[May-14.] 2020[March-14,-2008], are incorporated by reference. Blackburn Correctional Complex
Policies and Procedures include:

[BCC-04-144- | Roles—of —GConsultants;—Gontract
o4 Employees,—Volunteers—and
.

BCC 0143 EE'“IF'E’.WE]S.E' ;t.ll'le'é :glerne’le:sl =

g4 and-Other-Agencies

BCG04-143- | Public—Information—and—News

02 Media-Access

BCGC 0449 | Inmate-Access-to-BCC-Staff]

a4

BCC 02-01- | inmate Canteen (Amended

01 10/13/20[5/14/20])

BCC 02-01- | Inmate Canteen Committee

02 (Added 5/14/20)

BCC 02-07- | Inmate [Rersonal] Accounts

01 (Amended 10/13/20[5/44/20])

[BCGC-05-01- | InmatePartisipation—in-Authorized

o4 Research]

BCC 06-02- | Offender Records (Amended

02 5/14/20[ 1)

[BECG0802- i

84

o4 Duties]

BCC 08-06- | Storage, Control and

01 Accountability of Flammable,
Toxic, Caustic and  Other




Hazardous Materials (Amended

5/14/20[48444/02])
BCC 08-08- | Lockdown in Place (Added
01 5/14/20)
BCC 09-02- | Daily _Controlled[Reguiation—of]
03 inmate  Movement (Amended
5/14/20)

BCC 09-03- | Population Counts and Count
02 Documentation (Added
10/13/20[5/14/20])

[BCC-08-03- | Inmate-ldentification]

84

BCC 09-14- | Prohibiting Inmate Authority Over

01 Other Inmates (Amended 5/14/20)

BCC 09-23- | Restricted Areas (Added 5/14/20)

01

[BEC-09-19- | Duties—and-Respensibiliies—of-the

04 {nstitutional-Captain]

BCC 10-01- | Temporary [Segregatien] Holding

02 Area (Amended
10/13/20[8/1/2020][5114120])

BCC 11-01- | Meal Planning and Procedure

01 [Meru—-and—Restricted-—Diets]
(Amended
10/13/20[5/14/20][42/46/62])

BCC 11-02- | Food Service[s]

o1 Inspectionsjirepection,—Health
Protection——and-———Sanitation]
(Amended 5/14/20)

BCC 11-02- | Health Standards for Food Service

| 02 Workers (Added 5/14/20)

[BGG144-03- | Food-Service-Meals

g4

o4

84 Other—Sharp—Instrument—Control
{Armended-12H10/02)]

BCC 11-06- | Purchasing, Storage, and
01 Commodity[Farm] Products
Amended 5/14/20
BCC 12-01- | Treatment of Inmates with Body

| 02 Lice (Added 5/14/20)
BCC 12-02- | Personal Hygiene ltems (Amended
01 5/14/20)

BCC 12-02- | Clothing, Linens, Bedding
02 Issuance, and Shower Facilities
(Amended 5/14/20)

BCC 12-05- | Barber Shop Services (Amended

01 10/13/20[5/14/20][16/14/62])




BCC 13-01- | Sick Call and Pill Call (Amended

01 5/14/20)

BCC 13-01- | Self-Administered Medication

02 (Added
10/13/20[8/1/2020][5/14/20

BCC 13-03- | [Rrovisions—of] Health Care

01 Services[Belivery] (Amended
10/13/20[5/44/20])

BCC 13-05- | Medical Alert System (Amended

01 5/14/20)

[BCG-43-06- | Health-Care-Practices]

o4

BCC 13-07- | Emergency Medical Care and

01 Specialized Health Services [Plan]
(Amended 5/14/20[48/44/62])

[BCCA3-07- | Emergenscy-and-Specialized-Health

o2 Services{Amended10414/02)

BCGC-43-07- | lmmediate—MedicalFreatment—for

g3 Person's—njured—by-\Weapor—oF
Chemical-Agent

BCGC13-08- | Inmate—Health—Secreening—and

o4 Evaluation-{Amended-1044/02)

o4 Experimentation]

BCC 13-10- | Dental Services (Amended

01 5/14/20[46/4/62])

[BSC 344 | Suicid B - l

84 {ntervention-Program]

BCC 13-12- | Use of Pharmaceutical Products

01 (Amended 5/14/20[4644/62])

[BCC143-12- | Parenteral—Administration—of

82 Medications——and——Use—of
Psychotropic-Brugs

BCC13143- | inmate——Health—Education

faL {Amended10444/02)]

BCC 13-14- | Management of Serious and

01 Infectious Diseases (Amended
10/13/20[5/14/20][16:44402])

[BCG13-15- | Informed-Consent]

84

BCC 13-16- | Health Records (Amended

01 5/14/20)

BCC 13-17- | Notification of Inmate Family in the

01 Event of Serious liiness, Injury or
Surgery (Amended
5/14/20[4+2H10/62])

[BCC-43-19- | Physicians——Referrals———and

o4 Gontindity of-Care

BCC-13-20- | Ghronic—and—Convalescent—Gare

o4 {Amended-10/14/023]




BCC 13-22- | Mental Health Program (Amended

01 10/13/20[5/44/20])[Psychiatricand
of Mentally-Retarded-lnmates—and
Franstfers]

BCC 14-00- | Americans with Disabilities Act and
01 Inmate Program Access (Added
10/13/20[5/44£20])

[BCGC14-04- | Office—of—Public—Advecacy—and
fak} Attorney——Visits———(Amended

1044/02)
BCGC—15-04- | Restricted-Areas
o4
BCC 15-02- | inmate-Pass-System-to-Restricted
o4 Areas
BCGC-15-02- | Room—Assighment—{Amended
a2 42H04023]

BCC 15-03- | Rules [and—Regulations] for
01 Dormitories (Amended
5/14/20[40414/02])

[BCC-45-04- | Population—Counts—and—Gount

84 Documentation

BCC-45-05- | Extra-Duty-Assignments

o4

BCC16-01- | Inmate—Furloughs—{Amended

84 40444402]

BCC 16-02- | Inmate Visiting (Amended

01 10/13/20[5/14/20][121106/02])

BCC 16-02- | Parole Board (Added 5/14/20)

02

[BCC16-03- | Outgoing-trmate-Packages]

82

BCC 16-03- | Inmate  Correspondence  and

03 Mailroom _Operations (Amended
5/14/20[48444021)

BCC 17-01- | Processing of New Admissions

01 (Added 5/14/20)

BCC 17-01- | Orientation _for New Inmates

03 (Added 5/14/20)

BCC 17-02- | Inmate Personal Property

01 {(Amended 5/14/20)

BCC 18-02- | Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,

01 Transgender, and Intersex (LGBTI)
(Added 5/14/20)

[BCC-18-04- | Classification—of—the—Inmate

64 ]

BCC 19-01- | inmate Work Programs (Amended

01 10/13/20[5/44/20][16/14/62])

BCC 19-02- | Classification of Inmates to

01 Governmental Service




Program[Pregrams] (Amended
5/14/20)

BCC 19-03-
01

Correctional Industries (Amended
10/13/20[5/44/20][16/14/02])

BCC 20-01-

Educational Courses  (Added

02

5/14/20)

[BCC 2001
04

Blackburn-Education-Center

BCC-20-05-
94

EdueatonalP =T

BCEC20-06-
84

oademi I Vooational
Gurriculum-tAmended-10/14/02}]

BCC 21-01-
01

Library = Services (Amended
5/14/20[+6/14/02])

BCC 21-01-
02

Audio or Video Recorded[fape]
Court  Transcripts  (Amended

BCC 22-02-
01

5/14/20)
Privilege[d] Trips  (Amended
5/14/20[40/4/62])

BCC 22-04-
01

Recreation and Inmate Activities

(Amended 5/14/20[42A0/02}]

BCC 22-04-
02

Inmate Clubs and Organizations
(Amended 5/14/20[46/44/02])

[BCC 2204

 nduct e Trate Draanizational

BCC 23-01-
01

Religious  Services
5/14/20[40H4/02])

(Amended

BCC 24-03-
01

Social Services (Amended
10/13/20[5/14/20][4216/02])

BCC 25-01-
01

Inmate Check Out Procedure
(Amended 5/14/20)

BCC 25-02-
01

Release Preparation (Amended
5/14/20[Reporing——Inmate
Miscond Eollowi £ "
Recommendations—by—-theParole
Beard-{Added-106/14/02])

BCC 26-01-
01

Citizen Involvement and Volunteer
Service Program {Amended
5/14/20).




(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law, at
the Justice and Public Safety Cabinet, Office of Legal Services, 125 Holmes Street, 2nd Floor,
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, phone (502) 564-3279, fax (502) 564-6686, Monday through Friday,
8a.m.t04:30 p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: Amy V. Barker, Assistant General Counsel, Justice & Public Safety

Cabinet, 125 Holmes Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, phone (502) 564-3279, fax (502) 564-
6686, email Justice.RegsContact@ky.gov.

CHANGES TO MATERIAL INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

BCC 02-01-01
References/Authority Box
After "CPP 2.1,", delete "16.4,".
After "10.2,", insert "16.4,".

BCC 02-07-01
Page 1
References/Authority Box
After "BCC”", insert "16-03-03".
Delete "16-03-02".
A.3.b.
After “inmate accounts;”, delete "and”.
A.3.c.(1)
After "BCC”, insert "16-03-03".
Delete “16-03-02".

Page 2

A.3.c.(3)
After "wrong account”, insert ", and".
Delete the period.

C4d.a.
After “after processing of”, insert "state”.
Delete "sate”.

BCC 09-03-02
Page 1
1. Definitions

Rearrange definitions to be in alphabetical order.

BCC 10-01-02
Page 3
iL.B.11.
After "Classification Branch”, insert the following:
in accordance with CPP 10.2




Page 4

1.C.4.
After “special precautions or”, insert "restrictions”.
Delete “"restriction”.

Page 5

1.E.4.
Before "A special”, insert "4.".

Page 7
H.M.3.
After “Shift Supervisor”, insert a dash.
Delete the comma.
11.M.5.
After “Warden”, insert "and”.
Delete the comma.
JLLN.
After "Documentation Procedures”, delete "1.".
Renumber paragraphs “a.” through “c.” as "1.” through "3.".

BCC 11-01-01
Page 2
A.l.a.
After “equivalent list”, delete the following:
, located in the Kentucky Food Service Manual, Chapter 8, Policy 84,
A.7b.
After "following month.”, delete the following:
(Format in Ky. Food Service Manual, Chapter 8).
Page 3
B.5.
After “served cold”, insert a period.

BCC 12-05-01
Page 2
F.6.
After "all times”, insert a period.
Delete the semicolon.
F.7.
After “all refuse”, delete the semicolon.

BCC 13-01-02
Page 1
C.3.
After “from the program”, insert "shall”.
Delete “may".




BCC 13-03-01
Page 1
I. Definition — Informed Consent
Add quotation marks around “Informed consent”.
Pages 4-5
E.-H.
Renumber sections “E.” through "H." as "D." through "G.".

BCC 13-14-01
Page 2
C.2.
After “other blood-borne pathogens”, insert a period.
Delete the comma.
Capitalize "The".
BCC 13-22-01
Page 1
References/Authority Box
After "CPP", delete “10.4,".
Page 6, L.
After “shall be available”, insert “for”.
Delete "to an inmate.”
Lowercase "Psychiatric”.
After "If the", insert “services”.
Delete "service”.
After "psychological practitioner”, insert “are”.

BCC 14-00-01
Page 1
I. Definitions
Rearrange definitions to be in alphabetical order.

BCC 16-02-01

Page 2

B.6.1.-3.
Renumber paragraphs “1.” through “3.” as “a.” through "¢.".

Page 3

B.13.c.
After “shall not be”, insert “shorter”.
Delete “less”.

Page 4

B.13.d.
After “shall not be”, insert "shorter”.
Delete “less”.



B.13.9.(3)
After “or skirt that”, insert “complies with this section”.
Delete the following:
extends not less than two (2) inches above the knee.

BCC 19-01-01

Page 1

References/Authority Box
Delete "BCC 18-01-01".

Page 5

E.4.
After "procedures”, insert "outlined in this policy”.
Delete “outline in BCC 18-01-01".

G.3.
After "procedures outlined in”, insert “this policy”.
Delete "18-01-01".
BCC 19-03-01
Page 1

References/Authority Box
Delete "BCC 18-01-01".

BCC 24-03-01
Page 1
References/Authority Box
After "197.020", delete "BCC 24-00-01".
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October 9, 2020

Senator West, Co-Chair

Representative Hale, Co-Chair

¢/o Regulations Compiler

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Dear Co-Chair West and Co-Chair Hale:

After discussions with the Administrative Regulation Review Subcomlnitfee staff of the
issues raised by 739 KAR 2:040 and 739 KAR 2:155, the Kentucky Fire Comm1ss1on proposes
the attached amendments to 739 KAR 2:040 and 739 KAR 2:155.

Sincerely,

Seott Lawsan 10-9-20

Scott Lawson

Chairman, Kentucky Fire Comnnsswn
118 James Court

Lexington, KY 40505




REVISED:
10/9/2020 9:38 AM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM
Kentucky Fire Commission
(Amendment)

739 KAR 2:040. Survivor benefits for death of a firefighter.

RELATES TO: KRS 95A.210, KRS 61.315

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 61.315(3)

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 61.315(3) authorizes the Ken-
tucky Fire Commission to promulgate administrative regulations establishing cri-
teria_and procedures applicable to the administration of survivor benefits for
death of a firefighter., This administrative regulation establishes these re-
quirements. [paynent-of survivor-benefits-of-$80,000-to-the-surviverofa paid-o

Section 1. Definitions. (1) “Child or children” means a:

(a) Biological child or children, including a child or children born after the fire-
fighter's death;

(b) Stepchild or stepchildren; and

(¢) Legally adopted child or children.

(2) “Commission” means commission as defined by KRS 95A.210(1).

(3) “Death in the line of duty” means death that occurs as a direct result of an
act or acts in the “performance of duty” as defined in subsection (6) of this sec-
tion and includes death that results from a heart or circulatory malfunction that is
treated within forty-eight (48) hours after participation in the performance of
these duties or as the result of illness, cancer as established in KRS
61.315(1N[10)], or other sickness or injury caused by the performance of these
duties that result in death within twelve (12) months of the activities as estab-
lished in this administrative regulation, if death is not caused by suicide or self-
inflicted injury.

(4) "Firefighter” means firefighter as defined by KRS 61.315(1)(b).

(5) “Heart or circulatory malfunction” means myocardial infarction, angina pec-
toris, coronary thrombosis, cardiac arrest, or a cerebral vascular accident that

1




is[the-symptems-are] first medically treated within forty-eight (48) hours after
participation in the performance of the duties of a paid firefighter as established
in subsection (6) of this section.

(6) “Performance of duty” means a firefighter acting in the performance of his
or her duties while engaged in the following activities if the activities are per-
formed at the direction or with the knowledge of an officer of the fire department
or if immediate action is required at the scene of an emergency not involving his
department or other emergency organization:

(a) Firefighting;

(b) Fire drills or other related training;

(c) Rescue or emergency activities;

(d) Repairing or doing other work about or in the fire or emergency apparatus
or building and grounds of the fire department;

(e) Traveling to or from a call for service;

(f) Riding in or upon the fire or emergency apparatus that is owned or used by
the fire department;

(g) Performing other activities of the fire department as authorized by the ju-
risdiction that the department serves; or

(h) Attending meetings related to the fire service and travel to and from the
meetings, as long as he or she is representing his or her local, state, or national
fire related organization.

Section 2. Requirements for Eligibility. (1)(a) If death occurs after twelve (12)
months and is related to the causes established in KRS 61.315(11)[{+6)](b), the
commission shall review the conditions to determine if the death constituted
death in the performance of duty.

(b) Survivors. Benefits shall be paid to the surviving spouse, surviving child or
children or both; or the surviving parents, as set forth in KRS 61.315(2).

(2) Heart or circulatory malfunction limitations. (a) Eligible survivors shall re-
ceive benefits through KRS 61.325 if the firefighter:

1. Becomes an active member of a fire department;
2. Has not been medically diagnosed as having had, or has not been pre-

scribed any medication for, the following conditions within 5 years prior to
the date of membership:
a. Myocardial infarcation;

b. Angina pectoris;
¢. Coronary thrombosis;

d. Cardiac arrest: or
e. Cerebral vascular incident; and




3. Dies in the line of duty. [If-an-individual becomes-an-active-member-of-a

e danagriment-and-na

ive thel fits if the firefighter-dies in the li f dusty]

(b)Eligible survivors shall receive the benefits granted through KRS 61.315
[{a}] if the firefighter dies in the line of duty and:
1. The firefighter has been medically diagnosed as having had, or having been
prescribed[receiving]medication for, an illness listed[established] in para-
graph (a) of this subsection within five (5) years prior to becoming an active
member of a fire department; and
2. The commission has been presented with a medical statement from the

firefighter’'s doctor that the firefighter has recovered or been medically re-
habilitated sufficiently to meet the physical demands of firefighting.
(c) 1. Survivors shall not be eligible to receive benefits from this program un-

til the medical statement required by paragraph (b) of this subsection is
supplied to the commission in the following circumstances. The firefighter:
a. Has been medically diagnosed as having had, or having been prescribed
medication for, an illness listed in paragraph (a) of this subsection;

b. Returns to active fire service: and

c. Dies as a result of a heart or circulatory malfunction. [(b)1—If afirefighter

£

2 departmen G aiiy-didq

.......

2. Upon the commission’s review and approval of the medical statement,
pursuant to KRS Chapter 61 and this administrative regulation, [ef-the-statement
by-thecommission;] the firefighter's survivors shall become eligible to receive
benefits from this program.

(d)[{e)] A deceased firefighter's survivors shall not be eligible for benefits un-
der this administrative regulation if the deceased firefighter was mistakenly or
fraudulently included on a fire department's roster, or did not actively serve as a
firefighter for a minimum of five (5) years prior to diagnosis of the cause of death.

(3)(a) Autopsy. The commission shall reserve the right to request an autopsy if
[previding] sufficient cause is shown for this request.
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(b) If an autopsy is performed for any reason, a copy of the report signed by
the individual who performs the autopsy and a notary public shall be submitted
to the commission.

Section 3. Apphcatlon (1)(a) The fire department [Upen—#;e—death—m—the—lme

member—at—the—teme—ef—death] shall notlfy the commission's admmlstrator [eiE
the-death] immediately upon the death in the line of duty of a firefighter who

is a member of the department.
(b) Upon receipt of the notification, the administrator shall submit the Report

of Firefighter's Death, Form KPF-4, to the notifying fire department in care of the
chief: Claim for Survivor Benefits Form KPF-5, to the known survivors of the de-
ceased firefighter; and the Requirements for Cancer Death Benefits form to both
the notifying fire department in care of the chief and the known survivors of the
deceased firefighter.

(2) Upon receipt of the forms required by subsection (1) of this section, the
chief and survivors or their representative shall complete the forms and return
them to the commission in care of the administrator.

(3) Upon the receipt of the completed forms established in subsection (1) of
this section, a licensed physician [memberofthe-commission] shall review all per-
tinent medical records and forms submitted on behalf of the deceased firefighter
and make a medical determination as to whether[of-if] the conditions surround-
ing the death qualify the family members for benefits pursuant to this administra-
tive regulation.

(a) Upon the licensed physician's [redical-director's] determination that the
requirements of KRS 61.315 and this administrative regulation have been met, a
committee of the commission appointed by the chair of the commission shall re-
view the forms and forward the forms with the committee’'s [cormmissions] rec-
ommendations to the full commission for determination of eligibility.

(b) If there are questions about the forms, the committee and the administra-
tor may seek clarification of the questions on behalf of the commission.

Section 4. Certification of Payment of Benefits. Upon certification of survivor-
ship rights to the Firefighter's Death Benefit, the sum of $80,000 shall be paid in
check by the state treasurer from the general expenditure fund of the state treas-
ury, as required by KRS 61.315(2) and the treasurer shall transmit the check to the
commission's administrator for payment to the eligible survivor or survivors.

Section 5. Incorporation by Reference. (1) The following material is incorpo-
rated by reference:




(a) "Report of Firefighter's Death” Form KPF-4, November 7, 2016;

(b) “Claim for Survivor Benefits” Form KPF-5, December 1, 2014; and

(c) "Requirements for Cancer Death Benefits”, July 2016.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable
copyright law, at the Commission on Fire Protection Personnel Standards and
Education, 118 James Court, Suite 50, Lexington, Kentucky 40505, Monday
through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.




SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM
Kentucky Fire Commission
(New Administrative Regulation)

739 KAR 2:155. Alan “Chip” Terry Professional Development and Wellness
Program.

RELATES TO: KRS 95A.292

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 95A.292(4)

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 95A.292(4) requires the Kentucky
Fire Commission to promulgate administrative regulations to implement the provisions
of KRS 95A.292. This administrative regulation establishes (1) the qualifications and
duties of persons used by the Commission to implement and administer the Alan "Chip"
Terry Professional Development and Wellness Program; (2) the curriculum,
programming, seminar type, and treatment modalities used in the program; (3) the
extent to which a participating firefighter's relatives or friends may participate in
seminars; (4) the standards by which professional and volunteer firefighters from other
states may be accepted into the program by the executive director; and (5) a protocol
for establishing reciprocity for interagency assistance with other state, federal, and tribal
professional and volunteer firefighters in administering the program.

Section 1. Definitions. (1) "IAFF" means the International Association of Fire Fighters.
(2) "Program” means the Alan "Chip" Terry Professional Development and Wellness
Program and the seminars conducted under this program[thereunder].

Section 2. Instructor Qualifications. (1) Any instructor used by the commission to
implement and administer the program shall:

(a) Be a professional, retired, or volunteer firefighter;

(b) Have a minimum of two (2) years experience as a peer supporter;

(c) Have a minimum of one (1) year of teaching or training experience; and

(d) Submit proof of completion of the two-day IAFF Peer Support Training, or its
equivalent, to the commission.

(2) Any instructor used by the commission to implement and administer the program
shall have training in general stress,f;] group processes,;] human communication
skills,[;] direct intervention strategies,[;] post-traumatic stress disorder and
depression,f;] suicide awareness and postventionf;] addressing stigma.fi]
understanding barriers to care,[;] and substance abuse.




Section 3. Curriculum, Programming, Seminar Type, and Treatment Modalities. (1) The
curriculum, programming, and treatment modalities used in the program shall be the
IAFF Behavioral Health Peer Support Training Student Manual.

(2) The seminar shall consist of a prerequisite online course and two (2) in-person,
eight (8) hour day peer support seminars designed to train peer support personnel to
provide peer support to other firefighters.

Section 4. Non-firefighter Participation. (1) A participating Kentucky firefighter may
permit no more than two (2) non-firefighters to attend and participate in the program
with the Kentucky firefighter.

(2) Out-of-state non-firefighters shall not attend or participate in the program.

Section 5. Out-of-state Firefighter Participation. (1) The executive director shall permit
any out-of-state, federal, or tribal professional or volunteer firefighter to participate in
the program if the out-of-state, federal, or tribal professional or volunteer firefighter
submits to the commission:

(a) A driver's license identifying the professional or volunteer firefighter;

(b) Proof of current status as a professional or volunteer firefighter;

() A completed Alan "Chip" Wellness Program Out-of-State Participant Application;
and

(d) A letter from the chief of the fire department for which the firefighter works or
volunteers setting forth the professional or volunteer firefighter's need to participate in
the program.

(2)[@)] The letter required by subsection (1)(d) of this section shall not include any
medical or confidential information regarding the professional or volunteer firefighter
without the professional or volunteer firefighter's written consent.

(3)[€2)] Notwithstanding section (1) of this section, an out-of-state professional or
volunteer firefighter shall not be accepted into the program if the out-of-state
professional or volunteer firefighter's participation in the program would prevent a
Kentucky professional or volunteer firefighter from participating in the program,_in

accordance with KRS 95A.292(3).

Section 6. Out-of-state Reciprocity for Interagency Assistance in Administering the
Program.

(1) Any out-of-state instructor used by the commission to implement and administer
the program shall:

(a) Satisfy the requirements of Section 2 of this administrative regulation;

(b) Submit a driver’s license identifying the out-of-state instructor to the commission;

(c) Submit proof of status as a professional, retired, or volunteer firefighter to the
commission; and




(d) Submit a completed Alan "Chip" Wellness Program Out-of-State Instructor
Application to the commission.

(2) An out-of-state instructor who satisfies the requirements of this section shall be
permitted to administer seminars under the program in the Commonwealth of Kentucky
in coordination with the commission.

Section 7. Incorporation by Reference. (1) The following material is incorporated by
reference:

(a) "IAFF Behavioral Health Peer Support Training Student Manual, [9/2018]:[:]

(b) “Alan "Chip" Wellness Program Out-of-State Participant Application”, [6/20]:
and[;]

(c) "Alan "Chip" Wellness Program Out-of-State Instructor[Participant] Application”,
[6/20].

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable
copyright law, at the Commission on Fire Protection Personnel Standards and Education,
118 James Court, Lexington, Kentucky 40505, Monday through Friday, 8:30 a.m. to 4:30
p.m.
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October 7th, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
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Re: 806 KAR 3:170. Annual audited financial reports.
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of
the issues raised by 806 KAR 3:170, the Department of Insurance proposes the attached
amendment to 806 KAR 3:170.

Sincerely,

0 Wamony

DJ Wasson, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Insurance
Mayo-Underwood Building, 500 Mero St.
Frankfort, KY 40601
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Final 10/7/2020 9:40 AM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 3:170. Annual audited financial reports.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.7-040, 304.1-050, 304.2-065, 304.2-210-304.2-290, 304.3-120, 304.3-125,
304.3-240, 304.3-241, 304.17A-820, 304.32-210, 304.35-040, 304.36-140, 304.37-010, 304.37-020,
[364.36-140.]304.42-150, 304.45-030, 304.45-040, 304.48-110, 304.49-070(2), 304.49-080, 304.49-
090, 304.50-060, 304.50-075, 18 U.S.C. Chapter 96, Pub. L. 107-204[1961-1968]

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110, 304.3-240, 304.49-140

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110 authorizes the Commissioner of
the Department of Insurance to promulgate administrative regulations necessary for or as an aid
to the effectuation of any provision of the Kentucky Insurance Code as established[defined] in
KRS 304.1-010. KRS 304.3-240 authorizes the commissioner to promulgate administrative regu-
lations concerning the publication of financial statements. KRS 304.49-170[304-49-140] au-
thorizes the commissioner to promulgate administrative regulations relating to captive insur-
ance companies that are necessary to enable the commissioner to carry out the provisions of
KRS 304.49-010 through[304-39-010-te] 304.49-230. This administrative regulation establishes
requirements concerning the annual filing of audited financial reports by insurers.

Section 1. Definitions. (1)(a) "Accountant” means:

{a)[and “independent-certified public-accountant—mean] An independent certified public
accountant or accounting firm in good standing with the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and in all states in which the accountant is[they-are] licensed to practice;[]

(b) For Canadian and British insurers, [ = Ja Canadian-chartered or British-
chartered accountant.

(2) "Affiliate" or "affiliated" is defined by KRS 304.37-010(4).

(3) "Audit committee" means a committee, or equivalent body, established by the board of
directors of an entity for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting pro-
cesses of an insurer or group of insurers, the internal audit function of an insurer of group of in-
surers, if applicable, and external audits of financial statements of the insurer or group of insur-
ers

(4) "Audited financial report" means a_report consisting of those items estab-
lished[specified] in Section 4 of this administrative regulation.

(5) "Commissioner" is defined by[in] KRS 304.1-050(1).

(6) "Control[Contrelling-persen]" is defined by[éin] KRS 304.37-010(3)[¢8)}].

(7) "Department” is defined in KRS 304.1-050(2).




(8) "Group of insurers" means those licensed insurers included in the reporting requirements
of KRS 304.37-020, or a set of insurers as identified by management, for the purpose of as-
sessing the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

(9) “Insurer" is defined by KRS 304.1-040.

(10) “Internal audit function” means a person who[that] provides independent objective and
reasonable assurance designed to add value and improve an organization's operations and ac-
complish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.”

(11) "Internal control over financial reporting" means a process affected by an entity’s board
of directors, management, and other personnel designed to provide reasonable assurance re-
garding the reliability of the financial statements and includes those policies and procedures
that:

(a) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re-
flect the transactions and dispositions of assets;

(b) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prep-
aration of the financial statements and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors; and

(¢) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of assets that could have a material effect on the financial state-
ments.

(12) [(4+1)] "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(13) [(+2)] "Section 404" means Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Pub. L. 107-
204, and the SEC's rules and regulations promulgated under Section 404.

(14) [(43)] “Section 404 Report" means management’s report on "internal control over finan-
cial reporting" as defined by the SEC at 17 C.F.R. 240.13a-15(f) and the related attestation re-
port of the [independent-certified public]accountant.

(15) [(H4)] "SOX compliant entity" means an entity that either is required to be compliant
with, or voluntarily is compliant with, all of the following provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, Pub. L. 107-204:

(a) The preapproval requirements of Section 202[207];

(b) The audit committee independence requirements of Section 301; and

(c) The internal control over financial reporting requirements of Section 404,

(16) [45)] "Work papers" mean the records kept by the [independent—certified—pub-

licJaccountant of the procedures followed, the tests performed, the information obtained, and
the conclusions reached pertinent to the accountant'sfindependent-certified-public-account-
ants] audit of the financial statements of an insurer. Work papers can[maey] include audit plan-
ning documentation, work programs, analyses, memoranda, letters of confirmation and repre-
sentation, abstracts of insurer documents, and schedules or commentaries prepared or obtained

by the [independent—certified—publiclaccountant in the course of the account-
ant’s[independent-certified public-accountants]audit of the financial statements of an insurer
and that[whieh] support the accountant 'sfindependentcertified-public-accountants] opinion

of the financial statements of an insurer,




Section 2. Purpose and Scope. (1) This administrative regulation shall be to improve the de-
partment's surveillance of the financial condition of insurers by requiring: _

(a) An annual audit of financial statements reporting the financial position and the results of
operations of insurers by [independent-certified public]accountants;

(b) Communication of internal control related matters noted in an audit; and

(c) Management's report of internal control over financial reporting.

(2) Except as established in paragraph (a) of this subsection, every insurer shall be subject
to this administrative regulation.[Insurers-having-direct-premiums-written-in-this state-ef-less

Han-one s

! £ 5 this administrati lation.]

(a) Unless the commissioner makes a specific finding that compliance is necessary for the de-
partment to carry out its statutory responsibilities, an insurer[insarers] shall be exempt during
years in which the following conditions exist. The insurer has, at the end of the calendar year:

1. Direct premiums written in this state of less than $1,000,000; and

2. Less than 1,000 policyholders or certificate holders of direct written policies nationwide.

(b) An_insurer with[lnsurers-that-have] assumed premiums of $1,000,000 or more pursuant
to contracts or treaties of reinsurance shall not be exempt from this administrative regulation.

(3) A foreign or alien insurer[insurers] filing the audited financial report in another state,
pursuant to the other state's requirement for filing an audited financial report, which has been
found by the commissioner to be substantially similar to the requirements of this administrative
regulation, shall be exempt from this administrative regulation if:

(a) The following documents, which are filed with the other state, are filed with the commis-
sioner in accordance with Sections 4, 10[11], and 11[12] of this administrative regulation:

1. A copy of the audited financial report;

2. Communication of internal control related matters noted in an audit; and

3. The accountant's letter of qualifications.[z] Canadian insurers may submit accountants' re-
ports as filed with the Office of Superintendent of Financial Institutions, Canada; and

(b) A copy of any natification of adverse financial condition report filed with the other state is
filed with the commissioner within the time established[specified] in Section 9 of this adminis-
trative regulation.

(4) A foreign or alien insurer[insurers] required to file management’s report of internal con-
trol over financial reporting in another state shall be exempt from filing the report in this state if:

(a) The other state has substantially similar reporting requirements; and

(b) The report is filed with the commissioner of the other state within the other state’s re-
quired time[specified].

(5) This administrative regulation shall not prohibit, preclude, or in any way limit the commis-
sioner from ordering, conducting, or performing examinations of insurers under KRS 304.2-210
through 304.2-290 through 304.2-300[304-2-290], 304.17A-820, 304.32-210, 304.35-040,
304.36-140, 304.42-150, 304.48-110, 304.49-080, or 304.50-075.

Section 3. General Requirements Related to Filing and Extensions for Filing of Annual Audited
Financial Reports and Audit Committee Appointment. (1) All insurers shall have an annual audit

by an [independent-certified-public]accountant and shall file an audited financial report with




the commissioner on or before June 1 for the year ended December 31 immediately preceding.
The commissioner may, based on whether or not the company is determined to be in a
“hazardous condition” pursuant to KRS 304.2-065, require an insurer to file an audited finan-
cial report earlier than June 1 with ninety (90) days advance notice to the insurer.

(2) Extensions of the June 1 filing date may be granted by the commissioner for thirty (30)
day periods upon showing by the insurer and its [independent-certified-publicJaccountant the
reasons for requesting the extension and determination by the commissioner of good cause for
an extension. The request for extension shall be submitted in writing not less than ten (10) days
prior to the due date and contain sufficient detail to permit the commissioner to make an in-
formed decision as to the requested extension.

(3) If an extension is granted in accordance with subsection (2) of this section, a similar exten-
sion of thirty (30) days shall be granted to the filing of management’s report of internal control
over financial reporting.

(4) Every insurer required to file an annual audited financial report pursuant to this adminis-
trative regulation shall designate a group of individuals as constituting its audit committee. The
audit committee of an entity that controls an insurer may be deemed to be the insurer’s audit
committee for purposes of this administrative regulation at the election of the controlling per-
son.

Section 4. Contents of Annual Audited Financial Report. (1) The annual audited financial re-
port shall report the financial condition of the insurer as of the end of the most recent calendar
year and the results of its operations, cash flows, and changes in capital and surplus for the year
then ended in conformity with statutory accounting practices established[preseribed], or oth-
erwise permitted, by the insurance supervisory authority of the insurer's state of domicile.

(2) The annual audited financial report shall include the[following]:

(a) Report of the[independent-certified publie] accountant;

(b) Balance sheet for reporting admitted assets, liabilities, capital, and surplus;

(c) Statement of operations;

(d) Statement of cash flows;

(e) Statement of changes in capital and surplus;

(f) Notes to financial statements as required by KRS 304.3-240 in accordance with KRS 304.3-
241. These notes shall also include:

1. A reconciliation of differences, if any, between the audited statutory financial statements
and the annual statement filed pursuant to KRS 304.3-240 with a written description of the na-
ture of these differences; and

2. A summary of ownership and relationships of the insurer and all affiliated companies; and

(9) The financial statements included in the audited financial report shall be:

1. Prepared in a form and using language and groupings substantially the same as the rele-
vant sections of the annual statement of the insurer filed with the commissioner; and

2. Comparative, presenting the amounts as of December 31 of the current year and the
amounts as of the immediately preceding December 31. [Hewever;]In the first year in which an
insurer is required to file an audited financial report, the comparative data may be omitted. The
annual statement forms and instructions shall befare] those established[prescribed] by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners as required by KRS 304.3-240.




Section 5. Designation of [IndependentCertifiedPublic]Accountant. (1) Each insurer re-

quired by this administrative regulation to file an annual audited financial report shall, within six-
ty (60) days after becoming subject to this requirement, register with the commissioner in writ-

ing the name and address of the [independent-certified-publicJaccountant or accounting firm
retained to conduct the annual audit egulred by[set—feﬂh—m] this administrative regulatlon

financialreport-is-to-be filed:]

(2) The insurer shall obtain a letter from the accountantf;] and file a copy with the commis-
sioner, stating that the accountant is aware of the provisions of the insurance laws of the insur-
er's state of domicile that relate to accounting and financial matters and affirming that the ac-
countant shallfwill] express the accountant's opinion on the financial statements in terms of
their conformity to the statutory accounting practices established[presecribed] or otherwise
permitted by the insurance regulatory authority in that state, stating[speeifying] any exceptions
as the accountant believes[may-believe] appropriate.

(3) If an accountant who was the accountant for the immediately preceding filed audited fi-
nancial report is dismissed or resigns the insurer shall:

(a) Within five (5) business days notify the commissioner of this event;

(b) Submit to[Furnish] the commissioner, [with]a separate letter within ten (10) business
days of the [abeve]notification established in paragraph (a) of this subsection, if stating
[whether]in the twenty-four (24) months preceding the accountant's resignation, there were
any disagreements with the former accountant that[whieh], if not resolved to the satisfaction of
the former accountant, would cause the accountant to make reference to the subject matter of
the disagreement in connection with the opinion. These shall include disagreements:

1. Concerning accounting principles, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or pro-
cedure;

2 That have been resolved to the former accountant's satisfaction and those not so resolved;
and _

3. That occur at the decision-making level, that is, between personnel of the insurer responsi-
ble for presentation of its financial statements and personnel for the accounting firm responsible
for rendering its report,

(c) Request the former accountant to submit[furnish] a letter addressed to the insurer stat-
ing whether or not the accountant agrees with the statements contained in the insurer's letter,
and, if not, stating the reasons for which the accountant does not agree; and

(d) Submit[Furnish] the responsive letter from the former accountant to the commissioner
together with its own.

Section 6. Qualifications of [independent-Certified-Public]Accountant. (1) The commissioner
shall not recognize any person or firm as a qualified [independent-certified-public]accountant

if the person or firm:




(a) Is not in good standing with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
all states in which the accountant is licensed to practice, or, for a Canadian or British insurer, that
is not a chartered accountant; or

(b) Has either directly or indirectly entered into an agreement of indemnity or release from
liability with respect to the audit of the insurer.

(2) Except as otherwise established[previded] in this administrative regulation, an [inde-~
pendent-certified public]accountant shall be recognized as qualified if the [independent-certi-
fied-publicJaccountant conforms to the standards of the accounting profession, as contained in
the statutes, administrative regulations, and codes of ethics and rules of professional conduct
administered by the State Board of Accountancy of Kentucky in accordance with KRS Chapter
325 and 201 KAR Chapter 1.

(3) The lead or coordinating audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit shall not
act in that capacity for more than five (5) consecutive years. After five (5) consecutive years,
the person shall be disqualified from acting in that or a similar capacity for the same insurer or
its insurance subsidiaries or affiliates for a period of five (5) years.

(a) An insurer may make application to the commissioner for relief from this rotation re-
quirement on the basis of undue hardship[unusual-cireumstances]. Application shall be made
at least thirty (30) days before the end of the calendar year. The commissioner shall[may] con-
sider the following factors in determining if the relief should be granted:

1. Number of partners, expertise of the partners, or the number of insurance clients in the
currently registered firm;

2. Premium volume of the insurer; or

3. Number of jurisdictions in which the insurer transacts business.

(b) The insurer shall file with its annual statement filing the approval for relief from paragraph
(a)1 of this subsection with the states that it is licensed in or doing business in and with the Na-
tional Association of Insurance Commissioners. If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing
with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, the insurer shall file the approval in
an electronic format acceptable to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners via the
Web site, https://www2.naic.org/serviet/Index.

(©) The commissioner shall not recognize as a qualified [independen#eerﬁﬁed—pub-'
lieJaccountant, nor accept any annual audited financial report, prepared in whole or in part by
any natural person who:

1. Has been convicted of fraud, bribery, or a conviction of the Racketeer Influenced and Cor-
rupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. Chapter 96[1961,-1968];

2. Has been found to have violated the insurance laws of this state with respect to any previ-
ous reports submitted under this administrative regulation; or

3. Has demonstrated a pattern or practice of failing to detect or disclose material information
in previous reports filed under this administrative regulation.

(4) If an insurer disagrees with a determination made by the commissioner pursuant to sub-
section (3) of this section, it may request a hearing in accordance with KRS 304.2-310.

(5)(@) The commissioner shall not recognize as a qualified [independent-certifiedpub-
lic]Jaccountant, nor accept an annual audited financial report prepared in whole or in part by an
accountant who provides to an insurer, contemporaneously with the audit, the following nonau-
dit services:




1. Bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements of
the insurer;

2. Financial information systems design and implementation;

3. Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions, or contribution-in-kind reports;

4. Actuarially-oriented advisory services involving the determination of amounts recorded in
the financial statements. The accountant may assist an insurer in understanding the methods,
assumptions, and inputs used in the determination of amounts recorded in the financial state-
ment only if it is reasonable to conclude that the services provided will not be subject to audit
procedures during an audit of the insurer's financial statements. An accountant’s actuary may
also issue an actuarial opinion or certification on an insurer’s reserves if[fthefellowing-condi-
tions-have beenmet].

a. Neither the accountant nor the accountant’s actuary has performed any management func-
tions or made any management decisions;

b. The insurer has competent personnel or engages a third party actuary to estimate the re-
serves for which management takes responsibility; and

c. The accountant’s actuary tests the reasonableness of the reserves after the insurer’'s man-
agement has determined the amount of the reserves;

5. Internal audit outsourcing services;

6. Management functions or human resources;

7. Broker or dealer, investment adviser, or investment banking services; or

8. Legal services or expert services unrelated to the audit.

(b) A qualified independent public accountant shall not:

1. Function in the role of management;

2. Audit his or her own work; and

3. Serve in an advocacy role for the insurer.

(6)(a) An_insurer[lnsurers] having direct written and assumed premium of less than
$100,000,000 in any calendar year may request an exemption from subsection (5)(a) of this sec-
tion.

(b) To request an exemption, the insurer shall file with the commissioner a written statement
discussing the reasons why the insurer should be exempt from these provisions.

(c) If requested and if the commissioner finds, upon review of this statement, that compli-
ance with this administrative regulation would constitute an organizational hardship upon the
insurer, an exemption shall[may] be granted.

(7) A qualified [independent-certified public]accountant who performs the audit may en-
gage in other nonaudit services, including tax services, that are not established[deseribed] in
subsection (5)(a) of this section or that do not conflict with subsection (5)(b) of this section, only
if the activity is approved in advance by the audit committee in accordance with subsection (8)
of this section.

(8)(a) All auditing services and nonaudit services provided to an insurer by the qualified [in-
dependent-certified public]accountant of the insurer shall be preapproved by the audit com-
mittee.

(b) The preapproval requirement shall be waived with respect to nonaudit services if:

1. The insurer is a SOX compliant entity or a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of a
SOX compliant entity; or




2.a. The aggregate amount of all non-audit services provided to the insurer constitutes not
more than five (5) percent of the total amount of fees paid by the insurer to its qualified [inde-
pendentcertified publiclaccountant during the fiscal year in which the nonaudit services are
provided;

b. The services were not recognized by the insurer at the time of the engagement to be non-
audit services; and

c. The services are [premptly]brought to the attention of the audit committee and approved
prior to the completion of the audit by the audit committee or by one (1) or more members of
the audit committee who are the members of the board of directors to whom authority to grant
approvals has been delegated by the audit committee.

(9) The audit committee may delegate to one (1) or more designated members of the audit
committee the authority to grant the preapprovals required by subsection (8) of this section. The
decisions of any member to whom this authority is delegated shall be presented to the full audit
committee at each of its scheduled meetings.

(10)(a)1. The commissioner shall not recognize an [independent-certified publicJaccountant
as qualified for a particular insurer if the following were employed by the [independent-certi-
fied-publicJaccountant and participated in the audit of that insurer during the one (1) year peri-
od preceding the date that the most current statutory opinion is due:

a. A member of the board,

b. President;

c. Chief executive officer;

d. Controller;

e. Chief financial officer;

f. Chief accounting officer; or

g. Any person serving in an equivalent position for that insurer.

2. This subsection shall only apply to partners and senior managers involved in the audit.

3. An insurer may make application to the commissioner for relief from the
[abeve]requirements established in this subsection on the basis of undue hardship [unusual
circumstances].

(b) The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, the approval for relief from para-
graph (a) [subsection{10){a}] of this subsection[section] with the states that it is licensed in or
doing business in and the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. If the nondomestic
state accepts electronic filing with the National Association of Insurance Comrnissioners, the in-
surer shall file the approval in an electronic format acceptable to the National Association of In-
surance Commissioners via the Web site, https://www2.naic.org/servlet/Index.

Section 7. Consolidated or Combined Audits. An insurer may make written application to the
commissioner for approval to file audited consolidated or combined financial statements in lieu
of separate annual audited financial reports if the insurer is part of a group of insurers
that[whieh] utilizes a pooling or 100 percent reinsurance agreement that affects the solvency
and integrity of the insurer's reserves and the insurer cedes all of its direct and assumed busi-
ness to the poal. In these cases, a columnar consolidating or combining worksheet shall be filed
with the report, as established in subsections (1) through (5) of this section.[fellows:]




(1) Amounts shown on the consolidated or combined audited financial report shall be shown
on the worksheet.[z]

(2) Amounts for each insurer subject to this section shall be stated separately.[;]

(3) Noninsurance operations may be shown on the worksheet or a combined or individual
basis.[:]

(4) Explanations of consolidating and eliminating entries shall be included. [>-and]

(5) A reconciliation shall be included of any differences between the amounts shown in the
individual insurer columns of the worksheet and comparable amounts shown in the annual
statements of the insurers.

Section 8. Scope of Examination and Report of [fndependent-Certified Public]Accountant.

(1) Financial statements submitted[furnished] pursuant to Section 4 of this administrative regu-
lation shall be examined by the [independent-certified public]accountant.

(2) The examination of the insurer's financial statements shall be conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards.

(3) In accordance with SAS No. 109, [#JUnderstanding the Entity and Its Environment and As-
sessing the Risks of Material Misstatement/~] and SAS No. 110, [<]Performing Audit Procedures
in Response to Assessed Risks and Evaluating the Audit Evidence Obtained[“;-or-theirreplace-
ments], the [independent-certified public]accountant shall obtain an understanding of internal
control sufficient to plan the audit.

(4) To the extent required by SAS 109 and SAS 110, for those insurers required to file a man-
agement’s report of internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 2 of this admin-
istrative regulation, the [independent-certified-public]accountant shall consider the most re-
cently available report in planning and performing the audit of the statutory financial state-
ments.

(5) Consideration shall also be given to other procedures illustrated in the Financial Condition
Examiner's Handbook of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners that[which] the

[independent-certified public]accountant deems necessary.

Section 9. Notification of Adverse Financial Condition. (1)(@) The insurer required to sub-

mit[furnish] the annual audited financial report shall require the [independent-certified-pub-

tieJaccountant to report, in writing, within five (5) business days to the board of directors or its
audit committee any determination by the [independent-certified-publicjaccountant that the
insurer has materially misstated its financial condition as reported to the commissioner as of the
balance sheet date currently under examination or that the insurer does not meet the minimum
capital and surplus requirements of KRS 304.3-120 and 304.3-125 as of that date.

(b) An insurer that[which] has received a report pursuant to this subsection shall forward a
copy of the report to the commissioner within five (5) business days of receipt of the report and
shall provide the [independentcertified publicJaccountant making the report with evidence of
this report being submitted[furnished] to the commissioner.

(c) If the [independent-certified-public]accountant fails to receive this evidence within the

required five (5) business day period, the [independent-certified-public]accountant shall sub-
mit[furnish] to the commissioner a copy of its report within the next five (5) business days.




(2) An [independent-certified-public]accountant shall not be liable in any manner to any

person for any statement made in connection with subsection (1) of this section if the statement
is made in good faith in compliance with subsection (1) of this section.

(3) If the accountant, subsequent to the date of the audited financial report filed pursuant to
this administrative regulation, becomes aware of facts that[whieh] might have affected his re-
port, the commissioner shall note[notes] the obligation of the accountant to take the action es-
tablished[preseribed] in Volume 1, Section AU 561 of the Professional Standards of the Ameri-
can Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Section 10. Communication of Internal Control Related Matters Noted in an Audit.

(1)@) In addition to the annual audited financial statements, each insurer shall submit
to[furnish] the commissioner [with]a written communication as to any unremediated material
weakness in its internal control over financial reporting noted during the audit.

(b) The communication shall be prepared by the accountant within sixty (60) days after the
filing of the annual audited financial reportf] and shall contain a description of any unremediat-
ed material weaknesses as of December 31 immediately preceding in the insurer's internal con-
trol over financial reporting noted by the accountant during the course of the account-
ant's[their] audit of the financial statements.

(c) If [meJunremediated material weaknesses were not noted, the communication shall state
that none were found.

(2) If the action is not included in the accountant's communication, an insurer shall pro-
vide a description of remedial actions taken or proposed to correct unremediated material
weaknesses[%m%mm%mﬁmm].

Section 11. Accountant's Letter of Qualifications. The accountant shall submit to[furnish] the
insurer in connection with, and for inclusion in, the filing of the annual audited financial report, a
letter stating:

(1) That the accountant is independent with respect to the insurer and conforms to the
standards of the accountant’s profession as contained in statutes, administrative regulations,
and rules of professional conduct of the State Board of Accountancy of Kentucky set forth in
KRS Chapter 325 and 201 KAR Chapter 1;

(2) The background and experience in general, and the experience in audits of insurers of the
staff assigned to the engagement and whether or not each is an [independentcertified-pub-
LigJaccountant. This administrative regulation shall not prohibit the accountant from utilizing
staff as the accountant deems appropriate if use is consistent with the standards estab-
lished[preseribed] by generally accepted auditing standards;

(3) That the accountant understands the annual audited financial report, that the accountant's
opinion on it shallfwill] be filed in compliance with this administrative regulation, and that the
commissioner will be relying on this information in monitoring the financial position of insurers;

(4) That the accountant consents to the requirements of Section 12 of this administrative
regulation and that the accountant consents and agrees to make the work papers available for
review by the commissioner, the commissioner’s[his] designee, or the commissioner’s[his]

appointed agent/-the-work-papers];




(5) [A-representation]That the accountant is properly licensed by an appropriate state licens-
ing authority and is a member in good standing of the American Institute of Certified Public Ac-
countants; and

(6) [A-representation]That the accountant is in compliance with the requirements of Section
6 of this administrative regulation.

Section 12. Availability and Maintenance of [lndependent-Certified-Public]Accountant Work

Papers. (1) Every insurer required to file an audited financial report pursuant to this administra-
tive regulation shall require the accountant to make available for review by department examin-
ers all work papers prepared in the conduct of the accountant's audit and any communications
related to the audit between the accountant and the insurer, at the offices of the insurer, at the
department, or any other reasonable place designated by the commissioner. The insurer shall
require that the accountant retain the audit work papers and communications until the depart-
ment has filed a report on examination covering the period of the audit, but no longer than sev-
en (7) years from the date of the audit report.

(2) In the conduct of the periodic review by department examiners established[deseribed] in
subsection (1) of this section, it shall be agreed that photocopies of pertinent audit work papers
may be made and retained by the department. Reviews by the department examiners shall be
considered investigations, and all working papers and communications obtained during the
course of shall be afforded the same confidentiality as other examination work papers generat-
ed by the department.

Section 13. Requirements for Audit Committees. This section shall not apply to foreign or al-
ien insurers licensed in this state or an insurer that is a SOX compliant entity or a direct or indi-
rect wholly-owned subsidiary of a SOX compliant entity.

(1) The audit committee shall be directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, and
oversight of the work of any accountant, including resolution of disagreements between man-
agement and the accountant regarding financial reporting, for the purpose of preparing or issu-
ing the audited financial report or related work pursuant to this administrative regulation. Each
accountant shall report directly to the audit committee.

(2)(a) The audit committee of an insurer or group of insurers shall be responsible for super-
vising[everseeing] the insurer's internal audit function and granting the person performing the
function suitable authaority and resources to fulfill the responsibilities if required by Section 14 of
this administrative regulation.

(b) If an audit committee is not designated by the insurer, the insurer’s entire board of direc-
tors shall constitute the audit committee.

(3) Each member of the audit committee shall be a member of the board of directors of the
insurer or a member of the board of directors of an entity elected pursuant to subsection (6)
[45)] of this section and section 3(4) of this administrative regulation.

(4)[63)](a) Except as established in paragraph (b) of this subsection, a member of the audit
committee shall not, other than in his or her capacity as a member of the audit committee, the
board of directors, or any other board committee;

1. Accept any consulting advisory or other compensatory fee from the entity; or

2. Be an affiliated person of the entity or any subsidiary.




(b) [Netwithstanding paragraph-(a)-of this-subsection,]If the law requires board participa-

tion by otherwise nonindependent members, that law shall prevail and the members may partic-
ipate in the audit committee and be designated as independent for audit committee purposes,
unless the member is[they-are] an officer or employee of the insurer or one (1) of its affiliates.

(5) [(4)] If a member of the audit committee ceases to be independent for reasons outside the
member's reasonable control, that person, with notice by the responsible entity to the state,
may remain an audit committee member of the responsible entity until the earlier of:

() The next annual meeting of the responsible entity; or

(b) One (1) year from the occurrence of the event that caused the member to be no longer
independent.

(6) [£5)](a) At the election of the controlling person, the audit committee of any entity that
controls a aroup of insurers may be deemed to be the audit committee for one (1) or more of
these controlled insurers solely for the purposes of this administration regulation.

(b) To exercise the election of the controlling person to designate the audit committee for
purposes of this administrative regulation, the ultimate controlling person shall provide written
notice to the commissioners of the affected insurers.

(c) [66)] Notification shall be made timely prior to the issuance of the statutory audit report
and shall include a description of the basis for the election.

(d) [{e)] The election can be changed through notice to the commissioner by the insurer
which shall include a description of the basis for the change.

(e) [teh] The election shall remain in effect for perpetuity, until rescinded.

(1)[6)](a) The audit committee shall require the accountant that performs for an insurer any
audit required by this administrative regulation to timely report to the audit committee in ac-
cordance with the requirements of SAS 114, [FJThe Auditor's Communication With Those
Charged With Governance[“], or its replacement, including:

1. All significant accounting policies and material permitted practices;

2. All material alternative treatments of financial information within statutory accounting
principles that have been discussed with management officials of the insurer, ramifications of
the use of the alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment preferred by the ac-
countant; and

3. Other material written communications between the accountant and the management of
the insurer, including any management letter or schedule of unadjusted differences.

(b)1. If an insurer is a member of an insurance holding company system, the reports required
by paragraph (a) of this subsection may be provided to the audit committee on an aggregate
basis for insurers in the holding company system,

2.[-provided-that] Any substantial differences among insurers in the system shall be[are]
identified to the audit committee.

(8) [¢A)](a) Except as established in paragraph (b) of this subsection, the proportion of in-
dependent audit committee members shall meet or exceed the following criteria:

1. For prior calendar year direct written and assumed premiums between $0 and
$300,000,000, no minimum requirements;

2. For prior calendar year direct written and assumed premiums over $300,000,000 to
$500,000,000, fifty (50) percent or more of members shall be independent; and




3. For prior calendar year direct written and assumed premiums over $500,000,000; seventy-
five (75) percent of members shall be independent.

(b) [Notwithstanding-subsection{7){a)-of this-section;]The commissioner may require the
audit committee’s board to enact improvements to the independence of the audit committee
membership if the insurer:

1. Isin a risk-based capital action level in accordance with 806 KAR 3:190; or

2. Meets one (1) or more of the standards of an insurer deemed to be in “hazardous financial
condition”, as established in KRS 304.2-065, or otherwise exhibits qualities of a “troubled in-
surer”, as established[set-forth] in KRS 304.3-625[304-2-065].

(c) An insurer with less than $500,000,000 in prior year direct written and assumed premiums
may structure its audit committee with at least a supermajority of independent audit committee
members.

(d) For purposes of subsection (7)(a) of this section, prior calendar year direct written and as-
sumed premiums shall be the combined total of direct premiums and assumed premiums from
nonaffiliates for the reporting entities.

(9) [{8)](a) An insurer with direct written and assumed premium, excluding premiums rein-
sured with the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and National Flood Insurance[Federal
Flood] Program, less than $500,000,000 may make application to the commissioner for a waiver
from the requirements of this section based upon hardship.

(b) The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, the approval for relief from this sec-
tion with the states that it is licensed in or doing business in and the National Association of In-
surance Commissioners.

(©) If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with the National Association of Insur-
ance Commissioners, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic format acceptable to the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners, via the Web site,
https://www2.naic.org/serviet/Index.

Section 14. Internal Audit Function Requirements,

(1) An insurer shall be[is] exempt from the requirements[requirement] of this section if the
insurer;

(a) [The-insurer]Has annual direct written and unaffiliated assumed premium, including in-
ternational direct and assumed premium but excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal
Crop Insurance Corporation and National Flood Insurance[Federal Fleed] Program, less than
$500,000,000[$5.000.000.000]; or

(b) [Fhe-insurer]ls a member of a group of insurers that has annual direct written and unaffil-
iated assumed premium including international direct and assumed premium, but excluding
premiums_reinsured with the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and National Flood Insur-
ance[Federal Fleed] Program, less than $1,000,000,000.

(2) The insurer or group of insurers shall establish an internal audit function providing inde-
pendent,_obijective, and reasonable assurance to the audit committee and insurer management
regarding the insurer's governance, risk management, and internal controls. This assurance shall
be provided by:

(a) Performing general and specific audits, reviews, and tests; and




(b) Employing other techniqgues deemed necessary to protect assets, evaluate control effec-
tiveness and efficiency, and evaluate compliance with policies and KAR Title 806 [requlations].

(3) In order to ensure that internal auditors remain objective, the internal audit function
shall[must] be organizationally independent.

(a) [Specifically.]The internal audit function shall:

1, [Shall]Not defer ultimate judgment on audit matters to others; and

2. [Shall]Appoint an individual to head[health] the internal audit function who shall have di-
rect and unrestricted access to the board of directors. .

(b) Organization independence shall not preclude dual-reporting relationships.

(4) The head of the internal audit function shall report to the audit committee reqularly, but
no less than annually, on:

(a) The periodic audit plan;

(b) Factors that could[mey] adversely impact the internal audit function’s independence or
effectiveness;

(c) Material findings from completed audits; and

(d) The appropriateness of corrective actions implemented by management as a result of au-
dit findings.

(5) If an insurer is a member of an insurance holding company system or included in a group
of insurers, the insurer may satisfy the internal audit function requirements established[set
forth] in this section at:

(a) The ultimate controlling parent level;

(b) An intermediate holding company level; or

(c) The individual legal entity level.

Section 15. Conduct of Insurer in Connection with the Preparation of Required Reports and
Documents. (1) A director or officer of an insurer shall not, directly or indirectly:

(a) Make or cause to be made a materially false or misleading statement to an accountant in
connection with any audit, review, or communication required under this administrative regula-
tion; or

(b) Omit to state, or cause another person to omit to state, any material fact necessary in or-
der to make statements made, in light of the circumstances under which the statements were
made, not misleading to an accountant in connection with any audit, review, or communication
required under this administrative regulation.

(2) An officer or director of an insurer, or any other person acting under the direction of the
officer or director, shall not, directly or indirectly, take any action to coerce, manipulate, mislead,
or fraudulently influence any accountant engaged in the performance of an audit pursuant to
this administrative regulation if that person knew or should have known that the action, if suc-
cessful, could result in rendering the insurer’s financial statements materially misleading.

(3) An officer or director of an insurer, or any other person acting under the direction of the
officer or director, shall not, directly or indirectly, take any of the following actions to coerce,
manipulate, mislead, or fraudulently influence an accountant with respect to the professional
engagement period: '

(a) To issue or reissue a report on an insurer's financial statements that is not warranted in
the circumstances due to material violations of statutory accounting principles as required by




KRS 304.3-241, generally accepted auditing standards, or other professional or regulatory
standards;

(b) Not to perform audit, review, or other procedures required by generally accepted auditing
standards or other professional standards;

(¢) Not to withdraw an issued report; or

(d) Not to communicate matters to an insurer’s audit committee.

Section 16 [15]. Management's Report of Internal Control over Financial Reporting. (1)(a) Ex-
cept as established in subsection (2) of this section, every insurer required to file an audited
financial report pursuant to this administrative regulation that has annual direct written and as-
sumed premiums, excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation
and National Flood Insurance[Federal-Fleed] Program, of $500,000,000 or more shall prepare
a report of the insurer’s or group of insurers’ internal control over financial reporting.

(b) The report shall be filed with the commissioner along with the communication of internal
control related matters noted in an audit.

() Management's report of internal control over financial reporting shall be as of December
31 lmmed;ately precedmg

commissioner may require an insurer to file management s report of mternal control over finan-
cial reporting if the insurer:

(a) Is in any risk-based capital level event in accordance with 806 KAR 3:190; or

(b) Meets one (1) or more of the standards of an insurer deemed to be in “hazardous finan-
cial condition” in accordance with KRS 304.2-065.

(3) An insurer or a group of insurers meeting the following requirements may file its or its
parent’s Section 404 Report and an addendum in satisfaction of the requirements of this section
if those internal controls of the insurer or group of insurers having a material impact on the
preparation of the insurer’s or group of insurer’s audited statutory financial statements were in-
cluded in the scope of the Section 404 Report:

(a) Directly subject to Section 404;

(b) Part of a holding company system whose parent is directly subject to Section 404;

(c) Not directly subject to Section 404, but is a SOX compliant entity; and

(d) A member of a holding company system whose parent is not directly subject to Section
404 but is a SOX compliant entity.

(4) Management's report of internal control over financial reporting shall include:

(a) A statement that management shall be[is] responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting;

(b) A statement that management has established internal control over financial reporting
and an assertion, to the best of management's knowledge and belief, after diligent inquiry, as to
whether or not its internal control over financial reporting is effective to provide reasonable as-
surance regarding the reliability of financial statements in accordance with statutory accounting
principles;

(©) A statement that briefly describes the approach or processes by which management eval-
uated the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting;




(d) A statement that briefly describes the scope of work that is included and whether or not
any internal controls were excluded;

(e) Disclosure of any unremediated material weaknesses in the internal control over financial
reporting identified by management as of December 31 immediately preceding. Management
shall not conclude that the internal control over financial reporting is effective to provide rea-
sonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial statements in accordance with statutory
accounting principles if there is one (1) or more unremediated material weaknesses in its inter-
nal control over financial reporting;

(f) A statement regarding the inherent limitations of internal control systems; and

(g) Signatures of the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer.

(5) Management shall document and make available upon financial condition examination
the basis upon which its assertions, required in subsection (4) of this section, are made. Man-
agement may base its assertions, in part, upon its review, monitoring, and testing of internal
controls undertaken in the normal course of its activities.

(a) Management shall have discretion as to the nature of the internal contro! framework used,
and the nature and extent of the documentation, in order to make its assertion in a cost effec-
tive manner and may include assembly of or reference to existing documentation.

(b) The following shall have one (1) year following the year the threshold is exceeded to
comply with the independence requirements in Section 6 of this administrative regulation, but
not earlier than January 1, 2010. An insurer or group of insurers that, pursuant to Section 13 of
this administrative regulation:

1. Is not required to have independent audit committee members or is required to have only
a majority of independent audit committee members because the total written and assumed
premiums is below the threshold; and

2. Subsequently becomes subject to one (1) of the independence requirements due to
changes in premium.

Section 17 [46]. Exemptions and Effective Dates. (1) Upon written application of any insurer,
the commissioner may grant an exemption from compliance with any orfand] all provi-
sions[prevision] of this administrative regulation if the commissioner finds, upon review of the
application, that compliance with this administrative regulation would constitute a financial or
organizational hardship upon the insurer. An exemption may be granted any time and from time
to time for a specified period or periods. Upon denial of an insurer's written request for an ex-
emption from this administrative regulation, the insurer may request a hearing on its application
for an exemption. The hearing process shall be pursuant to KRS 304.2-310.

(2) The requirements of this administrative requlation shall be in effect for audits of
calendar years beginning January 1, 201 0[Domestic-insurers—retaining-a—certified-public




Section 18 [4#]. Canadian and British Companies. (1) In the case of Canadian and British in-
surers, the annual audited financial reports shall be [defined-as]the annual statement of total
business in the manner filed by these insurers with their supervisory authority duly audited by an
independent chartered accountant.

(2) For Canadian and British insurers, the letter required by Section 5 of this administrative
regulation shall state that the accountant is aware of the requirements relating to the annual
audited financial report filed with the commissioner pursuant to Section 3 of this administrative
regulation and shall affirm that the opinion expressed is in conformity with the requirements of
Section 3 of this administrative regulation.

Section 19 [48]. Incorporation by Reference. (1) The following material is incorporated by ref-
erence:

(a) "Financial Condition Examiner's Handbook", 2020 [2008], National Association of Insur-
ance Commissioners;




(b) AU Section 561, "Subsequent Discovery of Facts Existing at the Date of the Auditor's Re-
port, 1996 Professional Standards of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

(c) SAS 114, "The Auditors Communication with Those Charged with Governance”, 2007,
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

(d) SAS 109, “Understanding the Entity and Its Environment and Assessing the Risks of mate-
rial Misstatement", 2007 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and

(e) SAS 110, "Performing Audit Procedures in Response to Assessed Risks and Evaluating the
Audit Evidence”, 2007 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Department of Insurance, 500 Mero Street [215-West-Main-Street], Frankfort,
Kentucky 40601, Monday through Friday, 8 am. to 430 p.m. [This-materias-also-available-en

-]

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.
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PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 6:010. Valuation standards; audits.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.2-290, 304.6-130-304.6-180

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: [EO-2004-731—signed July-9,-2004,—created
the-Department][Office] [ef-Insurance:]KRS 304.2-110(1) authorizes the commissioner [exeeu-

tive-director] of insurance to promulgate administrative regulations necessary for or as an aid to
the effectuation of any provision of the Kentucky Insurance Code as established[defined] in
KRS 304.1-010. KRS 304.6-130 through[te] 304.6-180 requires the commissioner [exeettive-di-
rector] to annually value the liability item of the NAIC Annual Statement form as itemized in Ex-
hibit 5 of that statement. This administrative regulation establishes[prevides] the framework for
acceptable valuation standards and establishes[that-are-acceptable,and provides] mortality

tables for the determination of adequate reserves.

Section 1. Definitions. (1) "1958 Commissioners Extended Term Table of Mortality” means the -
mortality table that[which]:

(a) Is based on underwriting requirements that do not include evidence of medical insurabil-
ity; and

(b) Incorporates mortality rates adequate to take into account the increase in mortality rate
to which the class of persons whose lives are insured with credit life insurance are subject.

(2) “1958 Commissioners Standard Ordinary Table of Mortality" means the mortality table
that is[which].

(a) [is]Based on underwriting requirements that include evidence of medical insurability; and

(b) [is]A recognized table of mortality that will produce substantially the same result as the
"1958 Commissioners Extended Term Table of Mortality" if thirty (30) percent is added, the addi-
tional thirty (30) percent being the amount necessary to result in mortality rates adequate to
take into account the increase in mortality to which the class or persons whose lives are insured
by credit life insurance are subject.

(3) "2001 Commissioners Standard Ordinary Male Composite Ultimate Mortality Table"
means a mortality table that[which]:

(a) Consists of rates for male lives in the ultimate form with smokers and nonsmokers com-
bined;

(b) Was developed by the American Academy of Actuaries CSO Task Force from the Valuation
Basic Mortality Table developed by the Society of Actuaries Individual Life Insurance Valuation
Mortality Task Force and adopted by the NAIC in December 2002; and




(c) Includes both the age-nearest-birthday and age-last-birthday bases of the mortality ta-
bles.

(4) "Credit Life Insurance" is defined in KRS 304.19-020(1).

(5) “Life actuary” means a person who computes premium rates, dividends, and risks
according to probabilities based on statistical records for life insurance and annuities.

(6) "Single Premium Credit Life Insurance” means credit life insurance for which a charge of-
ten is passed on to the debtor for the term of the coverage of the term of the debt and that is
often included in the total sum of the obligation.

Section 2. Valuation. In conjunction with the valuation required by KRS 304.6-130, each do-
mestic life insurer shall, in the form of an affidavit by its actuary or consulting actuary, submit
to[furnish] the life actuary[-in-the-mannerformand-erder-as-he-may prescribe], totals and
summaries in connection with valuation as the life actuary may deem necessary. In addition,
each domestic life insurer shall supply and submit[furnish] to the life actuary, in corresponding
order, with the necessary documentation, lists, tabulations and working papers for policy con-
tract obligations to be valued, which shall be in readily accessible and auditable form at the
home office of the insurer.

Section 3. Certificate of Valuation. The commissioner [executive director] shall[may] accept
for purposes of issuing a certificate of valuation, the [*JRequest for Certification of Reserves[]
by a domestic life insurance company, which shall be[is] certified by an actuary/deemed-satis-
factoryfor-the purpose-by the-commissioner]executive—director]. [However;]The commis-
sioner [executive-director] shall annually cause the records of domestic life insurance companies
to be audited, using appropriate methods to assure [himselffthat life insurance companies are
properly valuing their reserve liabilities as established by KRS Chapter 304[provided-by-stat-
ute].

Section 4. Components of life insurance policies, annuities, and pure endowment contracts
shall include contracts and[;] any riders or additional benefits related to the contract.

Section 5. Credit Life Insurance. (1) Pursuant to the authority established[eentained] in KRS
304.6-140(2)(a), the reserves for all policies of single premium group credit life insurance and all
single premium individual credit life insurance issued to be effective prior to January 1, 2006
shall be computed on the basis of:

(a) 100 percent of the 1958 Commissioners Extended Term Table of Mortality;

(b) 130 percent of the 1958 Commissioners Standard Ordinary Table of Mortality; or

(c) In accordance with subsection (2) of this section.

(2) Pursuant to [the-autherity-contained-in]KRS 304.6-140(2)(a) the minimum standard for
reserves for all policies of group credit life insurance and individual credit life insurance issued to
be effective prior to January 1, 2006, may be determined as established in paragraphs (a)
through (d) of this subsection. [aceordingto-thefollowing:]

(a) The interest rates used in determining the minimum standard for valuation shall be the
calendar year statutory valuation interest rates as established[defined] in KRS 304.6-145.[;]




(b) The method used in determining the minimum standard for valuation shall be the com-
missioners reserve valuation method as established[defined] in KRS 304.6-150.[3]

(©) The minimum mortality standard for both male and female insureds shall be the 2001
Commissioners Standard Ordinary Male Composite Ultimate Mortality Table.[-ané]

(d) Where the credit life insurance policy or certificate insures two (2) lives, the minimum
mortality standard shall be twice the mortality in the 2001 Commissioners Standard Ordinary
Male Composite Ultimate Mortality Table based on the age of the older insured.

(3) Pursuant to the autharity contained in KRS 304.6-140(2)(a) the minimum standard for re-
serves for all policies of group credit life insurance and individual credit life insurance issued to
be effective on or after January 1, 2006, shall be determined according to the following:

(a) The interest rates used in determining the minimum standard for valuation shall be the
calendar year statutory valuation interest rates as defined in KRS 304.6-145;

(b) The method used in determining the minimum standard for valuation shall be the com-
missioners reserve valuation method as defined in KRS 304.6-150;

(<) The minimum mortality standard for both male and female insureds shall be the 2001
Commissioners Standard Ordinary Male Composite Ultimate Mortality Table; and

(d) If Pthere] the credit life insurance policy or certificate insures two (2) lives, the minimum
mortality standard shall be twice the mortality in the 2001 Commissioners Standard Ordinary
Male Composite Ultimate Mortality Table based on the age of the older insured.

(4) Department [Office] of Insurance examiners, in examining company affairs, shall deem re-
serves maintained in accordance with this administrative regulation to be in compliance with the
Kentucky Insurance Code, KRS Chapter 304, for all years under examination.

Section 6. [%]Special[2] Policies. (1) "Coupon," "pure endowment,” "founders," "charter," "spe-
cial,LJ" and similar type policies, shall use all of the policy benefits afforded in the computation
of the mean reserve formula.

(a) Mean reserve factors shall be printed for use in the computation of policy reserves.

(b) The timing:[;] frequency of contingency, [{if anypl:f] and the method of pure endow-
ment payment shall be clearly shown in the formula used to compute the mean reserve.

(c) Mean reserve computation shall not deviate from the formula and factor developed.

(2) Discriminatory and arbitrary action by the life insurance company to pay some benefits
prior to contract date shall not create an asset or create a reduction of aggregate reserve liability
unless an enforceable negotiable instrument is evidenced.

(3) A separate file of the [*]special[~] type policies established[mentioned] in subsection (1)
of this section, shall be initiated by the Life Actuary of the Department [Gffice] of insurance and
shall be maintained by that[his] department [Office] in addition to policies filed with the Policy
Analyst in the Life Division. For each domestic life insurance company, a folder for each [“]spe-
cial[%] type policy in force shall include a specimen policy, actuarial formula used to arrive at the
mean reserve, and a factor table of the various factors by age at issue distributed for the in-force
durations considered.

(4) For domestic life insurance companies with less than $500,000,000 of individual life in
force and who do not use a standardized program package with unit programming, the follow-
ing benefit breakdown shall be necessary.




(a) In force volume used in the mean reserve valuation run shall be segregated to allow for
auditing of the various benefits.

(b) These benefits shall be enumerated as provided for in the filed specimen policy and shall
include basic palicy, return of premium, unmatured endowments, and termination benefit.

(5) Domestic life insurers excluded by subsection (4) of this section shall have reporting pro-
cedures and requirements compatible with the program package without sacrificing any audit
trail of factors and their application. The requirements may vary from company to company
based on the procedure but shall be in a pattern consistent with that approved for that compa-
ny, based on the annual audit in accordance with KRS 304.6-130 through 304.6-180, and
shall closely follow the requirements for other domestic life insurance companies.

Section 7. Cost of Noncompliance. (1) If material is not available as established in this ad-
ministrative regulationfeutlined-abeve], the additional burden of cost for additional time re-
quired by the staff of the department [Office] of Insurance, or its actuary, shall be borne by the
life insurance company as established[previded] for in KRS 304.2-290. A special examination
may be ordered by the commissioner [exeeutive-directer], providing for a written report to the
commissioner,[him—er—her] together with a time and expense billing to the company
[se]examined.

(2) If a detail audit of reserves reveals that an error was made in the filed annual statement
and in the certificate issued by the department [Office], the commissioner [exeeutive-director]
shallfmay] order the withdrawal of certification and reissuance of certificates and copies, and
require a refiled NAIC annual statement on a significant error, or require[preseribe] corrective
internal procedures in the company prior to the next filed NAIC statement for when the result-
ant error is not significant.

Section 8. Incorporation by Reference. (1) The following material is incorporated by reference:

(a) "1958 Commissioners Extended Term Table of Mortality[(1958}]", 1958,

(b) "1958 Commissioners Standard Ordinary Table of Mortality[{1958)]", 1958, and

(c) "2001 Commissioner Standard Ordinary Male Composite Ultimate Mortality Ta-
ble[¢2061).]", 2001.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Department [Office] of Insurance, 500 Mero Street [2+5-West-Main-Street],
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. This material is also avail-
able on the Web site at: http://doi.ppr.ky.gov/kentucky/.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.
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PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards

806 KAR 6:080. Reserve standards for individual health insurance policies.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.6-070

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110(17), 304.6-070

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110(1) authorizes[prevides-that] the
Commissioner [Exeeutive-Director] of Insurance to promulgate[meay-malke] reasonable admin-
istrative regulations necessary for or as an aid to the effectuation of any provision of the Ken-
tucky Insurance Code. KRS 304.6-070 authorizes[provides-that] the Commissioner [Exeeutive
Director] of Insurance to promulgate[shall-issue] administrative regulations establishing mini-
mum standards for reserves for individual health insurance policies. This administrative regu-
lation establishes the minimum standards for reserves for individual health insurance pol-

icies.

Section 1. Active Life Reserves. (1) General.

(a) Active life reserves shall be [are] required for all in-force policies and shall be [are] in addi-
tion to any reserves required in connection with claims. For policy Types A, B, and C, estab-
lished[described] in subsection (2) of this section, the minimum reserve shall be [is] determined
as established[specified] in subsection (3) of this section [herein].

(b)1._Minimum standards[These] shall be[lt-is-emphasized-however-that-these-are] [mini-
mum-standards.]in accordance with [ard-that] KRS 304.6-070.[;] [requires—that] Higher, ade-
quate reserves shall be established by the insurer in any case in which[where] experience indi-
cates that these minimum standards do not place a sound value on the liabilities under the poli—
cy.

2. For policy Type D, the minimum reserve shall [sheuJé] be the gross pro rata unearned
premium [{premivrm-reserve)].

(2) Types of individual health insurance policies.

(a) Type A [-] policies shall include policies that[which] are guaranteed renewable for life

or to a specified age, [such-as-sixty-(60)-orsixty-five(65)] at guaranteed premium rates.
(b) Type B [-] policies shall include policies that[which] are guaranteed renewable for life

or to a specified age, [such-as-sixty-(60}-orsixty-five-{65)] but under which the insurer reserves
the right to change the scale of premiums.

(c) Type C [-] policies shall include policies in which the insurer has reserved the right to
cancel or refuse for one (1) or more reasons, but has agreed implicitly or explicitly that, prior to a
specified time or age, it will not cancel or decline renewal solely because of deterioration of
health after issue.[>-however;] Policies shall not be considered of this type if the insurer has re-
served the right to refuse renewal provided the right is to be exercised at the same time for all




policies in the same category, if premiums are graded so as to be substantially proportionate to

the costs of insurance at the various attained ages. [Policies-which-comply with-KRS-304.17-
275-on-which-premiums-are-based-on-issue-age-shall be]lare-of-| [this-type:]

(d) Type D [-] policies shall include all other individual policies not already established in
paragraphs (a) through (c) of this subsection.

(e) A franchise policy shall not be classified [Fhe-abeve-does-not-classify-franchise”] as a type

of policy. Contract prowszons within a franchise pollcv in whzch[whm] the nqht to refuse

;eﬁuseﬂcenewaJ—UsuaW-the%gmﬁesewed—te—FeiHse] renewal of all pohcnes in the group or oth—
er categories including [sueh-as] those ceasing to be members of the association, shall be classi-
fied as [~and-this-would-place-suchpeliciesin] Type D [in-accordance-with-thelast-clause-under
paragraph-{c)-of this-subsection]. [Hewever]If premiums are based on the level premium prin-

ciple in which any reflection of age is on the basis of age at issue, or if the renewal undertaking
for the individual meets the requirements for Type A, B, or C, the franchise policy shall be
[sheuld-bese] classified for reserve purposes according to the type to which it belongs.

(f) A policy that has [may-have] guarantees qualifying it as Type A, B, or C until a specified age

or duration after which the guarantees, or lack of guarantees[-may-qualfy-it-asTypeAr-B-Cor

D-in-such-case-the-policy-in-each-period] shall [should] be considered for reserve purposes ac-
cording to the type to which it then belongs.

(9) If Mhere] all of the benefits of a policy, as established[provided] by rider or otherwise,
are not of the same Type [A-B-Cor-D)], each benefit shall [sheuld] be considered for reserve
purposes according to the type to which it belongs.

(3) Reserve standards for policies of Type A, B, or C.

(a) Interest. The maximum interest rate for reserves shall [sheuld] be the greater of the max-
imum rate allowed by KRS 304.6-120 through 304.6-180 and KAR Title 806 in the valua-
tion of:

1. [The-meaximum—rate-permitted-by-law-in-the-veluation-of]Currently issued life insur-
ance;[;] or

2. [The maximum-rate-permitted by law-in-the-valuation-of]Life insurance issued on the
same date as the health insurance.

(b) Mortality. The mortality assumptions used for reserves shall [sheuld] be according to a ta-
ble allowed[permitted] by KRS 304.6-120 through 304.6-180 and KAR Title 806[taw] in the
valuation of life insurance issued on the same date as the health insurance.

(<) Morbidity or other contingency. Minimum standards with respect to morbidity shall be
[are-these] stated in [Z]Reserve Standards for Individual Health Insurance/=] incorporated by

reference in [AppendiA—ef] this administrative regulation[-which—is-subject-te-—revision—from
time-to-time-with-respect to-dates-of-issue-of-contracts].

(d) Negative reserves. Negative reserves on any benefit may be offset against positive re-
serves for other benefits in the same policy, but the mean reserve on any policy shall not [sheuld
never] be taken as less than one-half (1/2) the valuation net premium.

(e) Preliminary term. The minimum reserve shall be on the basis of two (2) years preliminary
term.

(f) Reserve method. Mean reserves diminished by appropriate credit for valuation net de-
ferred premiums. The [ir-no-event-howevershould-the] aggregate reserve for all policies valued




on the mean reserve basis, diminished by any credit for deferred premiums, shall not be less
than the gross pro rata unearned premiums under [such]policies.

(g) Alternative valuation procedures and assumptions. If [Provided] the reserve on all policies
to which the method or basis is applied is not less in the aggregate than the amount deter-
mined according to the applicable standards established in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this
subsection[specified-abeve], an insurer may use any reasonable assumptions as to the interest
rate, mortality rates, or the rates of morbidity or other contingency, and may introduce an as-
sumption as to the voluntary termination of policies. [Also—subject-te-the-preceding—condi-
tien;]The insurer may employ methods other than the methods established in paragraphs (a)
through (f) of this subsection[stated-above] in determining a sound value of its liabilities un-
der itsfsuch] policies, including [but-netlimitedte-thefollowing]:

1. The use of midterminal policy reserves in addition to either gross or net pro rata unearned
premium reserves;

2. Optional use of either the level premium, the one (1) year preliminary term, or the two (2)
year preliminary term method;

3. Prospective valuation on the basis of actual gross premiums with reasonable allowance for
future expenses;

4, The use of approximations including [such-as] those involving age groupings, groupings of
several years of issue, and average amounts of indemnity;

5. The computation of the reserve for one (1) policy benefit as a percentage of, or by other
relation to, the aggregate policy reserves, exclusive of the benefit or benefits so valued; and

6. The use of a composite annual claim cost for all or any combination of the benefits includ-
ed in the policies valued. For statement purposes, the net reserve liability may be shown as the
excess of the mean reserve over the amount of net unpaid and deferred premiums, or, regard-
less of the underlying method of calculation, it may be divided between the gross pro rata un-
earned premium reserve and a balancing item for the [“Jpoalicy reverse.[~]

(h) Gross unearned preliminary term premium. If [Where] a preliminary term method, either
with a one (1) year or two (2) year preliminary term period, is employed, the gross pro rata un-
earned premium to be used in the comparison established[set-ferth] in paragraph (f) of this
subsection shall bear the same relationship to the net premium for the preliminary term period
on the basis of the mortality, morbidity, and interest assumptions used for subsequent valuation
as the gross premium charged bears to the net valuation premium used in subsequent years.

Sec’uon 2 Claim Reserves Present Value of Amounts not Yet Due on Clanms[J[{a#&e—ea#eé

(1) General. Reserves shall be [are] required for claims on all health insurance policies, includ-
ing[whether] of Type A, C, or D, providing benefits for continuing loss, including [sueh-as] loss
of time or hospitalization.

(2) Claim reserve standards for total disability due to accident or sickness.

(a) Interest. The maximum interest rate for reserves shall [sheuld] be the maximum rate al-
lowed[permitted] by KRS 304.6-120 through 304.6-180 and KAR Title 806[law] in the valua-
tion of life insurance issued on the same date as the date the claim is incurred.




(b) Morbidity. Minimum standards with respect to morbidity shall be [are] those stated in
[Z]Reserve Standards for Individual Health Insurance[*# in][Appendix
A-of| [this-administrative-regulation], except that for unreported claims and resisted claims
and, at the option of the insurer, claims with a duration of disablement option of the insurer,
claims with a duration of disablement of less than two (2) years, reserves may be based on the
individual insurer's experience or other assumptions designed to place a sound value on the lia-
bilities. Reserves based on that [sueh] experience or assumptions shall [sheuld] be verified by the
development of each year's claims over a sufficient period of years along the lines of Schedule O
of the insurer's annual statement.

(¢) For policies with an elimination period, the duration of dlsablement shall [sheuld] be con-
sidered as dating from the time that benefits would have begun to accrue had there been no
elimination period.

(d) A new disability connected directly or indirectly with a previous disability that's[whieh]
had a duration of at least one (1) year and terminated within six (6) months of the new disability
shall [sheuld] be considered a continuation of the previous disability.

(3) Reserve standards for all other claim reserves.

(a) Interest. The maximum interest rate for reserves shall [sheuld] be the maximum rate al-
lowed[permitted] by KRS 304.6-120 through 304.6-180 and KAR Title 806[law] in the valua-
tion of life insurance issued on the same date as the date the claim is incurred.

(b) Morbidity or other contingency. The reserve shall [sheuld] be based on the individual in-
surer's experience or other assumptions designed to place a sound value on the liabilities. The
results shall [sheuld] be verified by the development of each year's claims over a sufficient peri-
od of years along the lines of Schedule O of the insurer’s annual statement.

(4) Valuation procedures. The insurer may employ suitable approximations and estimates, in-
cluding [but-retlimited-te] groupings and averages, in computing claim reserves.

Seetion-5.] Incorporation by Reference. (1) “Reserve Standards for Individual Health Insur-
ance”, [£]6/2020[)], is incorporated by reference.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Department of Insurance, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, Monday

hrough Fndav, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.[




CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email djwasson@ky.gov.

*General Reviewer’s Note: The material incorporated by reference did not seem to be included

with this filing. Please file one (1) copy of the material with the Compiler in conjunction with fil-
ing this suggested substitute.




RESERVE STANDARDS FOR INDIVIDUAL HEALTH INSURANCE

Minimum morbidity standards for valuation of individual health insurance policies are as

follows:

1. Total disability due to accident or sickness.

Active life reserves:

Policies issued on or after January 1 1965:

The 1964 Commissioners Disability Table.

Claim reserves:

on currently issued policies as of the claim is incurred.

The minimum morbidity standard in effect for active life reserves

2. Hospital benefits surgical benefits, and matemnity benefits (either specified or expense
reimbursement).

Policies issued on or after January 1 1955 and before January 1 1982:

‘The 1956 Intercompany Hospital surgical Tables.

Polices issued on or after January 1 1982:

The 1974 Medical Expense Tables (Table A).

3. Accidental death benefits.

Polices issued on or after January 1 1965:

The 1959 Accidental Death Benefits Table.

4. All other benefits including major medical cancer expense, and other than total disability.

The insurer should adopt a standard which will produce reserves that place a
sound value on its liabilities under such benefit. The use of morbidity tables
reflecting the insurer's own experience with suitable margins for stochastic
varlation 1s encouraged.
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Final 10/7/2020 3:15 PM
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 6:100. Actuarial opinion and memorandum.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.3-240, 304.6-070, 304.6-150, 304.6-155, 304.6-171, 304.6-180
STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110(1), 304.6-171[-EQ-2009-535]

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY [59—20(99-535—54@%%42—2999—%%
Department-etHpsura wrance:] KRS 304.2-110(1) author-

aes[prewdes—th&t] the Commlssmner [E*eeu{cwe—D#ec—teF] of Insurance to promulgate[may
malke] reasonable administrative regulations necessary for or as an aid to the effectuation of
any provision of the Kentucky Insurance Code, as established[defined] in KRS 304.1-010. KRS
304.6-171 requires every life insurance company doing business in this state to annually submit
the opinion of a qualified actuary as to whether or not the reserves and related actuarial items
held in support of the policies and contracts established[specified] by the commissioner [exee-
wtive-director] are computed appropriately. KRS 304.6-171 requires the commissioner [executive
directer] to establish[define], by administrative regulation, the requirements|[specifies] of the
actuarial opinion and to broaden the scope of the opinion if necessary. This administrative regu-
lation establishes provisions[is-necessary] for the commissioner to determine whether or not
reserves and related actuarial items are computed appropriately, are based on assumptions
that[which] satisfy contractual provisions, are consistent with prior reported amounts, and

comply with KRS Chapter 304[the-applicable-laws-of thisstate].

Section 1. Definitions. (1) "Actuarial opinion" means the opinion of an appointed actuary re-
garding the adequacy of the reserves and related actuarial items based on an asset adequacy
test in accordance with Section 4 of this administrative regulation and with presently accepted
actuarial standards.

(2) "Actuarial Standards Board" means the board established by the American Academy of
Actuaries to develop and promulgate standards of actuarial practice.

(3) "Annual statement" means the statement required by KRS 304.3-240.

(4) "Appomted actuary is defmed bv KRS 304 5—131(2)[n}eans—a-quah-ﬁed—a€tuafy—wh9—!—5

thequa!#eeataetuaw

(5) "Asset adequacy analysis" means an analysis that meets the standards and other require-
ments of Section 4 of this administrative regulation.

(6) "Commissioner" is defined by KRS 304.1-050( 1) [means-the-Commissioner-of the-De-

partment-of-Insurance].




(7) “Company" is defmed by KRS 304 6-131 (3) [means-a#fe-msumneefempany—fmtemal

MWM@#SMM&WWW]

Section 2. Actuarial Qualifications. In order to be considered a qualified actuary for the pur-
poses of this administrative regulation, a person shall:

(1) Be a member in good standing of the American Academy of Actuaries;

(2) Be qualified to sign a statement of actuarial opinion for a life and health insurance com-
pany annual statement in accordance with the qualification standards for actuaries established
by the American Academy of Actuaries for actuaries signing those statements;

(3) Be familiar with the valuation requirements applicable to life and health insurance compa-
nies;

(4) Not been found by the commissioner, or if so found has subsequently been reinstated as
a qualified actuary, following appropriate notice and hearing to have:

(a) Violated any provision of, or any obligation imposed by, any law in the course of his or her
dealings as a qualified actuary;

(b) Been found guilty of fraudulent or dishonest practices;

(c) Demonstrated incompetence, lack of cooperation, or untrustworthiness to act as a quali-
fied actuary,

(d) Submitted to the commissioner during the past five (5) years, pursuant to this administra-
tive regulation, an actuarial opinion or memorandum that the commissioner rejected because it
did not comply with this administrative regulation or standards established by the Actuarial
Standards Board; or

(e) Resigned or been removed as an actuary within the past five (5) years as a result of an act
or omission indicated in any adverse report on examination or as a result of the failure to adhere
to generally acceptable actuarial standards; and

(5) Not have failed to notify the commissioner of any action taken by any commissioner of
any other state if the[whiech] action was based on a disqualification standard estab-
lished[eutlined] in subsection (4) of this section.

Section 3. General Requirements. (1) Every company doing business in this state shall annual-
ly submit the opinion of an appointed actuary stating[setting-ferth] an opinion relating to re-
serves and related actuarial items held in support of policies and contracts, in accordance with
Section 4 of this administrative regulation. The actuarial opinion shall be:

(a) Included on or attached to Page 1 of the annual statement for each year[beginning-with
the year-in-which-this-administrative regulation-becomes-effective];

(b) Entitled "Statement of Actuarial Opinion"; and




(c) The statement of an appointed actuary stating[settingferth] an opinion relating to re-
serves and related actuarial items held in support of policies and contracts in accordance with
Section 4 of this administrative regulation.

(2) The commissioner shall[may] accept the statement of actuarial opinion filed by a foreign
or alien company with the insurance supervisory regulator of another state if the commissioner
determines that the opinion meets the requirements applicable to a company domiciled in this
state.

(3) The commissioner shall[may] grant an extension of the date for submission of the state-
ment of actuarial opinion upon written request by the company.

(4) The company shall give the commissioner timely written notice:

(a) If an actuary is appointed or retained and the notice shall state:

1. The name of the appointed actuary;

2. The title of the appointed actuary;

3. If the actuary is a consulting actuary, the name of the firm;

4. The manner of appointment or retention by the company of each appointed actuary; and

5. That the person appointed or retained by the company meets the requirements of a quali-
fied actuary pursuant to Section 2 of this administrative regulation;

(b) If the actuary ceases to be appointed or retained as an appointed actuary or to meet the-
requirements of a qualified actuary; or

(c) If that any person appointed or retained as an appointed actuary replaces a previously
appointed actuary, which notice shall state the reason for replacement.

(5) The asset adequacy analysis required by Section 4 of this administrative regulation shall:

(a) Conform to the Standards of Practice as promulgated by the Actuarial Standards Board
and available at http://www.actuarialstandardsboard.org/standards-of-practice/ to this
administrative regulation, which standards shall form the basis of the statement of actuarial
opinion in accordance with this administrative regulation; and

(b) Be based on methods of analysis that shall be[as-are] appropriate for those purposes
based on standards established by the Actuarial Standards Board.

(6) Pursuant to KRS 304.6-171, the statement of actuarial opinion shall apply to all in force
business on the statement date, whether directly issued or assumed, regardless of when or
where issued.

(7) If the appointed actuary determines as the result of the asset adequacy analysis that a re-
serve in addition to the aggregate reserve held by the company and calculated in accordance
with the methods established[set-forth] in KRS 304.6-171 is necessary, the company shall es-
tablish the additional reserve.

(8)(a) Additional reserves established under subsection (7) of this section and determined by
an actuary to not be necessary in subsequent years may be released as reserves on the compa-
ny's financial statement.

(b) Any amounts released shall be disclosed in the actuarial opinion for the applicable year.

(C) The release of reserves shall not result in the adoption of a lower standard of valuation.

Section 4. Statement of Actuarial Opinion Based on an Asset Adequacy Analysis. (1) The
statement of actuarial opinion required by this section shall contain an opening paragraph,
which shall:




(a) Identify the name and title of the appointed actuary;
(b) Identify the name of the consulting firm, if applicable;
(¢) Identify the name of the company;

(d) Identify the qualifications of the appointed actuary;

(e) Identify the manner in which the actuary was appointed or retained to render the actuarial
opinion; and

(f) Include language identical or substantially similar to the following:

1. For a company actuary: "I, (name of actuary), am (title) of (name of company) and a mem-
ber of the American Academy of Actuaries. | was appointed by, or by the authority of, the Board
of Directors of said insurer to render this opinion as stated in the letter to the commissioner
dated (insert date). | meet the Academy qualification standards for rendering the opinion and
am familiar with the valuation requirements applicable to life and health insurance companies.”;
or

2. For a consulting actuary: "I, (name and title of actuary), a member of the American Acade-.
my of Actuaries, am associated with the firm of (insert name of consulting firm). | have been ap-
pointed by, or by the authority of, the Board of Directors of (name of company) to render this
opinion as stated in the letter to the commissioner dated (insert date). | meet the Academy qual-
ification standards for rendering the opinion and am familiar with the valuation requirements
applicable to life and health insurance companies.”

(2) The statement of actuarial opinion shall contain a scope paragraph, which shall:

(a) Identify the subjects on which an opinion is to be expressed;

(b) Describe the scope of the work of the appointed actuary;

() Include a tabulation delineating the reserves and related actuarial items that[which] have
been analyzed for asset adequacy and the method of analysis;

(d) Identify the reserves and related actuarial items covered by the opinion that[which] have
not been [seJanalyzed; and

(e) Include language identical or substantially similar to the following: "I have examined the
actuarial assumptions and actuarial methods used in determining reserves and related actuarial
items listed below, as shown in the annual statement of the company, as prepared for filing with
state regulatory officials, as of December 31, (year). Tabulated below in the Table of Reserves
and Liabilities are those reserves and related actuarial items that[which] have been subjected to
asset adequacy analysis.”

(3) If the appointed actuary has relied on other experts to develop portions of the analysis, -
the statement of actuarial opinion shall contain a reliance paragraph, which shall:

(a) Describe each situation in which[area-where] the appointed actuary has deferred to an-
other expert in developmg data, procedures, or assumptlons, and

the{nalyﬂsrjlnclude a statement ldentlcal or substantlally S|m1|ar to the following and be ac-
companied by a statement in accordance with subsection (10) of this section:

1. "I have relied on (name), (title) for (for example[e-g-], anticipated cash flows from currently
owned assets, including variations in cash flows according to economic scenarios) and, as certi-
fied in the attached statement,..."; or

2. "l have relied on personnel as cited in the supporting memorandum for certain critical as-
pects of the analysis in reference to the accompanying statement.”




(4) If the appointed actuary has examined the underlying asset and liability records, the
statement of actuarial opinion shall include a statement identical or substantially similar to the
following: "My examination included [sueh]review of the actuarial assumptions and actuarial
methods and of the underlying basic asset and liability records and [sueh]Jtests of the actuarial
calculations as | considered necessary."; and

(5) If the appointed actuary has not examined the underlying records, but has relied upon
listings and summaries of policies in force or asset records prepared by the company or a third
party, the statement of actuarial opinion required shall include a statement identical or substan-
tially similar to the following and be accompanied by a statement in accordance with subsection
(10) of this section: "In forming my opinion on (specify types of reserves) | relied upon data pre-
pared by (name and title of company officer certifying in-force records) as certified in the at-
tached statement. | evaluated that data for reasonableness and consistency. | also reconciled
that data to (exhibits and schedules to be listed as applicable) of the company's current annual
statement. In other respects my examination included review of the actuarial assumptions and
actuarial methods and tests of the actuarial calculations as | considered necessary."

(6) The statement of actuarial opinion required by this section shall contain an opinion para-
graph, which shall:

(a) Express the opinion of the appointed actuary with respect to the adequacy of the support-
ing assets to mature the liabilities that reserves and related actuarial values concerning the iden-
tified statement items:

1. Are computed in accordance with presently accepted actuarial standards consistently ap-
plied and are fairly stated, in accordance with sound actuarial principles;

2. Are based on actuarial assumptions that[which] produce reserves at least as great as
those called for in any contract provision as to reserve basis and method, and are in accordance
with all other contract provisions;

3. Meet the requirements of KRS Chapter 304, 201 KAR Chapter 1, and KAR Title 806[the
insurance-laws-and-administrative regulations] of the state of domicile and are at least as
great as the minimum aggregate amounts required by the state in which this statement is filed;

4. Are computed on the basis of assumptions consistent with those used in computing the
corresponding items in the annual statement of the preceding year-end with any exception not-
ed; and

5. Include provision for all actuarial reserves and related statement items [which-eught-te
be]established;

(b) Express an opinion as to the adequate provision for the anticipated cash flow by including
language identical or substantially similar to the following: "The reserves and related items,
[when]considered in light of the assets held by the company with respect to [such]reserves and
related actuarial items including, but not limited to, the investment earnings on [such]assets,
and the considerations anticipated to be received and retained under applicable[sueh] policies
and contracts, make adequate provision, according to presently accepted actuarial standards of
practice, for the anticipated cash flows required by the contractual obligations and related ex-
penses of the company.”;

(©) State that the actuarial methods, considerations, and analyses used in forming the actuari-
al opinion conform to the appropriate Standards of Practice as promulgated by the Actuarial
Standards Board, which standards form the basis of the statement of opinion;




(d) State whether or not there has been a material change from the applicable date of the
annual statement to the date of the rendering of the actuarial opinion which should be consid-
ered in reviewing the opinion and include language identical or substantially similar to one (1) of
the following:

1. "This opinion is updated annually as required by statute. To the best of my knowledge,
there have been no material changes from the applicable date of the annual statement to the
date of the rendering of this opinion which should be considered in reviewing this opinion.”; or

2. "The following material change(s) that[whieh] occurred between the date of the statement
for which this opinion is applicable and the date of this opinion should be considered in review-
ing this opinion: (describe the change or changes.)";

(e) include a statement regarding unanticipated events which is identical or substantially
similar to the following: "The impact of unanticipated events subsequent to the date of this
opinion is beyond the scope of this opinion. The analysis of asset adequacy portion of this opin-
ion should be viewed recognizing that the company's future experience may not follow all the
assumptions used in the analysis"; and

(f) Contain the signature, address, and telephone number of the appointed actuary.

(7) A change in actuarial assumptions shall not include the adoption for a new issue, a new
claim, or other new liability of an actuarial assumption which differs from a corresponding as-
sumption used for a prior new issue, new claim, or other new liability.

(8) If the appointed actuary is unable to form an opinion, the actuary shall refuse to issue a
statement of actuarial opinion.

(9) If the opinion of the appointed actuary is adverse or qualified, the actuary shall issue an
adverse or qualified actuarial opinion explicitly stating the reason for the[suech-an] opinion. This
statement shall follow the scope paragraph and precede the opinion paragraph.

(10) If the appointed actuary relies on the certification of others on matters concerning the
accuracy or completeness of any data underlying the actuarial opinion, or the appropriateness
of any other information used by the appointed actuary in forming the actuarial opinion, the ac-
tuarial opinion shall:

(a) Indicate the persons the actuary is relying upon and a precise identification of the items
subject to reliance; and

(b) Provide a certification from the persons on whom the appointed actuary relied that:

1. Precisely identifies the items on which the person is providing information;

2. Includes a statement as to the accuracy, completeness, or reasonableness, as applicable, of
the items; and

3. Includes the following information for the person rendering the certification:

a. Signature and date signed;

b. Title;

¢. Company;

d. Address; and

e. Telephone number.

(11) Except as established in subsection (12) of this administrative regulation and as an
alternative to the requirements of subsection[Seetien] 4(6)(a)3. of this section[administrative
regulation], the commissioner may make one (1) or more of the following alternatives available
to the opining actuary:




(a)1.a. A statement that the reserves meet the requirements of the insurance laws and admin-
istrative regulations of the insurer’s state of domicile; and

b. A formal written list of the standards and conditions for filing an opinion based on the law
of the insurer’s state of domicile.

2. If an insurer uses this alternative, the standards and conditions in effect on July 1 of a cal-
endar year shall apply to statements for that calendar year, and they shall remain in effect until
they are revised or revoked.

3. If no formal written list of the standards and conditions is available, the commissioner shall
not offer this alternatives[:J

(b)1.a. A statement that the reserves meet the requirements of the insurance laws and admin-
istrative regulations of the insurer's state of domicile;

b. Verification that the actuary's request to file an opinion based on the law of the insurer’s
state of domicile has been approved; and

c. A statement that any conditions required by the commissioner for approval of that request
have been met.

2. If the commissioner offers this alternative, a formal written statement of the allowance shall
be issued no later than March 31 of the year it is first effective.

3. Subsequent to that statement being issued, if an insurer wants to use this alternative, the
insurer shall file a request with the commissioner, along with justification for its use, no later
than April 30 of the year of the opinion to be filed. The request shall be deemed approved on
October 1 of that year if the commissioner has not denied the request by that date; and[:]

(0)1.a. A statement that the reserves meet the requirements of the insurance laws and admin-
istrative regulations of the insurer's state of domicile; and

b. A statement that the actuary has submitted the required comparison as estab-
lished[specified] by the insurer’s state of domicile,

5. If the commissioner offers this alternative, a formal written list of products for which the
required comparison shall be provided shall be published on the department's Web site,
http://insurance.ky.gov.

3. If a company uses this alternative, the formal written list of products in effect on July 1 of a
calendar year shall apply to statements for that calendar year, and it shall remain in effect until it
is revised or revoked.

4. If a formal written list of products for which the required comparison shall be provided is
not available, this alternative shall not be allowed.

5.a. If a company desires to use this alternative, the appointed actuary shall provide a com-
parison of the gross nationwide reserves held to the gross nationwide reserves that would be
held under National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ codification standards, as estab-
lished[setforth] in KRS 304.6-171.

b. Gross nationwide reserves shall equal the total reserves calculated for the total company in
force business directly sold and assumed, indifferent to the state in which the risk resides, with-
out reduction for reinsurance ceded.

¢. The comparison shall include the following:

(i) Product type;

(ii) Death benefit or account value;

(i) Reserves held;




(iv) Codification reserves; and

(v) Codification standard.

d. The comparison shall include all products identified by either the state of filing or any oth-
er states that accept[subseribing-te] this alternative.

e. If there is no codification standard for the type of product or risk in force or if the codifica-
tion standard does not directly address the type of product or risk in force, the appointed actu-
ary shall provide detailed disclosure of the specific method and assumptions used in determin-
ing the reserves held.

f. The comparison provided by the company shall fis-te] be kept confidential in accordance
with KRS 304.6-171.

(12)(a) [Notwithstanding-the provisions-of Section-4(11)-of this-ac atis
tion;JThe commissioner may reject an opinion based on the laws and administrative regulations
of the state of the insurer's domicile and require an opinion based on the laws of the Common-
wealth of Kentucky.

(b) If an insurer is unable to provide the opinion within sixty (60) days of the request or other
period of time determined by the commissioner after consultation with the insurer, the commis-
sioner may contract an independent actuary at the company's expense to prepare and file the
opinion.

Section 5. Description of Actuarial Memorandum Including an Asset Adequacy Analysis. (1) In
accordance with KRS 304.6-171, the appointed actuary shall prepare a memorandum to the
company that[whieh] shall describe the analysis done in support of the actuary's opinion re-
garding the reserves.

(2) The memorandum shall:

(2) Be made available to the commissioner, upon request, for examination;

(b) Be returned to the company after an examination by the commissioner; and

(0) Not be considered a record of the insurance department or subject to automatic filing
with the commissioner.

(3) The commissioner may designate a qualified actuary to review the actuarial opinion and
prepare a supporting memorandum, which reasonable and necessary expense of the independ-
ent review shall be paid by the company but shall be directed and controlled by the commis-
sioner, if:

(a) The commissioner requests a memorandum and no memorandum exists;

(b) The commissioner finds that the analysis stated[described] in the memorandum fails to
meet the standards of the Actuarial Standards Board; or

(c) The commissioner finds that the analysis stated[deseribed] in the memorandum fails to
meet the standards of this administrative regulation.

(4) In preparing the memorandum, the appointed actuary may rely on, and include as a part
of the actuarial memorandum, memoranda prepared and signed by another actuary who is
qualified in accordance with Section 2 of this administrative regulation with respect to the sub-
jects covered in the memorandum.

(5) The reviewing actuary shall have the same status as an examiner for the purposes of ob-
taining data from the company and the work papers and documentation of the reviewing actu-
ary shall be retained by the commissioner.




(6) Any information provided by the company to the reviewing actuary and included in the
work papers shall be considered as material provided by the company to the commissioner and
shall be kept confidential to the same extent as other material provided by the company to the
commissioner pursuant to KRS 304.6-171. ‘

(7) The reviewing actuary shall not be an employee of a consulting firm involved with the
preparation of any prior memorandum or opinion for the insurer pursuant to this administrative
regulation for any one (1) of the current year or the preceding three (3) years.

(8)(a) In accordance with KRS 304.6-171, the appointed actuary shall prepare a regulatory as-
set adequacy issues summary in accordance with subsection (12) of this section.

(b) The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary shall be submitted no later than March 15
of the year following the year for which a statement of actuarial opinion based on asset adequa-
cy is required.

(c) The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary shall be kept confidential in accordance
with KRS 304.6-171(5)(h).

(9) The memorandum shall demonstrate that the analysis has been done in accordance with
the standards for asset adequacy referred to in Section 3(5) of this administrative regulation.

(10) The actuarial memorandum referred to in this section shall specify:

(a) For reserves, the documentation of the assumptions made shall be in a manner to al-
low an actuary reviewing the actuarial memorandum to form a conclusion as to the rea-
sonableness of the assumptions and shall include:

1. Product descriptions including a market description, underwriting and any other aspect of
a risk profile and the specific risks the appointed actuary deems significant;

2. Source of liability in force;

3. Reserve method and basis;

4., Investment reserves,;

5. Reinsurance arrangements;

6. Identification of any explicit or implied guarantees made by the general account in support
of benefits provided through a separate account or under a separate account policy or contract
and the methods used by the appointed actuary to provide for the guarantees in the asset ade-
quacy analysis; and
7. Documentation of assumptions to test reserves for the following:

a. Lapse rates, both base and excess;

b. Interest crediting rate strategy;

¢. Mortality;

d. Policyholder dividend strategy;

e. Competitor or market interest rate;

f. Annuitization rates;

g. Commissions and expenses; and

h. Morbidity:;]

bBo-made




(b) For assets, the documentation of the assumptions made shall be in a manner to allow
an actuary reviewing the actuarial memorandum to form a conclusion as to the reasona-
bleness of the assumptions and shall include:

1. Portfolio descriptions, including a risk profile disclosing the quality, distribution and types
of assets;

2. Investment and disinvestment assumptions;

3. Source of asset data;

4. Asset valuation bases; and

5. Documentation of assumptions made for:

a. Default costs;

b. Bond call function;

c. Mortgage prepayment function;

d. Determining market value for assets sold due to disinvestment strategy; and
e. Determining yield on assets acquired through the investment strategy;[:J

e-documentation-o

~ tho actiiarial moemorandum--1o-For—-a—coRctiHsion-a510-the-Feasonaoitnc

assumptions:]

(¢) Analysis basis:

1. Methodology;

2. Rationale for inclusion or exclusion of different blocks of business and how pertinent risks
were analyzed;

3. Rationale for degree of rigor in analyzing different blocks of business, including the level of
materiality that was used in determining how rigorously to analyze different blocks of business;

4. Criteria for determining asset adequacy, including the precise basis for determining if as-
sets are adequate to cover reserves under moderately adverse conditions or other conditions as
established[specified] in relevant actuarial standards of practice; and

5. Effect of federal income tax, reinsurance, and any other relevant factor;[:]

(d) Summary of material changes in methods, procedures or assumptions from prior year's
asset adequacy analysis;

(e) Summary of results; and

(f) Conclusion.

(11) The memorandum shall include a statement that[which] indicates that the memoran-
dum conforms to the appropriate Standards of Practice and that[whieh] shall include language
identical or substantially similar to the following: "Actuarial methods, considerations, and anal-
yses used in the preparation of this memorandum conform to the appropriate standards of
practice as promulgated by the Actuarial Standards Board, which standards form the basis for
this memorandum.”

(12) The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary shall include:

(a) Descriptions of the scenarios tested, including whether those scenarios are stochastic or
deterministic, and the sensitivity testing done relative to those scenarios.

1. If negative ending surplus results under certain tests in the aggregate, the actuary shall de-
scribe those tests and the amount of additional reserve as of the valuate date that[which], if
held, would eliminate the negative aggregate surplus values.

2. Ending surplus values shall be determined by:




a. Extending the projection period until the in-force and associated assets and liabilities at the
end of the projection period are immaterial; or

b. Adjusting the surplus amount at the end of the projection period by an amount that ap-
propriately estimates the value that can reasonably be expected to arise from the assets and lia-
bilities remaining in force;

(b) The extent to which the appointed actuary uses assumptions in the asset adequacy analy-
sis that are materially different than the assumptions used in the previous asset adequacy analy-
sis;

() The amount of reserves and the identity of the product lines that had been subjected to
asset adequacy analysis in the prior opinion but were not subject to analysis for the current
opinion; ,

(d) Comments on any interim results that may be of significant concern to the appointed ac-
tuary,

(e) The methods used by the actuary to recognize the impact of reinsurance on the compa-
ny's cash flows, including both assets and liabilities, under each of the scenarios tested; and

(f) Whether or not the actuary has been satisfied that all options, whether explicit or embed-
ded, in any asset or liability, including those affecting cash flows embedded in fixed income se-
curities, and equity-like features in any investments have been appropriately considered in the
asset adequacy analysis.

(13) The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary shall contain the name of the company
for which the regulatory asset adequacy issues summary is being supplied and shall be signed
and dated by the appointed actuary rending the actuarial opinion.

(14) The appointed actuary shall retain on file, for at least seven (7) years, sufficient documen-
tation so that it will be possible to determine the procedures followed, the analyses performed,
the bases for assumptions, and the results obtained.

Section 6. Additional Considerations for Analysis. (1) An appropriate allocation of assets in
the amount of the interest maintenance reserve (IMR), whether positive or negative, shall be
used in any asset adequacy analysis.

(2) Analysis of risks regarding asset default may include an appropriate allocation of assets
supporting the asset valuation reserve (AVR).

(3) AVR assets shall not be applied for any other risks with respect to reserve adequacy.

(4) Analysis of these and other risks may include assets supporting other mandatory or volun-
tary reserves available to the extent not used for risk analysis and reserve support.

(5) The amount of the assets used for the AVR shall be disclosed in the Table of Reserves and
Liabilities and in the memorandum.

(6) The method used for selecting particular assets or allocated portions of assets shall be
disclosed in the memorandum.

Section 7.][%@@MMMMM—G#%F#FHM
statementsfor-theyear2009:

Section-8:] Incorporation by Reference. (1) The "Table of Reserves and Liabilities", 5/2009, is
incorporated by reference.




(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Department of Insurance, 500 Mero Street [R15-West-Main-Street], Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Forms may also be obtained on the depart-

ment's internet Web site at: http://insurance ky.gov.
CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky

40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.
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Andy Beshear Department of Insurance Kerry B. Harvey
Governor P.O. Box 517 Secretary
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0517
Ray A. Perry 1-800-595-6053 Sharon P. Clark
Deputy Secretary http://insurance.ky.gov Commissioner

October 7th, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 806 KAR 7:035. Finance committee of domestic insurers.
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:
After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of

the issues raised by 806 KAR 7:350, the Department of Insurance proposes the attached
amendment to 806 KAR 7:350.

Sincerely,

D) Womon,

DJ Wasson, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Insurance
Mayo-Underwood Building, 500 Mero St.
Frankfort, KY 40601

KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D



Final 10-5-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 7:035. Finance committee of domestic insurers.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.2-205, 304.7-361[-304-2-205]

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110, 304.2-205, 304.3-240, 304.7-367[304-2-110]

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110 authorizes the Commis-
sioner of Insurance to promulgate administrative requlations necessary for or as an aid
to the effectuation of any provision of the Kentucky Insurance Code as defined in KRS
304.1-010. KRS 304.2-205 requires[autherizes] the commissioner [efdnsurance] to prescribe
additional filings to be made by an insurer, along with its annual statement filing, by March 1 of
each year. KRS 304.3-240 requires each authorized insurer to annually file with the com-
missioner a true statement of its financial condition, transactions, and affairs. KRS 304.7-
367 authorizes the commissioner to promulgate administrative requlations implementing

the prows:ons of KRS Chapter 304 Subtltle 7[KRS—304—2-440—authenzes—the—Gemm+s-

304+O40] The admlnlstratlve regulation requires a domestlc insurer transactlng busmess in
Kentucky to notify the commissioner [efinsuranee] of the names of the members of the finance
or executive committees of its company or the board of directors responsible for approval of the
insurer’s investment policy.

Section 1. (1) Each domestic insurer shall, with each annual statement report, file with the
commissioner the names of the members of any finance or executive committee or the board of
directors which has, during the preceding year, exercised the authority to approve investments
or investment policy.

(2) The filing required by subsection (1) of this section shall be accompanied by an affidavit
signed by a financial officer of the insurer or its president, attesting that the members of the ex-
ecutive or finance committee or the board of directors have been advised as to the requirements
of Subtitle 7 of KRS Chapter 304, administrative regulations, and other pertinent provisions of
law applicable to investments or investment policy submitted for their approval.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.

REGULATORY IMPACT ANALYSIS AND TIERING STATEMENT

The agency needs to file at the time that it files this Staff Suggested Substitute, one (1)
clean copy of a corrected RIA that includes a corrected answer on Page 6, in 4(a) of the
RIA statement where the agency stated “The amendment includes technical changes on-
ly”. As pointed out by the reviewer on the Staff review form, this proposed administra-
tive regulation is new.

e For the RIA make sure to paginate as pages 5-7




REGULATORY IMPACT ANALYSIS AND TIERING STATEMENT

Regulation: 806 KAR 7:035
Contact Person: DJ Wasson
Phone: +1 (502) 564-6026
Email: dj.wasson@ky.gov

¢y Provide a brief summary of:

(a) What this administrative regulation does: This administrative regulation requires
domestic insurers to provide the Commissioner of Insurance the names of the committee members
or the board of directors that are responsible for approving the investments of the insurer.
Additionally, the regulation requires an affidavit attesting that these members have been provided
information regarding their responsibilities for investments under the Insurance Code.

(b) The necessity of this administrative regulation: This administrative regulation is
necessary for the commissioner to identify those responsible for the investments of insurers in
order to ensure proper financial oversight of domestic insurers doing business in Kentucky.

(c) How this administrative regulation conforms to the content of the authorizing
statutes: KRS 304.2-205 authorizes the Commissioner of Insurance to prescribe additional filings
to be made by an insurer, along with its annual statement filing, by March 1 of each year. KRS
304.2-110 authorizes the Commissioner of Insurance to promulgate administrative regulations
necessary for or as an aid to the effectuation of any provision of the Kentucky Insurance Code as
defined in KRS 304.1-010. The administrative regulation requires a domestic insurer transacting -
business in Kentucky to notify the Commissioner of Insurance of the names of the members of the
finance or executive committees of its company or the board of directors responsible for approval
of the insurer’s investment policy.

(d How this administrative regulation currently assists or will assist in the effective
administration of the statutes: This administrative regulation identifies the individuals responsible
for the investment policies of a domestic insurer doing business in Kentucky and ensures that they
have been notified of their responsibilities under the law.

2) If this is an amendment to an existing administrative regulation, provide a brief summary
of:
(a) How the amendment will change this existing administrative regulation: This is a new - .

administrative regulation.

(b) The necessity of the amendment to this administrative regulation: This is a new
administrative regulation.




(c) How the amendment conforms to the content of the authorizing statutes: This is a new
administrative regulation.

(d) How the amendment will assist in the effective administration of the statutes: This is a
new administrative regulation.

3) List the type and number of individuals, businesses, organizations, or state and local
governments affected by this administrative regulation: The administrative regulation will impact
the approximately 147 domestic insurers doing business in Kentucky.

@) Provide an analysis of how the entities identified in the previous question will be impacted
by either the implementation of this administrative regulation, if new, or by the change, ifitis an
amendment, including:

(a) List the actions each of the regulated entities have to take to comply with this regulation
or amendment: Each domestic insurer will be required to file the names of those approving the
investment policy of the insurer, along with an attestation that those individuals have been
provided information regarding their statutory responsibilities, with the annual statement filing
made to the Department of Insurance.

(b) In complying with this administrative regulation or amendment, how much will it cost
each of the entities: There should not be any cost to comply with this administration as this
information is currently provided with the annual statement filing.

(c) As a result of compliance, what benefits will accrue to the entities: As a result of
compliance, domestic insurers will be providing the department with information necessary to
ensure the financial soundness of the company.

(5) Provide an estimate of how much it will cost the administrative body to implement this
administrative regulation:
(2) Initially: Implementation of this amendment is not anticipated to have an initial cost on

the Department of Insurance.

(b) On a continuing basis: Implementation of this amendment is not anticipated to have an
on-going cost on the Department of Insurance.

(6) What is the source of the funding to be used for the implementation and enforcement of
this administrative regulation: The Department will use funds from its current operational budget
to perform the tasks necessary.

(7) - Provide an assessment of whether an increase in fees or funding will be necessary to
implement this administrative regulation, if new, or by the change if it is an amendment: An
increase of fees will not be necessary because additional personnel is likely unnecessary.




(8) State whether or not this administrative regulation established any fees or directly or
indirectly increased any fees: This administrative regulation does not establish any fees.

) TIERING: Is tiering applied? Explain why or why not. No, tiering is not applied as this
administrative regulation applies equally to all domestic insurers in Kentucky.
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Andy Beshear Department of Insurance Kerry B. Harvey
Governor P.O. Box 517 Secretary
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0517
Ray A. Perry 1-800-595-6053 Sharon P. Clark
Deputy Secretary hitp://insurance.ky.qov Commissioner

October 7th, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 806 KAR 7:090. Custodial accounts for investment securities of insurance
companies.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of
the issues raised by 806 KAR 7:090, the Department of Insurance proposes the attached
amendment to 806 KAR 7:090.

Sincerely,

00) Wamory

DJ Wasson, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Insurance
Mayo-Underwood Building, 500 Mero St.
Frankfort, KY 40601

£
KY An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D

KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com
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Final 10-5-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 7:090. Custodial accounts for investment securities of insurance companies.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.7-360

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110, 304.7-360

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110 authorizes the Commis-
sioner of Insurance to promulgate administrative requlations necessary for or as an aid to the
effectuation of any provision of the Kentucky Insurance Code as defined in KRS 304.1-010.
KRS 304.7-360 requires the Commissioner [Exesutive-Direstor] of Insurance to promulgate ad-
ministrative regulations governing the deposit by insurers of securities with clearing corpora-
tions, the Federal Reserve book-entry system, and with[e#] custodian banks. This administra-
tive regulation establishes[sets—forth-the] provisions to be included in an agreement for the
custody of an insurance company’s securities with a custodian bank and gualifications for a cus-
todian bank.

Section 1. Definitions.

(1) "Certificated security" is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(q).

(2) "Clearing corporation" is defined byfin] KRS 304[034].7-360(1)(a).

(3) "Commissioner" is defined byfin] KRS 304.1-050(1).

(4) "Custodian bank" is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(b).

(5) "Custodied securities" means securities held by the custodian bank, its hominee, a clear-
ing corporation, the Federal Reserve book-entry system, or in any combination of these entities.

(6) "Direct participant” is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(c).

(7) "Federal reserve book-entry system" is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(d).

(8) "Member bank" is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(e).

(9) "Security" is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(f).

(10) "Uncertificated security” is defined byfin] KRS 304.7-360(1)(h).[Ferms-defined-inKRS

304.7-360-shall-have-the-same-meaning-when-used-herein:|

Section 2. Standards for Custodial Agreements. Pursuant to KRS 304.7-360, an insurance
company may provide by agreement for the custody of its securities with a custodian bank
meeting the qualifications set forth in Section 3 of this administrative regulation which securities
may be held by the custodian bank, lts nomlnee in a clearing corporatlon orin the Federal Re-
serve book -entry system [ ; , ;

these-entities—arereferred-to-here-in-ascustodied-securities:"] Any [sueh] agreement shall con-
tain provisions to comply with the following standards:

(1) The agreement shall be in writing and shall be authorized by a resolution of the Board of
Directors or an authorized committee of the insurance company [er-ef-an-authorized-committee

thereof].

(2) Certificated securities held by the custodian bank may be [se] held separate from the se-
curities of the custodian bank and of all its other customers or in a fungible bulk of securities as
part of a Filing of Securities by Issue (FOSBI) arrangement.




(3) Securities [se] held in a fungible bulk by the custodian bank and securities in a clearing
corporation or the Federal Reserve book-entry system shall be separately identified on the cus-
todian bank's official records as being owned by the insurance company. The [Said] records
shall identify which custodied securities are held by the custodian bank or by its nominee and
which securities are in a clearing corporation or the Federal Reserve book-entry system. If the
securities are in a clearing corporation or the Federal Reserve book-entry system, the [said]
records shall also identify where the securities are and, if in a clearing corporation, the name of
the clearing corporation or, if held in nominee name, the name of the nominee.

(4) All custodied securities that are registered shall be registered in the name of.

(a) The [the] insurance company; [+r]

(b) A [the-name-ef-a] nominee of the insurance company; [-#r]

(c) The [the] [rame-of-the] custodian bank or its nominee; [;] orl5]

(d) If [#] in a clearing corporation, [in-the-name-of] the clearing corporation or its nominee.

(5) Custodied securities shall be held subject to the instructions of the insurance company
and shall be withdrawable upon the demand of the insurance company.

(6) The custodian bank shall arrange for execution of transactions in custodied securities in
accordance with the insurance company's instructions and shall not exercise discretionary au-
thority to effect transactions in custodied securities except in such limited or special circum-
stances as the insurance company may authorize.

(7) The custodian bank shall be required to send or cause to be sent to the insurance com-
pany a confirmation of all transfers of custodied securities to or from the account of the insur-
ance company. In addition, the custodian bank shall be required to furnish the insurance com-
pany with reports of holdings of custodied securities at such times and containing such infor-
mation as may be reasonably requested by the insurance company, but not less frequently than
monthly.

(8) During the course of the custodian bank's regular business hours, any officer or employee
of the insurance company, any independent accountant selected by the insurance company, or
any representative of the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] shall be entitled to examine, on the
premises of the custodian bank, the custodian bank's records relating to custodied securities
and the custodied securities, but only upon furnishing the custodian bank with written instruc-
tions to that effect from an appropriate officer of the insurance company or the commissioner
[executive-director].

(9) The custodian bank and its nominee shall be required to send to the insurance company:

(a) All reports which they receive from a clearing corporation or the Federal Reserve book-
entry system on their respective systems of internal accounting control; and

(b) Reports prepared by outside auditors with respect to the respective systems of internal
accounting control of the custodian bank and its nominee pertaining to custodial record keeping
as the insurance company may reasonably request from time to time.

(10) The custodian bank shall maintain records sufficient to determine and verify information
relating to custodied securities that may be reported in the insurance company's annual state-
ment and supporting schedules as filed with various regulatory authorities and in connection
with any audit of the financial statements of the insurance company.

(11) The custodian bank shall provide upon request an affidavit [appropriate-affidavits] with
respect to custodied securities on the form, [XJCustodian Affidavit/[~incorperated-by-reference
in-this-administrative-regulation] or in a substantially similar format. [substantially-in-the-form
attached-hereto-(Appendix-A)-with-respect-to-custodied-securities].

(12) The custodian bank shall be obligated to indemnify the insurance company for any loss
of custodied securities, except that the custodian bank shall not be [so] obligated to the extent
that the [sueh] loss was caused by other than the negligence or dishonesty of the custodian
bank.




(13) If Ir-the-event-that] there is a loss of custodied securities for which the custodian bank
shall be obligated to indemnify the insurance company as provided in subsection (12) of this
section, the custodian bank shall promptly replace the securities or the value of the securities
[thereef] and the value of any loss of rights or privileges resulting from the [said] loss of securi-
ties.

(14) The agreement may provide that the custodian bank will not be liable for any failure to
take any action required to be taken under the agreement if [ir-the-event-and-to-the-extent-that]
the taking of such action is prevented or delayed by war, [{lwhether declared or not and includ-
ing existing war[}], revolution, insurrection, riot, civil commotion, act of God, accident, fire, ex-
plosion, stoppage of labor, strikes or other differences with employees, laws, regulations, orders
or other acts of any governmental authority, or any other cause [whatever] beyond its reasona-
ble control.

(15) If [In-the-event-that] entry in a clearing corporation or in the Federal Reserve book-entry
system is gained through a direct participant or a member bank, there shall be an agreement
between the custodian and the direct participant or member bank under which the direct partici-
pant or member bank shall be subject to the same liability for loss of custodied securities as the
custodian bank. However, [provided—hewever-that,] if the direct participant or member bank
shall be subject to regulation under the laws of a jurisdiction which is different from the jurisdic-
tion the laws of which regulate the custodian bank, the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] may
accept a standard of liability applicable to the direct participant or member bank which is differ-
ent from the standard of liability applicable to the custodian bank.

(16) The agreement shall [must] be terminable by the insurance company on not more than
thirty (30) days' notice.

Section 3. Qualifications of Custodian Banks. Any custodian bank selected by an insurance
company to act as custodian under an agreement authorized by KRS 304.7-360 shall possess
the following qualifications:

(1) lts custodial functions for the insurance company shall be carried out under its trust de-
partment;

(2) It shall be audited annually by independent public accountants whose audit report, to-
gether with the related financial statements, and whose report on internal controls are made
available to the insurance company and the commissioner [executive-direstor];

(3) It shall [must] be organized under the laws recognizing that the custodied securities are
[“lspecial deposits[*] rather than [“]general deposits,[*] remain the specific property of the insur-
ance company, and shall not be [are-net] subject to any creditor relationship of the custodian
bank.

(4) It shall [must] maintain blanket bond coverage relating to its custodial functions with limits
equal to or exceeding those suggested by the American Bankers Association.

(5) Its capital and surplus funds shall equal or exceed $25,000,000 [unless-it-is-Hicensed

shall equs e ; g ; ]}nd

(6) It shall [must] have demonstrated sufficient experience in handling custodial accounts.

Section 4[5]. Incorporation by Reference. (1) "Custodian Affidavit", (6/2020), is incorporated
" by reference,
(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Department of Insurance, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, Monday
through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.
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Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0517
Ray A. Perry 1-800-595-6053 Sharon P. Clark
Deputy Secretary hitp://insurance.ky.gov Commissioner

October 7th, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 806 KAR 8:010. Valuation of assets on deposit.
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:
After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of

the issues raised by 806 KAR 8:010, the Department of Insurance proposes the attached
amendment to 806 KAR 8:010.

Sincerely,

D) Wamony

DJ Wasson, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Insurance
Mayo-Underwood Building, 500 Mero St.
Frankfort, KY 40601
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Final 10-6-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 8:010. Valuation of assets on deposit.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.8-040, 304.8-095, 304.8-120

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110 provides that the Commis-
sioner [Executive-Director] of Insurance may make reasonable rules and administrative regula-
tions necessary for or as an aid to the effectuation of any provision of the Kentucky Insurance
Code. This administrative regulation sets forth the method of valuation [valie] of assets on de-
posit with the Commissioner [Executive-Direstor] of Insurance.

Section 1. Insurance companies making deposits and revaluations of deposits [the-same]
with the Custodian of Insurance Securities shall utilize the Insurance Department Form 143,
[*IDetailed Listing of Securities Held Under Safekeeping Pursuant to KRS 304.8-095["incor-
porated-by-reference-in-this-administrative regulation].

Section 2. Assets on deposit with the Custodian of Insurance Securities which are obligations
having a fixed term, rate and face value, shall be valued as follows:

(1) At face value if acquired at face value; or

(2) If acquired above or below face value, [they%ha#be—ua#&ed] on the basis of the purchase
prlce adjusted annually to bring the value to face value on maturity. The [Sueh] obligations when
in default as to either principal or interest are not eligible for deposit, and the commissioner [ex-
ecutive-director] shall require replacement of the [sueh] deposits in_accordance with [{]KRS
304.8-120[)].

Section 3. Preferred and common stocks shall be valued, for deposit purposes, at the then
market value. Twice each year these classes of securities shall be revalued, once as of the pre-
ceding December 31 and again as of June 30. The latter revaluation shall be accompanied by a
statement from a recognized securities brokerage firm to the effect that the prices [se] used
were the fair market values at June 30.

Section 4. Mortgage loans and[fef] notes shall be valued at the unpaid principal balance of
the note at the time of deposit. Each year, before April 1, the mortgage loans on deposit shall be
revalued so as to reflect the estimated unpaid principal balances as of the succeeding Decem-
ber 31.

Section 5. Home office real property shall be valued for deposit purposes at the company's
book value, or at the fair market value if the appraisal[sueh] has been established by a li-
censed appraiser[an-appraisal-acceptable-to-the-commissioner] [executive-direster]. Any
change in the company's book value or appraised value shall cause a revaluation of this depos-
it.




Section 6. Incorporation by reference. (1) "Insurance Department Form 143, Detailed Listing
of Securities Held Under Safekeeping Pursuant to KRS 304.8-095", (6/2020), is incorporated by
reference.

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Department of Insurance, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, Monday
through Friday, 8 a.m. {0 4:30 p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.

MATERIAL INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

At the time the agency files this staff suggested substitute, it needs to file one (1) clean
copy of the Insurance Department Form 143 that was missing from its original filing that:

¢ Includes the 6/2020 edition date
e Updates Address of the Department of Insurance




KENTUCKY DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE
DETAILED LISTING OF SECURITIES HELD UNDER SAFEKEEPING
PURSUANT TO KRS 304.8-095

COMPANY NAME:
FOR QUARTER
ENDING:
Cusip # Security Description Par Value Statement Value Market Value
TOTALS (should agree to Schedule E-Part 3-Special Deposits Held in KY)
Signature Date

Printed Name
Title

Form 143 Updated 6/2020
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Andy Beshear Department of Insurance Kerry B. Harvey
Governor P.O. Box 517 Secretary
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0517
Ray A. Perry 1-800-595-6053 Sharon P. Clark
Deputy Secretary hitp://insurance.ky.gov Commissioner

October 7th, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 806 KAR 49:020. Captive insurer application requirements.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of
the issues raised by 806 KAR 49:020, the Department of Insurance proposes the attached
amendment {0 806 KAR 49:020.

Sincerely,

D) Wamon,

DJ Wasson, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Insurance
Mayo-Underwood Building, 500 Mero St.
Frankfort, KY 40601
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Final 10/7/2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 49:020. Captive insurer application requirements.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.49-010-304.49-230[304:49]

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110, 304.49-020(3), 304.49-140

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110 provides that the Commis-
sioner [Executive Direstor] of Insurance may promulgate administrative regulations necessary
for or as an aid to the effectuation of any provisions of the Kentucky Insurance Code. KRS
304.49-140 authorizes the Commissioner [Executive—Direstor] of Insurance to establish and
amend administrative regulations related to captive insurance companies as necessary to effec-
tuate the provisions of KRS 304.49-010 to 304.49-230[304-49]. KRS 304.49-020(3) authorizes
the Commissioner [Exesutive-Directer] of Insurance to promulgate administrative regulations
concerning the application for a certificate of authority for captive insurers. This administrative
regulation establishes application requirements for the regulation of captive insurers.

Section 1. Definition. "Company" means the captive insurer.

Section 2. A captive insurer seeking to obtain a certificate of authority to engage in insurance
business in Kentucky shall apply to the Kentucky Department [Office] of Insurance by complet-
ing and filing the following forms:

(1) Captive Application for Admission, CI-103 [{72004)] [(04/01];

(2) Coverage Limits and Reinsurance, CI-105 [{04/01)];

(3) Irrevocable Letter of Credit Cl-130 [(#2004}] [(04/01)];

(4) Application for Authorization to Certify Loss Reserves and Loss Expense Reserves for

Captives CI-110 [(2/2011)] [(04/01)];

(5) Application for Authorization as an Independent Certified Public Accountant for Captive
Insurance Business CI-120 [{2£2011)] [(64/64}]; and

(6) Biographical Affidavit CI-501 [(#2004)] [{64/013].

Section 3. All documents required by KRS 304.49-020(3)-(6) shall be submitted with a com-
pany’s application seeking a certificate of authority to engage in insurance business in Kentucky
or a statement describing the reason each document is not applicable.

Section 4. (1) In addition to the processing of the application, an organizational investigation
or examination may be performed by the department [effice] before an applicant receives a cer-
tificate of authority[is-licensed] as a captive insurer.

(2) The investigation or examination shall consist of a general survey of the company's cor-
porate records, including:

(a) Charter, bylaws, and minute books;

(b) Verification of capital and surplus;

(c) Verification of principal place of business;

(d) Determination of assets and liabilities; and

(e) A review of investment practice policy and procedures.




Section 5. A person shall not act as an insurance producer, broker, agent, salesman, or rein-
surance intermediary for captive business without the authorization of the commissioner [exesu-
tive—director]. Application for that authorization shall be on the Individual Application 8301
[(2120144)][(03/04)] form, incorporated by reference in 806 KAR 9:025.

Section 6. Revocation. (1) The commissioner [executive-direster] may, subject to the provi-
sions of this section, by order revoke the certificate of authority of the company:

(a) If the company has not commenced business according to its plan of operation within two
(2) years of being licensed,;

(b) If the company ceases to carry on insurance business in Kentucky;

(c) At the request of the company; or

(d) For any reason provided in KRS 304.3-190 or 304.3-200.

(2) Before the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] revokes the certificate of authority of a com-
pany under subsection (1)(a) or (b) of this section, the commissioner [executive-directer] shall
give the company notice in writing of the grounds on which he proposes to cancel the certifi-
cate of authority[license], and shall afford the company an opportunity to make objectlon in
writing within thirty (30) days receipt of the notice. The commissioner [executive-directer] shall
take into consideration any objection timely filed and schedule an administrative hearing on the
matter in accordance with KRS Chapter 13B.

Section 7. Incorporation by Reference. (1) The following material is incorporated by refer-
ence:

(a) Captive [Iasurer] Application for Admission CI-103 (6/2020) [{04/84)];

(b) Coverage, Limits and Reinsurance Cl-105 (4/2001)[(6/2020)] [{04/04)];

(c) Irrevocable Letter of Credit CI-130 (6/2020) [64/64}];

(d) Application for Authorization to Certify Loss Reserves and Loss Expense Reserves for
Captives CI-110 (6/2020)[(2/2011)] [{84/64H)];

(e) Application for Authorization as an Independent Certified Public Accountant for Captive
Insurance Business Cl-120 (6/2020)[{2/2011}] [(64/61}];,_and

(f) Biographical Affidavit CI-501 (4/2001)[{6/2020)] [(04/04)]f;-and

i icati [(63/6hH].

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright law,
at the Kentucky Department [Office] of Insurance, 500 Mero [245-West-Main] Street, Frankfort,
Kentucky 40601, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.

MATERIAL INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

The agency needs to file (1) clean and one (1) dirty copy of each of the following at the
time that it files this staff suggested substitute:

- Captive Application for Admission CI-103 - 6/2020

- Irrevocable Letter of Credit CI-130 - 6/2020

- Application for Authorization to Certify Loss Reserves and Loss Expense Reserves
for Captives CI-110 - 6/2020

- Application for Authorization as an Independent Certified Public Accountant for
Captive Insurance Business CI-120 - 6/2020




10.

11.

12.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPTIVE APPLICATION FOR ADMISSION
(Attach separate sheets, if needed)

Name of proposed captive

Parent or sponsor

Name, address, and phone number of individual to be contacted regarding this application

Indicate type of proposed captive
o Pure o Association o Industrial Insured o Risk Retention o Sponsored
Organization Form o Stock o Mutual

Principal place of business of proposed captive

Resident registered agent and address

Location of books and records

Capital and/or surplus of company
(a) Initial capital $

Initial surplus  $
Total $
(b) Location of shares of stock

Name(s) and address(es) of beneficial owners Percentage of ownership

(M

@

)

(Use separate sheet if needed)

Explain relationship among beneficial owners

Enclose annual report or 10Ks of beneficial owners.




13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

If letter(s) of credit is (are) to be used
Name and address of bank Issued in favor of

Amount

Name and address of management firm

Name and address of lawyer

Claims handler

Name and address of certified public accountant

Name and address of actuary

Name and address of (re)insurance broker

Biographical information for directors and officers
(List below and include biographical affidavit)

Name Position(s) with captive

If applicant is an industrial insured captive, please answer the following:

Employer and position

(a) Name and address of each full-time employee acting as an insurance manager or buyer

(b) Aggregate annual premium $

(c) Number of full-time employees

Include the following with this application:

(a) Coverage/limits/reinsurance form attached

(b) Certified copy of captive's certificate of incorporation, articles of association and bylaws.

(¢) An application fee of $600.00 for domestic; $700.00 for foreign
(d) A feasibility study by an actuary




(e) Statement of benefit to Kentucky
(f) Biographical affidavits on officers and directors (Form CI501)
(g) If applicant is association captive, give history, purpose, size and other details of parent
association
(h) List all other providers and their responsibilities together with how fees for services rendered
are to be charged.
(i) Detailed plan of operation with supporting data including:
(1) Risks to be insured - direct, assumed and ceded - by line of business
(2) Fronting company if operating as a reinsurer
(3) Expected net annual premium income
(4) Maximum retained risk (per loss and annual aggregate)
(5) Rating program
(6) Reinsurance program
(7) Organization and responsibility for loss prevention and safety including the main
procedures followed and steps taken to deal with events prior to possible claims
(8) Loss experience for past five years together with projections for the ensuing five
years
(9) Organization chart
(10)Financial projections on an expected and worst case scenario
Items 1,3,4 and 10 above should be projecfed for a five-year period.
NOTE: Prepare one extra copy of all documents required by this application.

1 CERTIFY THAT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF ALL OF THE
INFORMATION GIVEN IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND THAT ALL
ESTIMATES GIVEN ARE TRUE ESTIMATES BASED UPON FACTS WHICH HAVE BEEN
CAREFULLY CONSIDERED AND ASSESSED.

Name Date

Signature

(Officer)

Form CI103 Updated: June 2020




10.

11.

12

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
CAPTIVE APPLICATION F_OR ADMISSION
(Attach separate sheets, if needed)

Name ofProposed Captive _ _ ___ __________________ _

Parentor Sponsor _ __ -
Name, address, and phone number ofindividual to be contacted regarding this application

Indicate Type of Proposed Captive
Pure Association Industrial Insured Risk Retention Sponsored

Organization Form Stock Mutual

Principal Place ofBusiness of Proposed Captive

Resident Registered Agent and Address _

Location ofBooks and Records

Capital and/or Surplus of Company
(@) Initial Capital §
Initial Surplus  §

Total L _
() Location ofSharesofStock _ -
Name(s) and Address(es) of Beneficial Owners Percentage o f Ownership

(Use separate sheet ifneeded)
Explain Relationship Among Beneficial Owners

Enclose Annual Report or IOKs of Beneficial Owners.




13.

4..

15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

If Letter(s) of Credit Is (Are) to be Used
Name and Address ofBank Issued in Favor Of Amount

Name and Address ofActvary __ __ __________________ -

Name and Address of (Re)insurance Broker __ -

Biographical Information for Directors and Officers
(List below and include biographical affidavit)

Name Position(s) with Captive Employer and Position

If Applicant is an Industrial Insured Captive, please answer the following:
(@) Name and address of each full-time employee acting as an Insurance Manager or Buyer

(b) Aggregate annual premium$ __
(c) Number of full-time employees _ ____ _ _

Include the following with this application:

(a) Coverage/Limits/Reinsurance form attached

(b) Certified copy ofCaptive's certificate of incorporation, articles ofassociation and bylaws.
(0 An application fee 0f $600.00 for domestic; $700.00 for foreign

(d A feasibility study by an actuary

(e) Statement ofbenefit to Kentucky

(f) Biographical affidavits on officers and directors (Form CI501)




(9) Ifapplicant is Association Captive, give history, purpose, size and other details ofparent
association
(h) List all other providers and their responsibilities together with how fees for services rendered
are to be charged.
(i) Detailed Plan ofOperation with supporting data including:
(1) Risks to be insured - direct, assumed and ceded - by line ofbusiness
(2) Fronting company if operating as a reinsurer
(3) Expected net annual premium income
(4) Maximum retained risk (per loss and annual aggregate)
(5) Rating program
(6) Reinsurance program
(7) Organization and responsibility for loss prevention and safety including the main
procedures followed and steps taken to deal with events prior to possible claims
(8) Loss experience for past five years together with projections for the ensuing five
years
(9) Organization chart
(10)Financial projections on an expected and worst case scenario
Ttems 1,3,4 and 10 above should be projected for a five-year period.
NOTE: Prepare one extra copy of all documents required by this application [upen-direction-of

thisDepartment].

1 CERTIFY THAT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF ALL OF THE
INFORMATION GIVEN IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND THAT ALL
ESTIMATES GNEN ARE TRUE ESTIMATES BASED UPON FACTS WIICH HAVE BEEN
CAREFULLY CONSIDERED AND ASSESSED.

(Officer)

Form CI103 Updated: June 2020




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
CAPTIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT

Letter of Credit No. (00001) AB.C. Bank
Date Address
City, State
Commiissioner
Department of Insurance
Commonwealth of Kentucky
Address
Commissioner:
1. We hereby establish our IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT in your favor for the account of

up to the aggregate amount of available by
your draft(s) drawn on us, at sight, bearing the number of this IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF
CREDIT No. (00001). This LETTER OF CREDIT shall expire at our Letter of Credit Department,

, at our close of business on unless as hereinafter

extended.

This LETTER OF CREDIT is issued pursuant to the provisions of and on behalf of the above
mentioned (name of captive) which is applying for a certificate of
authority to engage in the insurance business in the Commonwealth of Kentucky as a captive
insurance company. We understand and agree that (name of captive)
has no obligation to reimburse us and we have no right of set off against any funds held by us for
(name of captive) in the event this LETTER OF CREDIT is drawn
down, in whole or in part. By issuing this LETTER OF CREDIT, we waive any common law,
statutory or contractual right of reimbursement or set off against
(name of captive) that may arise in the event this LETTER OF CREDIT is drawn down, in whole
or in part.

It is a condition of the LETTER OF CREDIT that it shall be automatically extended for additional
periods, each of one year, unless at least ninety calendar days prior to the then relevant expiration
date we have advised you in writing that we elect not to extend. In that event, you may draw

hereunder on or prior to the then relevant expiration date, up to the full amount then available
hereunder, against your sight drafi(s) on us, bearing the number of this LETTER OF CREDIT.

It is a further condition of the LETTER OF CREDIT that each automatic extension shall be
measured from the then relevant expiration date, even though such date is not a business day in
Kentucky for this Bank. It is also a condition of this LETTER OF CREDIT that, for the purpose of
drawing hereunder, if the then relevant expiration date is a nonbusiness day for our Bank, drawing
may be made not later than our next immediately following business day.

This LETTER OF CREDIT sets forth in full the terms of our undertaking, and such undertaking
shall not in any way be modified, amended or amplified by reference to any note, document,
instrument, statute, regulations or agreement referred to herein or in which this LETTER OF




CREDIT is referred to or to which this LETTER OF CREDIT relates and any such reference shall

not be deemed to incorporate herein by reference any note, document, instrument, statute,
regulation, or agreement.

Each sight draft so drawn and presented shall be promptly honored by us if presented on or prior to
the above stated expiration date or any extension thereof as above provided. Presentation under this
LETTER OF CREDIT must be made at

located at
during normal banking hours.

Optional Provision

7. Unless otherwise expressly stated, this credit is subject to the Uniform Customs and Practices
for Commercial Documentary credits fixed by the International Chamber of Commerce, ICC
Publications No. 500 (1993 Rev.).

Very truly yours
Form CI1130

Updated: June 2020




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
CAPTIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT
Letter of Credit No. (00001) Date

A.B.C.Bank
o Address
Commissioner [eflasuranece] City, State
Department of Insurance
Commonwealth ~ of  Kentucky
Address
Commissioner:

I We hereby establish our IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT in your favor for the account of
____________ wp to the aggregate amount of ___ _ _ _ available by
your draft(s) drawn on us, at sight, bearing the number ofthis IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF
CREDIT No. (00001). This LEITER OF CREDIT shall expire at our Letter of Credit Department,

__, at our close of business on unless as hereinafter

extended.

2. This LETTER OF CREDIT is issued pursuant to the provisions ofand on behalf of the above
mentioned ___ _ ___ ____ (name of captive) which is applying for a certificate of
authority to engage in the insurance business in the Commonwealth of Kentucky as a captive
insurance company. We understand and agreethat _________ {name of captive)
has ro obligation to reimburse us and we have o right ofset off against any funds held by us for
_________ (name of captive) in the event this LETTER OF CREDIT is drawn
down, in whole or in part. By issuing this LEITER OF CREDIT, we waive any common law,
statutory or contractual right of reimbursement or set offagainst _________ _

(name of captive) that may arise in the event this LETTER OF CREDIT is drawn down, in whole or

in part.

3, Itis a condition ofthe LETTER OF CREDIT that it shall be automatically extended for additional
periods, each of one year, unless at least ninety calendar days prior to the then relevant expiration
date we have advised you in writing that we elect not to extend. In that event, you may draw
hereunder on or prior o the then relevant expiration date, up to the full amount then available
hereunder, against your sight draft(s) an us, bearing the number ofthis LETTER OF CREDIT.

4. ltis a further condition ofthe LETTER OF CREDIT that each automatic extension shall be
measured from the then relevant expiration date, even though such date is not a business day in
Kentucky for this Bank. It is also a condition ofthis LETTER OF CREDIT that, for the purpose of
drawing hereunder, i fthe then relevant expiration date is a nonbusiness day for our Bank, drawing
may be made not later than our next immediately following business day.

5. This LETTER OF CREDIT sets forth in full the terms of our undertaking, and such undertaking
shall not in any way be modified, amended or amplified by reference to any note, document,
instrument, statute, regulations or agreement referred to herein or in which this LETTER OF
CREDIT is referred to or to which this LETTER OF CREDIT relates and any such reference shall




not be deemed to incorporate herein by reference any note, document, instrament, statute,
regulation, or agreement.

6. Each sight draft so drawn and presented shall be promptly honored by us if presented on or prior to
the above stated expiration date or any extension thereofas above provided. Presentation under this

LETTER OF CREDIT mustbe madeat located at

Optional Provision

7. Unless otherwise expressly stated, this credit is subject to the Uniform Customs and Practices for
Commercial Documentary credits fixed by the International Chamber ofCommerce, ICC
Publications No. 500 (1993 Rev.).

Very truly yours

FormClI130
Updated: June 2020




APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION
TO CERTIFY LOSS RESERVES AND LOSS
EXPENSE RESERVES FOR CAPTIVES

To the Commissioner, Department of Insurance, Commonwealth of Kentucky, I hereby apply for

authorization to certify as to the adequacy of loss reserves and loss expense reserves as required by KRS
304.49.

Al A

INDIVIDUALS ONLY MAY APPLY
Full Legal Name

Residence Address

(a) Date of Birth (b) Social Security Number

Education and Degree
High School

College

Graduate or Professional

(List all educational institutions attended and addresses on additional sheet, if necessary. Indicate
major concentration and actuarial exams completed if not a Fellow.)
Member of Professional Societies or Associations (List )

Present Chief Occupation

Position or Title How long?

Employer's Name

Address

How long with this employer? Where?

Other jobs, positions, directorates, or officerships concurrently held at present

Complete Employment Record for Past 20 Years
Dates Employer and Address Title




9.  Indicate property and casualty loss reserve and loss expense reserve experience

10.  List the captive account(s) you will be certifying

11. In order to qualify to sign statements of opinion relating to loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves for a captive insurance company, an applicant must qualify in one or more of the following
areas. Indicate by an X which area(s) you qualify in:

[] A member of the Casualty Actuarial Society and three years of property and casualty loss and
loss expense reserve experience.
[] A member in good standing of the American Academy of Actuaries and five years of property
and casualty loss and loss expense reserve evaluation experience.
[] A property and casualty loss reserve specialist with at least ten years of experience, three of
which shall have included responsibility for:
- the overall reserve level or a significant portion of the overall reserve level; or
- qualifying overall reserves or a significant portion of overall reserves; or
- the prospective evaluation of the reasonableness of the overall reserves or a

significant portion of the overall reserves.

I hereby certify that my responses to the above are true and complete, and I have read and understand all

of the requirements and provisions of the Captive Insurance Statutes and Regulations and will fully

comply therewith.
(NO FEE REQUIRED) Signed
Dated
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of - ,20
Signature of Notary Public

NOTARY SEAL Notary Public authorized by law of the State of

to administer oaths.

My commission expires on

Form CI110
Updated: June 2020




APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION
TO CERTIFY LOSS RESERVES AND LOSS
EXPENSE RESERVES FOR CAPTIVES

To the Commissioner[o£Insurance], Department of Insurance, Frankfort, Kentucky, I hereby apply
for authorization to certify as tothe adequacy of loss reserves and loss expense reserves as required

by KRS 304.49.

INDIVIDUALS ONLY MAY APPLY

Full LegalName __ ___ ______________________
Residence Address _ __ . . . ____ v -
() Date ofBirth________ |
Education and Degree

Ll A

Graduate or Professional = = = = = = = = = = = = = =

(List all educational institutions attended and addresses on additional sheet, ifnecessary. Indicate
major concentration and actuarial exams completed ifnot a Fellow.)
5. Member of Professional Societies or Associations (List) ____ _

6. Present Chief Occupation

Positionor Title_______________ _ Howlong?z _____ -
Employer'sName ___ . ______ _
Address

How long with this employer? __________ ~ Where? _______ -

7. Otherjobs, positions, directorates, or officerships concurrently held at present

8. Complete Employment Record for Past 20 Years
Dates Employer and Address Title




10.  List the captive account(s) you will be certifying

11. Tn order to qualify to sign statements of opinion relating to loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves for a captive insurance company, an applicant must qualify in one or more ofthe followmg

areas. Indicate by an X which area(s) you qualify in:

A member of the Casualty Actuarial Society and three ‘years ofproperty and casualty loss and

loss expense reserve experience.

A member in good standing ofthe American Academy of Actuaries and five years of property

and casualty loss and loss expense reserve evaluation” expenence

A property and casualty loss reserve specialist with at least ten years of experlence, three of

which sha]l have included responsibility for:

" the overall reserve level or a swmﬁcant portion ofthe overall reserve level; or

" qualifying overall reserves or a 51g1" fi

cant portion ofoverall reserves; or

" the prospective evaluation ofthe reasonableness of the overall réserves or a

significant portion ofthe overall réserves.

I hereby certify that my responses to the above are frue and complete, and T have read and understand all
ofthe requirements and provisions ofthe Captive Insurance Statutes and Regulations and will fully

comply therewith.
(NO FEE REQUIRED) | Signed _______________
Dated_______________
Subscribed and sworn to before me this dayof __________
Signature 0f N otary Poblic____________________

to administer oaths.

My commission expireson_ ____ __ _

FormCI110
Updated: June 2020




APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION
AS AN INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
FOR CAPTIVE INSURANCE BUSINESS

To the Commissioner [of Insurance], Department of Insurance, [Frankfort,] Commonwealth of
Kentucky, 1 hereby apply for authorization as anindependent certified public accountant for the

transacting of audits for Captive Insurance Companies.
INDIVIDUALS ONLY MAY APPLY

Full Legal Nae __ -
Residence Address -
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5 List all insurance and/or captive auditing experience for past 15 years including specific dates

(attach addition sheets as necessary).

6. List the captive account(s) you will be auditing,

7. Present ChiefOccupation_ _
Position or Title

How long with this employer? ______________________ -
8  Has applicant ever been arrested, or indicted for and/or convicted ofany crime or offense other than

a traffic violation? If"yes", submit full particulars of each case and disposition thereof.

9. Icontrol directly or indirectly, or own legally or beneficially the outstanding stock ofthe following

10. Do you currently hold or have you held any type ofinsurance license? __ ______ _ _




(type) (state) (expiration date)
11.  Have you ever had a license or privilege refused or revoked by an Insurance Department? Ifso,

give details.

12.  Are you currently licensed as a CPA? Ifso, please indicate state. _

13.  Has your license as a CPA in this state or any state ever been suspended or revoked? Ifso, give
details.

14 Will you assign only individuals that have a minimum of two years insurance auditing experience?
vyes o0

I hereby certify that I have read and understand all ofthe requirements and provisions ofthe Captive
Insurance Statutes and Regulations and will fully comply therewith.

(NO FEE REQUIRED) Signed _
Dated_ ___ ____ __ .. -
Subscribed and sworn to beforeme this__ dayof ___________ _,20_.
Signature of Notary Public_ _ __ _________________ -
NOTARY SEAL Notary Public -authorized by law ofthe State of B

to administer oaths.

Form CI120
Updated: June 2020




APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION
AS AN INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
FOR CAPTIVE INSURANCE BUSINESS

To the Commissioner, Department of Insurance, Commonwealth of Kentucky, I hereby apply for
authorization as an independent certified public accountant for the transacting of audits for Captive

Insurance Companies.

INDIVIDUALS ONLY MAY APPLY
Full Legal Name
Residence Address
(a) Date of Birth (b) Social Security Number

ol A e

Education and Degree
High School
College

Graduate or Professional

5. List all insurance and/or captive auditing experience for past 15 years including specific dates

(attach addition sheets as necessary).

6.  List the captive account(s) you will be auditing.

7. Present Chief Occupation

Position or Title How Long?

Employer's Name
Address
How long with this employer?

8.  Has applicant ever been arrested, or indicted for and/or convicted of any crime or offense other than

a traffic violation? If "yes", submit full particulars of each case and disposition thereof.

9. Icontrol directly or indirectly, or own legally or beneficially the outstanding stock of the following

insurers:




10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

Do you currently hold or have you held any type of insurance license?

(type) (state) (expiration date)
Have you ever had a license or privilege refused or revoked by an Insurance Department? If so,

give details.

Are you currently licensed as a CPA? If so, please indicate state.

Has your license as a CPA in this state or any state ever been suspended or revoked? If so, give

details.

Will you assign only individuals that have a minimum of two years insurance auditing experience?

YES[] NO []

I hereby certify that I have read and understand all of the requirements and provisions of the Captive

Insurance Statutes and Regulations and will fully comply therewith.

(NO FEE REQUIRED) Signed
Dated
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of ,20
Signature of Notary Public
NOTARY SEAL Notary Public authorized by law of the State of

to administer oaths.

My commission expires on

Form CI120
Updated: June 2020
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PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET

Andy Beshear Department of Insurance Kerry B. Harvey
Governor P.O. Box 517 Secretary
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0517
Ray A. Perry 1-800-595-6053 Sharon P. Clark
Deputy Secretary http://insurance.ky.gov Commissioner

October 7t 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill, Regulation Compiler
Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 806 KAR 49:030. Captive insurer reporting requirements.

Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of
the issues raised by 806 KAR 49:030, the Department of Insurance proposes the attached
amendment to 806 KAR 49:030.

Sincerely,

D) Wamon,

DJ Wasson, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Insurance
Mayo-Underwood Building, 500 Mero St.
Frankfort, KY 40601

KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com

TEAM i AnE ualO- ortunity Empl M/FID
KENTUCKY q pportunity Employer



Final 10-6-2020
SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET
Department of Insurance
Financial Standards and Examination Division

806 KAR 49:030. Captive insurer reporting requirements.

RELATES TO: KRS 304.49-010-304.49-230[304-49]

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 304.2-110, 304.49-070(2), 304.49-140

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 304.2-110 provides that the Commis-
sioner [Executive-Director] of Insurance may promulgate administrative regulations necessary
for or as an aid to the effectuation of any provisions of the Kentucky Insurance Code. KRS
304.49-140 authorizes the Commissioner [Executive-Direstor] of Insurance to establish and
amend administrative regulations related to captive insurance companies as necessary to effec-
tuate the provisions of KRS 304.49-010 to 304.49-230[304-49]. KRS 304.48-070(2) requires the
Commissioner [Executive-Directer] of Insurance to promulgate administrative regulations con-
cerning the reporting requirements of captive insurers. This administrative regulation establishes
financial and reporting requirements for captive insurers.

Section 1. Definition. "Company" means the captive insurer.

Section 2. A consortium[{1)}-An-asseciation] captive insurer, and a pure or industrial in-
sured captive insurer engaged in insurance in Kentucky shall annually submit to the commis-
sioner [executive-director] a report of its financial condition, verified by oath of two (2) of its ex-
ecutive officers on the Annual Statement Convention Blank. The report shall be filed in the
same format and content as required by KRS_304.2-205 and 304.3-240.

n"-‘ --3 - 3 - e : = I- - .'_
ondition; h 3
Convention-Blank pursuant to-KRS-304-2-205:]

Section 3. (1) A captive insurer shall have an annual audit by an independent certified public
accountant, authorized by the commissioner [exeeutive-direstor], and shall file an audited finan-
cial report with the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] on or before July [dunre] 1 for the year end-
ing December 31 immediately preceding.

(2) The annual audit report shall be considered part of the company's annual report of finan-
cial condition except with respect to the date by which it shall be filed with the commissioner
[executive-director].

(3) The annual audit shall consist of the following:

(a) [(1)] Opinion of independent certified public accountant.

1. [{a)] Financial statements furnished pursuant to this section shall be examined by an inde-
pendent certified public accountant [aeceuntants] in accordance with generally-accepted audit-
ing standards as determined by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

2. [¢6)] The opinion of the independent certified public accountant shall cover all years pre-
sented.

3. [e}] The opinion shall;

a. Be [be] addressed to the company on stationery of the accountant showing the address of
issuance; [5]




b. Bear [shall-bear] original manual signatures; and

c. Be [shall-be] dated.[3][-]

(b) [{2)] Report of evaluation of internal controls.

1. [(a}] This report shall include an evaluation of the internal controls of the company relating
to the methods and procedures used in the securing of assets and the reliability of the financial
records, including the controls as the system of authorization and approval, and the separation
of duties.

2. [{6)] The review shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing stand-
ards and the report filed with the commissioner [exesutive-direstor].[7][-]

(c) [£3)] Accountant's letter. The accountant shall furnish the company, for inclusion in the fil-
ing of the audited annual report, a letter stating:

1. [¢a)] That he is independent with respect to the company and conforms to the standards of
his profession as contained in the Code of Professional Ethics and pronouncements of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and pronouncements of the Financial Ac-
counting Standards Board; [-]

2. [(b)] The general background and experience of the staff engaged in audit including the
experience in auditing captives or other insurance companies; [3]

3. [{e)] That the accountant understands that the audited annual report and his opinions
thereon will be filed in compliance with this administrative regulation with the Kentucky Depart-
ment [Office] of insurance; [5]

4. [{e)] That the accountant consents to the requirements of Section 6 of this administrative
regulation and that the accountant consents and agrees to make available for review by the
commissioner, his designee or his appointed agent, the work papers as defined in Section 6 of
this administrative regulation; []

5. [{e)] That the accountant is properly licensed by an appropriate state licensing authority;
and

6. That the accountant [that-he] is a member in good standing in the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.fz][-]

(d) [{4)] Financial statements. The following statements are required:

1. [¢a}] Balance sheet; [-]

2. [{b)] Statement of gain or loss from operations; [:]

3. [{e)] Statement of changes in financial position; [-]

4. [(eh] Statement of changes in capital paid up, gross paid in and contributed surplus and
unassigned funds or unassigned surplus; and [3]

5. [{e}] Notes to financial statements. The notes to financial statements shall be those re-
quired by generally accepted accounting principles, and shall include:

a. [+] A reconciliation of differences, if any, between the audited financial report and the
statement or form filed with the commissioner [exeeutive-direstor]; [-]

b. [2] A summary of ownership and relationship of the company and all affiliated corpora-
tions or companies insured by the captive; and [-]

c. [3:] A narrative explanation of all material transactions and balances with the compa-
ny.[5][-]

(e) [£8Y] Certification of loss reserves and loss expense reserves.

1. [(a}] The annual audit shall include an opinion as to the adequacy of the company's loss
reserves and loss expense reserves. '

2. [(bY] The individual who certifies as to the adequacy of reserves shall be approved by the
commissioner [executive-direstor] and shall be:

a. A [a] Fellow of the Casualty Actuarial Society; [3]

b. A [a] member in good standing of the American Academy of Actuaries; [;] or

c. An [an] individual who has demonstrated his competence in loss reserve evaluation to the
commissioner.[;]lexecutive-director]




3. [(e}] Certification shall be in the form as the commissioner [executive-directer] deems ap-

propriate.[;-and][-]
(f) [48)] A filing fee for audited financial statements shall be as prescribed by 806 KAR 4:010.

Section 4. A company shall within ninety (90) days report to the commissioner [executive-di-
rester] in writing, the name and address of the independent certified public accountant retained
to conduct the annual audit established in this administrative regulation.

Section 5. A company shall require the certified public accountant to immediately notify, in
writing, an officer and all members of the board of directors of the company of any determination
by the independent certified public accountant that the company has materially misstated its fi-
nancial condition in its report to the commissioner [exeeu%ve—&reeter} as required in KRS
304.49-070. The company shall furnish the notification to the commissioner [executive-direstor]
within five (5) working days of receipt.

Section 6. Work Papers. (1) Each company shall require the independent certified public ac-
countant to make available for review and inspection by the commissioner [exesutive-directer] or
his appointed agent the work papers prepared in the conduct of the audit of the company.

(2) The company shall require that the accountant retain the audit work papers for a period of
not less than five (5) years after the period reported upon.

(3) Any review by the commissioner [exesutive-directer] shall be considered a part of an ex-
amination or investigation and all working papers obtained during the course of an examination
or investigation shall be confidential.

(4) The company shall require that the independent certified public accountant provide pho-
tocopies of any of the working papers the Department [Office] of Insurance requests and the
working papers may be retained by the department [office].

(5) Work papers shall include:

(a) Schedules;

(b) Analyses;

(c) Reconciliations;

(d) Abstracts;

(e) Memoranda;

(f) Narratives;

(g) Flow charts;

(h) Copies of company records; or

(i) Other documents prepared or obtained by the accountant and his employees in the con-
duct of their examination of the company.

Section 7. (1) If (Whenever] the commissioner [exeeutive-direstor] deems that the financial
condition of the company warrants additional security, he may require a company to deposit
with the Treasurer of this state, cash or securities approved by the commissioner [executive-di-
rector] or, to furnish the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] a clean irrevocable letter of credit is-
sued by a bank chartered by the State of Kentucky or a member bank of the Federal Reserve
System and approved by the commissioner [executive-direstor].

(2) The company may receive interest or dividends from the deposit or exchange the depos-
its for others of equal value with the approval of the commissioner [executive-directer].

(3) If the company discontinues business, the commissioner [executive-directer] shall return
the deposit only after being satisfied that all obligations of the company have been discharged.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.




3. [46}] Certification shall be in the form as the commissioner [executive-directer] deems ap-

propriate.[;-and][-]
(f) [¢6)] A filing fee for audited financial statements shall be as prescribed by 806 KAR 4: 010

Section 4. A company shall within ninety (90) days report to the commissioner [executive-di-
reetor] in writing, the name and address of the independent certified public accountant retained
to conduct the annual audit established in this administrative regulation.

Section 5. A company shall require the certified public accountant to immediately notify, in
writing, an officer and all members of the board of directors of the company of any determination
by the independent certified public accountant that the company has materially misstated its fi-
nancial condition in its report to the commissioner [executive-direster] as required in KRS
304.49-070. The company shall furnish the notification to the commissioner [exesutive-direstor]
within five (5) working days of receipt.

Section 6. Work Papers. (1) Each company shall require the independent certified public ac-
countant to make available for review and inspection by the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] or
his appointed agent the work papers prepared in the conduct of the audit of the company.

(2) The company shall require that the accountant retain the audit work papers for a period of
not less than five (5) years after the period reported upon.

(3) Any review by the commissioner [executive-director] shall be considered a part of an ex-
amination or investigation and all working papers obtained during the course of an examination
or investigation shall be confidential.

(4) The company shall require that the independent certified public accountant provide pho-
tocopies of any of the working papers the Department [Office] of Insurance requests and the
working papers may be retained by the department [office].

(5) Work papers shall include:

(a) Schedules;

(b) Analyses;

(c) Reconciliations;

(d) Abstracts;

(e) Memoranda;

(f) Narratives;

(g9) Flow charts;

(h) Copies of company records; or

(i) Other documents prepared or obtained by the accountant and his employees in the con-
duct of their examination of the company.

Section 7. (1) If Whenever] the commissioner [executive-direstor] deems that the financial
condition of the company warrants additional security, he may require a company to deposit
with the Treasurer of this state, cash or securities approved by the commissioner [exesutive-di-
reetor] or, to furnish the commissioner [exesutive-direstor] a clean irrevocable letter of credit is-
sued by a bank chartered by the State of Kentucky or a member bank of the Federal Reserve
System and approved by the commissioner [executive-direstor].

(2) The company may receive interest or dividends from the deposit or exchange the depos-
its for others of equal value with the approval of the commissioner [exesutive-director].

(3) If the company discontinues business, the commissioner [executive-direstor] shall return
the deposit only after being satisfied that all obllgatlons of the company have been discharged.

CONTACT PERSON: DJ Wasson, Executive Advisor, 500 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601, phone +1 (502) 564-6026, fax +1 (502) 564-1453, email dj.wasson@ky.gov.




CABINET FOR HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
Office of the Secretary

Andy Beshear 275 East Main Street, 5W-A Eric C. Friedlander

Governor Frankfort, KY 40621 Secretary
502-564-7042
502-564-7091
www.chfs.ky.gov

October 2, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair
Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re:  Agency amendment for 922 KAR 1:330
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with the Children’s Alliance, an association of more than 36
private agencies that provide care for Kentucky's most vulnerable and at-risk children, of
issues raised by 922 KAR 1:330, the Department for Community Based Services
proposes the attached amendment to 922 KAR 1:330.

If you have any questions about this amendment, please contact Laura Begin at
(502) 564-3703 or laura.begin@ky.gov.

Sincerely,

Jmaa Lok

Donna Little
Deputy Executive Director
Office of Legislative and Regulatory Affairs

EAM il
Kentucky.gov KE NTUCKY An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D



Agency Amendment

Cabinet for Health and Family Services
Department for Community Based Services
Division of Protection and Permanency

922 KAR 1:330. Child protective services.

Page 13
Section 3(15)(a)
Line 22
After "genital mutilation”, insert ", human trafficking:".




CABINET FOR HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
Office of the Secretary

Andy Beshear 275 East Main Street, 5W-A Eric C. Friedlander

Governor Frankfort, KY 40621 Secretary
502-564-7042
502-564-7091

www.chfs.ky.gov

October 9, 2020

Senator Stephen West, Co-Chair

Representative David Hale, Co-Chair

c/o Emily Caudill

Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee
Legislative Research Commission

029, Capitol Annex

Frankfort KY 40601

Re: 902 KAR 100:012. Fee schedule.
Dear Co-Chairs West and Hale:

After discussions with Administrative Regulation Review Subcommittee staff of the issues
raised by 902 KAR 100:012, the Department for Public Health proposes the enclosed substitute to
902 KAR 100:012.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Julie Brooks, Department
for Public Health, at (502) 564-3970, extension 4069.

Sincerely,

Lo ok

Donna Little
Deputy Executive Director
Office of Legislative and Regulatory Affairs

Kentucky.qov KE NTU CK ' An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D




SUGGESTED SUBSTITUTE

CABINET FOR HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
Department for Public Health
Division of Public Health Protection and Safety

902 KAR 100:012. Fee schedule.

RELATES TO: KRS 211.840-211.852, 211.990(4), 523.100

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: KRS 194A.050(1), 211.844, 211.848(1)

NECESSITY, FUNCTION, AND CONFORMITY: KRS 211.848(1)
requires[autherizes][requires] the cabinet to establish a reasonable schedule of fees and
charges by administrative regulation. This administrative regulation establishes a schedule
of fees and charges for radioactive material licensees; radiation producing
machine[mmachines] registrants; others who may receive, possess, use, transfer, or dispose
of sources of radiation; and vendors, service providers, and qualified experts providing
services in Kentucky.

Section 1. Radiation Producing Machine Schedule of Annual Fees and Charges.
The following schedule, established in subsections (1) through (4) of this section, of
annual fees shall apply to radiation producing machine registrants. A "Registration
Application for Radiation Producing Machines", RPS 402, [An-applicationforregistration
or-annualrenewal] shall be accompanied by the appropriate fee established in
subsections (1) through (4) of this section.

(1) A diagnostic x-ray machine[tubestherapeuticx-ray-tube-capable-of-operating-upto
1501/p] shall be $131.25[425].

(2) A therapeutic x-ray machine[tube—capable—of-eperating—at—150-kVp—or-above]
including particle accelerators shall be $525[560].

(3) Industrial, dental, and other x-ray machines[tubes] not specified in subsections (1)
and (2) of this section shall be $89.25[eighty-five-(85)-dellars].

(4) Shielding evaluation, per room:

(a) Diagnostic facilities shall be $600; and

(b) Linear accelerator shall be $1,500.

Section 2. Radioactive Material License Schedule of Annual Fees and Charges. The
following schedule, established in subsections (1) through (5) of this section, shall apply
to radioactive material licenses. An initial and renewal application, incorporated by
reference in 902 KAR 100:040, shall be accompanied by the fee established in this
section. ‘




(1) A specific radioactive material license initial and annual fee.

(@) Human use.

1. Nuclear medicine, imaging shall be $2,205[2,4066].

2. Nuclear medicine, radiopharmaceutical therapy shall be $2,205[2160].

3. Nuclear medicine, permanent implant shall be $2,835[2769)].

4. Nuclear medicine, temporary implant shall be $1,575[4,5660].

5. Nuclear medicine, mobile imaging shall be $2,625[2,5060].

6. Teletherapy or Gamma Stereotactic Radiosurgery shall be $4,200[4,000].

7. Broad scope, medical shall be $7,875[#566].

8. Other shall be $1,312.50[4:258].

(b) Industrial radiography shall be $4,200[4,604].

(c) Wireline service shall be $2,625[2;500].

(d) Broad scope, academic shall be $3,675[3;566].

(e) Nuclear laundry shall be $7,875[#566].

(f) Irradiator.

1. Self-contained shall be $1,837.50[4750].

2. Unshielded during irradiation shall be $4,410[4,260].

(g) Manufacturing, processing, or distribution.

1. Industrial gauging devices shall be $4,725[4;569].

2. In vitro-In vivo kits shall be $3,780[3,600].

3. Radiopharmaceuticals shall be $5,460[5;206].

4. Other shall be $3,780[3;600].

(h) Industrial gauging devices, [5]

1. Fixed shall be $1,155[4400].-and]

2. Portable shall be $1,365 [4:300].

(i) In vitro, academic, environmental, or clinical laboratory shall be $1,312.50[4,259].

() Veterinary use shall be $2,205[2,460].

(k) Services, such as leak testing shall be $1,312.50[+,260].

() An application for review of afz

7] new sealed source or device [;]or

[2:] custom device shall be $4,600 plus the applicable fee in paragraphs (a) through (k)
of this subsection.

(m) An amendment for review of a sealed source or device shall be $1,575[%,560].

(n) A byproduct, source, or special nuclear material license or other license-authorizing
decommissioning, decontamination, reclamation, or site restoration shall be
$7.875[7500.

(0) The fee shall be $10,500 for a license specifically authorizing:

1. The receipt of prepackaged byproduct, source material, or special nuclear material
from other persons; and




2. [Thelicense—authorizes] The disposal of the material by transfer to a person
authorized to receive or dispose of the material-and-the-fee-shall-be-$10-500][15;000].

(p) A license specifically authorizing the receipt of waste byproduct material, source
material, or special nuclear material from a person for the purpose of storage, treatment,
and packaging for transfer to a person authorized to receive or dispose of radioactive
material shall be $26,250[25,000].

(2) A general radioactive material license initial and annual fee.

(a) In vitro or medical use specified in 902 KAR 100:050, Sections 4 and 5 shall be
$1,312.50[4:259].

(b) Measuring, gauging, or a controlling device except emergency exit signs shall be
$300 per device not to exceed $1,260[4-200] per use location.

(3) An application to amend an existing specific license shall be $210[2060].

(4) An application for initial reciprocal recognition of an out-of-state license as:
established by 902 KAR 100:065. The fee shall be equal to the applicable fee for an in-
state licensee.

(5) A licensee required to pay an annual fee pursuant to this administrative regulation
may qualify as a small entity pursuant to form RPS-526, [Certification-ef] Small Entity
Certification[Status]. If a licensee qualifies as a small entity, based on Kentucky
Department of Revenue review and approval, and completes and submits form RPS-526
with its annual fee payment each year, the licensee shall pay the reduced annual fee.

Section 3. Inspection Fee. (1) The cost of a routine interval inspection shall be covered
in the annual licensing renewal fee.

(2) One (1) or more additional inspections shall be conducted to ensure ongoing public
health and safety if any of the conditions established in paragraphs (a) through (d) exist:

(a) Willful neglect or careless disregard that has, or could lead to, a threat to public
health and safety;

(b) Failure to take appropriate and timely action to correct documented violations of
statutes, regulations, or conditions of the license or permit;

(c) A substantiated violation that indicates a lack of management oversight or that the
radiation safety officer is not adequately performing duties; or

(d) Repeated violations from the previous inspection.

(3) The fee for each additional inspection shall be $525[560].

Section 4. Shipment of Radioactive Material and Waste. The shipper or carrier shall
provide full cost reimbursement within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice, for all
escorts of shipments of radioactive material, spent nuclear fuel, transuranic waste,
radioactive waste, and other radioactive material or waste through Kentucky.




Section 5. Site Investigations, Remediation Projects, and Scoping Surveys. The licensee,
remediation contractor, or other responsible party shall provide full cost reimbursement
for review and oversight of site investigations, remediation projects, and scoping surveys
to include project evaluation and planning, sample collection, analysis, and independent
validation as applicable.

Section 6. Qualified Experts, Vendors and Service Providers. The schedule established
in subsections (1) and (2) of this section shall apply to any entity or individual seeking or
maintaining a designation as a qualified expert, vendor, or service provider as defined in
902 KAR 100:010.

(1) Qualified experts.

(a) Initial application shall be $105 106].

(b) Annual fee shall be $52.50[fifty-(50)-doliars].
(2) Vendors and service providers shall be $315[3090].

Section 7. General Requirements. (1) A general radioactive material license shall expire
on July 31 following the date of issuance.

(2) A radiation producing machine registration certificate shall expire on the last day of
the month, one (1) year after the date of issuance.

(3) A general radioactive material license fee shall be paid on or before July 31.

(4) A specific radioactive material license shall be renewed annually based on the
expiration date stated in the license. '

(5) A renewal fee shall be paid within forty-five (45) days of the bill date. A payment
postmarked more than forty-five (45) days of the bill date shall be subject to a $100 late
payment penalty per license, device, or x-ray machine[tube] in addition to the renewal
fee.

(6) Payment of a fee or other charge shall be submitted to the Radiation Health Branch,
Cabinet for Health and Family Services, 275 East Main Street, Mailstop HS1C A, Frankfort,
Kentucky 40621-0001, in the form of a check or money order payable to the Kentucky
State Treasurer or paid online at https://prd.webapps.chfs.ky.gov/rad epay/
[https:/fprd-chfs-l-govirad-epay/].

(7) If a check issued for payment of the fee established in this administrative regulation
is returned to the state treasurer due to insufficient funds, the payor shall resubmit
payment by money order or cashier's check.

(8) A registration and licensing application fee shall be nonrefundable.

(9) Failure to submit an applicable fee established in this administrative regulation shall
be deemed a violation and subject to the provisions of 902 KAR 100:170.

Section 8. Incorporation by Reference. (1)_The following material is incorporated by

rei erence.




(a)[{1}] "RPS-526, [Certification-of] Small Entity Certification[Status;]" edition 6/2020;
and

(b) “Registration Application for Radiation Producing Machines,” RPS 402,
4/2016[12/2014][-is-incorporated-by reference].

(2) This material may be inspected, copied, or obtained, subject to applicable copyright
law, at the Cabinet for Health and Family Services, Department for Public Health, Division
of Public Health Protection and Safety, Radiation Health Branch, 275 East Main Street,
Frankfort, Kentucky 40621, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.




INSTRUCTIONS

Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services Radiation Control Regulations require the owner of radiation
producing machines to register such items with the Kentucky Cabinet for Health Services within ten (10) days
following the acquisition of the registrable item(s).

Facility Name
The common name used daily. In most cases, this will be the same as item 2, e.g. John J. Jones, DMD or

Centerville Hospital, Inc. The facility name may be Family Dental Clinic or Radiology Associates while item 2
will be a corporate (PSC) or individual’s name. The best guide is the name used when answering the telephone.

Owner

For the purposes of this regulation, the name of the owner must be the person, lessee, or bailee having legal title
to, or legal possession of the registrable item. “Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, firm,
association, trust, estate, public or private institution, group, agency, political subdivision of this
Commonwealth, any other state or political subdivision thereof, and any legal successor, representative, agent,
or agency of the foregoing, other than Federal Government agencies.

Address
The address shall mean the physical location where the registrable item(s) will be used and/or stored.

Radiation Safety Officer

The owner or person in custody of the registrable item shall perform or provide for the services of a Radiation
Safety Officer and with his/her advice shall establish operating rules and procedures which will provide
reasonable assurances that the provisions of the Kentucky Radiation Regulations are being carried out. No
person shall assume or be designated a Radiation Safety Officer unless he/she is qualified by training and
experience to assume the responsibilities of informing himself/herself of all the hazards and precautions
involved in the activity for which he/she is designated as Radiation Safety Officer.

Contact Person
Please designate an individual who can be contacted to schedule inspections and answer related questions. Also
indicate telephone number.

FORWARD THE COMPLETED REGISTRATION APPLICATION TO:

CABINET FOR HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
DEPARTMENT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
RADIATION HEALTH BRANCH

275 EAST MAIN STREET, HS1C-A

FRANKFORT, KY 40621

TELEPHONE NO. (502) 564-3700

Registration Does Not Imply Approval Or Disapproval And Is Not A License







KENTUCKY CABINET FOR HEALTH AND FAMILYSERVICES
Radiation Health Branch County___Dist___Insp __

REGISTRATION APPLICATION For Department use only
FOR RADIATION PRODUCING MACHINES

DEPARTMENT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH Registration Number

1. Facility Name

2. Name of owner and/or user:

3. Address of Installation: 4. Mailing Address:
Street Street or P O Box
County City City, State, Zip
Zip _Telephone () Telephone Number( )
5. Contact Person: . Telephone Number: { )
Fax Number: { ) E-mail:

6. Radiation producing machines: Fill in applicable blanks (see codes listed below):

Select No. From Check appropriate box Room No./
list below Maximum Manufacturer, Model & Serial No. Location

TYPE PURPOSE | KVP MA | Fixed | Mobile | Portable

Control Panel:

Tube Housing:

Control Panel:

Tube Housing:

Control Panel:

Tube Housing:

Control Panel:

Tube Housing:
Control Panel:
Tube Housing:
Control Panel:
Tube Housing:
TYPE: 1. Radiographic 5. Therapy PURPOSE: A. Human use: Diagnostic E. Industrial
2. Fluoroscopic 8. Photofluorographic B. Human use: Therapetutic F. No longer in use,
3. Combination (1&2) 7. Diffraction C. Animal use in storage
4. Dental 8. Other: Specify D. Research G. Other: Specify
Equipment Vendor: Signature (owner):
Vendor Registration No.: Application Date:
Vendor’'s Address: Date of Initial Operation:

Vendor’s Telephone Number: ()

(RPS 402) Revised 4/16 form-registration1A
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